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2015 2016 2019
“B-Ef ZE-RE “F-nf
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
EBTR BETR BETR
I;g gﬁefs 12,909,389 13,721,239 14,535,135 14,513,521 14,885,044
;%g'gb“mes 1,965,058 2,798,303 2,696,260 2,116,453 2,414,824
gggggg 10,944,331 10,922,936 11,838,875 12,397,068 12,470,220
il S BEWGIBII T BMHG2B85 T  BEHGI T BEHGILISE  EEHKS3L94R
Profit for the year atfributable to
owners of the Company 410,366 457,907 744,888 1,014,267 429,984
PERARRARR 2R FERF
E’E‘Q‘g;‘;ﬂ%pe' shore BEHKSI08T  BEHKSIZIE  BMHSLOTR  BEHKSLE8T  HEHKSIIAR
MR BEHGOA2E  BEHSOATR  BENG0E0E  BMHGOI0R  BEHKSO60%
Dividend payout ratio 399 399 30% 2%Y% 0
REHE ’ 0 0 0 53%
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EH&EE
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| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group's business performance together with

some observations from the overall economic environment of 2019 and expectations of the
year ahead.

RARRAE ETEBRAKE-—Z-NFNREDORE  URASAGRERESERENEEHN
BHNHRFERNVPE -



Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s business
performance together with some observations from the overall
economic environment of 2019 and expectations of the year

ahead.

2019 REVIEW

At the end of 2018, leading economists were concerned about
2019 economic outlook. While all major countries responded
by supporting their economies with accommodating measures,
the 2019 global economic performances still turned out to be
disappointing. According to the IMF, in 2019 the world was in
a “synchronized slowdown” with a growth of 2.9%, coming
down from 3.7% in 2018, which was the lowest level since
2008-2009. This poor performance was a result of rising
tensions in trade and international politics and certain common
as well as country specific factors; aging work force and low
productivity seem to be more applicable to developed countries
whereas political instability and heavy debt burden tend to

apply more to emerging economies.

Worldwide financial markets, on the other hand, did not appear
to reflect the above economic reality. The equity markets in
2019 were driven by the sharp U-turn by central banks: Fed
ended up cutting interest rate 3 times and the European Central
Bank restarted its bond buying programme. The results were that
the equity markets reached new highs with MSCI (All Country
World Index) touching 566, NASDAQ 9022, Dow Jones
Industrial surpassing 29,000. The same happened to the bond
market. The 10 years yield on US Treasuries fell from 2.68% to
a low of 1.46% before rebounding to 1.92% at the end of the
year. The US dollar stood strong notwithstanding the easing

measures of Fed.

The US economy supported by a resilient consumer market and
a 50 years low in unemployment, managed to achieve a 2.3%
growth, however, it was still 0.6% less comparing to the year
2018. Nonetheless it represented the tenth year of a continuous

annual growth since the financial crisis from 2008 to 2009.
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RARAD BETERAKEE-ZF-N
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ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & Serviced Residences ONE-EIGHT-ONE JEE R IRFS X £

The economic performances of the Euro zone was lackluster in
2019. A combination of poor productivity and dismal
demography led it closer to stagnation. The growth rate was
around 1.1%, a second consecutive drop from 2.4% of 2017.
The ECB responded by restarting its bond buying programme
pushing interest rate deeper into negative territory. The Euro,

similar to its economy, was in a gentle decline in 2019.

In Britain, following a clear victory of the Conservative Party in
December 2019, BREXIT became a reality. However, the
political and economic uncertainties throughout the year has
affected the economy, which has slowed down since the 2016
Referendum. It even contracted in the second quarter of 2019.
The UK GDP has increased by a mere 1.2% in 2019 (1.5% in
2018). Fortunately both the employment level and household

spending have reminded stable.

Japan, again experienced only a very mild growth of around
1%. Business investment and exports were weakened by the
Sino-US trade war. The economy was cushioned by domestic
consumption which significantly expanded just before the

increase in sales tax implementation in October.
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Chong Hing Bank Centre BIE£R{Teh

In 2019, the focus of the world was on the trade war between
the two largest economies. Exports from China have slowed
down and have impacted on the general demand of her
economy, rippling through a slow growth in the property market
and a weak Yuan. In addition to these problems, the Mainland
Government had to manage structural slow down, a move away
from an investment-led growth model along with reducing
financial vulnerability of her local governments and business
communities. Through a combination of timely fiscal and
monetary measures, China has achieved a growth above 6%,
the highest in the top global economies with the commerce and
online business sectors gaining momentum offsetting losses for

the export market.

Hong Kong has been damaged by an almost non-stop “social
incidents” since early June 2019. The fabric of our society has
been severely torn. Tourism and consumer business suffered
heavily. The effect on the economy started to emerge in the third
quarter: a year-to-year drop of 2.9% with a drop of similar
magnitude in the forth quarter. For the whole of 2019, real GDP
fell by 1.2%, which was the first annual decline since 2009.
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Chong Yip Centre under renovation Bl LEIF TP

BUSINESS RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a
profit of HK$446.5 million, it represents a decrease of 57%
when comparing with the year 2018.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 21 May
2020, the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.38 per
share. Together with the interim cash dividend of HK$0.22 per
share paid on 13 September 2019, the total cash dividend
amounted to HK$0.60 per share for the year 2019.

A detailed business review and analyses are to be found in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual

Report. In summary:

* As to property development in Foshan, The Grand Riviera,
a total of 98%, 100% and 100% of residential units of
Phase 1,2 and 3 respectively had been sold. 92% of the
total Phase 4 units have been sold by the end of 2019. As
of 31 December 2019, the total sale proceeds of the whole
development project amounted to approximately HK$5.4
billion. A further HK$1.3 billion will be generated when all
the remaining residential units, car parks and shops are

sold off in the future.
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In May 2019, the Group has acquired a piece of land
located at Plot No. 2, Nan Ce, Jianshe Dadao, Xinnan
Jiedao, San Shui Qu, Foshan Shi, PRC in a public auction.
The land has a site area of 33,670 sq.m. and to provide a
total GFA of 139,515 sq.m. The project was named
“Elegance Garden”. The overall planning and design
scheme has been submitted to the Foshan Municipal
Government for approval. The management has scheduled

to commence construction in Q4 2020.

In the latter half of 2019, the conversion process of ONE-
EIGHT-ONE Hotel and Serviced Residences has been fully
completed. The hotel operation, managed directly by the
Group, commenced in the last quarter of 2019.

The Group holds 10% of the Belchers and Chatham Gate
development projects, respectively. Residential units of both
projects were completed and the all of them have been
sold off in 2019. The shopping malls and certain car park
units of the respective projects are retained for long term
investment purpose.

At the end of 2019, the Group has a total of four overseas
investments: three warehouses in Japan and one factory
building in Australia, all of which are long term investments
co-invested with Value Partners group (stock code 806.HK).
Annual rental income obtained therefrom amounted to
approximately of HK$70 million. In Japan, the logistics
sector has been benefited much by the forthcoming Tokyo
Olympic; our warehouses were fully let, with increases in

rent and valuations.

The rental income and revenue of the rest of the Group's

investments have remained stable in 2019.

OUTLOOK OF 2020
The original forecast for 2020 was one of caution but not
gloom; with the announcement of the signing of Phase | of the

Sino-US Trade Agreement and with IMF projecting global growth

of 3.3% in 2020. However, the rising tension in the Middle East

and the outbreak of the Coronavirus in January have changed

the sentiment to the worse. Serious doubts on the strength of the
global supply chains and on consumer demand and the knock

on effect on worldwide employment have surfaced.
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On the other hand, there are off-setting factors to counter
balance such pessimism. The major central banks and leading
governments of the world have been taking responsible counter
cynical measures ever since the financial crisis to maintain
economic order. This applies particularly to a US presidential
year. The Mainland Government with its largest world exchange
reserves and with adroit control of the economy will be able to
buffer her economy from any significant volatilities. Moreover,
historically, pent-up consumer demand released after a major
trauma could often buoy up the downward economic trends.

To sum up, we believe that year 2020 may be difficult but it
does not warrant undue worries.

BUSINESS PREVIEW

Facing steep challenges ahead, we are pleased that our Group,
after years of stable profit growth, is in a solid net cash position
and has considerable financial strength to take up any good
business opportunities that we may encounter. Any new ventures
will be screened and managed by our usual prudential and
professional standards. We already have international
investment exposures following our joint-ventures with Value
Partners in Japan and Australia. We will keep our investment
horizon locally as well as internationally pursuing projects with
partners or alone.

For Elegance Garden, our Sanshui residential project, the Group
will begin its construction once we receive approvals from all
relevant authorities and when the social hygiene conditions
permit. In 2019, the Group has started renovation in the Chong
Yip Centre shopping mall in Western District. The project is
scheduled to finish in 2021. Considering that the shopping mall
is located between the HKU MTR station and Des Voeux Road
West, we are expecting a healthy rental income therefrom.

In 2020, the business of ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel may suffer from
the situation in Mainland and Hong Kong. We, however are
confident that given its full harbor view location, business will
pick up when the economic environment improves.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to
stakeholders and shareholders for their continued trust and
support, to all my fellow directors for their wise stewardship, and
to our senior management and our staff for their commitment
and dedication.

Liu Lit Chi
Chairman

5 March 2020

S—FHE TEEBESBENEER
Z-HEHMRBEUR  HRFTEPRR
TRBEF-—EXEDNEEENRBHER
DUGEBEBRT SEALEBERARNZER
BAEFE hBEAERFEEHER L
REARHINE B RYEHEMRNNE
BB SR LURAMEME KRB
ot/ RERLEEFR  ERAIEEMN
BRNZMBEEEZRBEBRARRKT

{TASEES -
BEFM RERA-E-EETHE
EER R - B ’EEo

e
HERIKOE  KMREREBZFR
EaNER  AEENRSFERE
MBENEE  EUEAZERMITEBE
MEMRFEE - ~EEBEU-EH
%TE&§¥7J<$§%33&EIEEH¥EE’JIE

o YHEREIBFE H ZIK&/EA/JNAVE%“E?&
ZIK%IEEEIW?xﬁﬂ“‘%ﬁ o HEIMAE
HEE  RASEEEAHRIRERSK
REIEE -

REERE=KEEEEMS  A&H
ARG AEMERENERRERL
EHERGEAFNBERTRART - &
SER-Z-NFHEEARRIXES
ETRH IR - ZBRBFER=-ZFT=—
FRm e ENZBHUREBREHHE
HEBEHEARR  AMZESEELE
AEHNESWA -

A—ZE-FF > ONE-EIGHT-ONEJB J&E %

BREZIAMBREBNRZHE - AW -
ERNBETEZEZEESR  EMEEL

EBEERELBREREMEE -

BE RAZREFOERRRNES
EREXE - REESNEHES UK
EEABHEINSOIIRE 2
ROHE °

BEIE
EE

—E-ZF=AAH

-
c
]
4
m
w
w
-
m
=
m
3
>
Zz
(5]
[a)
o
-~
o
o
-~
>
=
m
@
(e]
<
m
=
4
>
4
o
m
3
8
=
&
b

>
o
U
i

EvHEXTEBE J

HEEZY-—&



DIRECTORS’ REPORT ESEE8HEE




CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI L& &l & & & &

-4
c
A
z
m
w
wv
-
m
=<
m
3
b
z
o
(2]
o
-~
-
o
-~
>
2
m
Q
(o]
<
m
-~
4
>
z
(@]
m
i
]
e}
&
&
5
o
g
i3




N
o

610Z L4OdFY IVANNY | @ILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

DIRECTORS’ REPORT &8

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai LiB&IE &5

BESE




Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai LiB&IE &g

The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the
“Board”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders its
annual report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are property investment, property development and
investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 41 and 18 to

the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review of
the business and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2019, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group's business, can be found in the “Five-
Year Financial Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement”, “Summary
of Financial Highlights”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of the Annual

Report. The above sections form part of this report.
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RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that

date are set out on pages 140 to 264 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.22 per share was paid to
shareholders on 13 September 2019. The Board recommends a
final cash dividend of HK$0.38 per share, making a total cash
dividend of HK$0.60 per share for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set

out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2019 comprised the accumulated profits of
HK$7,497,105,000 (2018: HK$7,655,833,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties during the year are set out

in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/RIGHT-OF-USE
ASSETS

Movements in property, plant and equipment/Right-of-use assets
during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development/properties under
development for sale/properties held for sale during the year
are set out in notes 15 and 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note

30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Japan Logistics Centers HA#ifiH s A Y Kakegawa City, Shizuoka

Australia Manufacturing Plant ;& il &
V St Clair, Adelaide P #8350 7 3 F

Prefecture FEREIREHHIITH

A Hadano City, Kanagawa Prefecture #%5)I|8R iv
V¥ Higashimatsuyama City, Saitama Prefecture B ERRR#ALUT




SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012, which
has replaced the previous share option scheme, for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, and will expire on 8 May 2022. Under the Scheme,
the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside eligible third parties

at the discretion of the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the

Company's shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of
the Company’s share on the date of grant, (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, or [iii) the closing price of the

shares on the date of grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned

scheme since the Scheme was adopted.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to

the consolidated financial statements respectively.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable are set

out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's interest capitalised during the year amounted to

HK$nil (2018: HK$15,524,000).

B 3 3 #E 51 &

AR RH RS (&) ER=
E-"FRANEABRBRET LI
EANRNBESE  T2ERERAH
BEESRGERESR  AFHEIBR=
Z--FRANEER - REZTE
ARRAREPELATEERES &
REARBAREMNBLAAZESE TR
7 URBAQFARE I A2 F
AREFERE KRESEREQEIATE
ERF=FHERHERDHE -

REZTE EREEGSEAQARRE
THUET - ROOHRAREROBEHT
SHHEARBTEERITRAZ10% -
MAERXBESARARRBAAET
BRARTAEMERNAL ZHE RS
BROBBAFEHARA TR HITR
Rz 1% e

ZBRHBETRE B ERE A B
FHEAFZEMEBRATUITE-  T6E
BHARRESER  ENMER () A2
AIROREE R Z2AR TR EE - (i)
REEBAAERXS B2 FHRHER
([l XHERZWmEZESE -

ZET BB LAR - AR )RR
A

Ft B 2 5]
FEMBLRAERFIIRGS MBE|RE
MiFESE 41 THR o
REERREXRLZAR
RITERREMERCHIIREGRS MK
HRRMIFESE 27 HR o

AEBRAFEALEERNL2FE (=
Z—)\F : B%15,524,000T) °

-2
c
@
Z
m
wv
wv
~
m
=
m
3
>
z
o
()
o
-~
-d
o
-~
>
A
m
@
(o]
<
m
-~
z
>
z
(@]
m
L
o
B
&
bl

>
o
g
i

N
(&}

BETHEXTHEH

HEHEHEFTY - |



N
o

610Z L4OdFY IVANNY | @ILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE8R&EE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are shown on page 103 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in
office, shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-election

in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 105 and 106 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher, Mr. Kho Eng
Tjoan, Christopher and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo shall retire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company. The Company intends to comply with code provision
A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, which provides, among other
things, that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. Mr. Liv Kwun Shing, Christopher, Mr. Kho Eng
Tjoan, Christopher and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo being eligible, will

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 108 to 118.

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and the Company considered all

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix

10 to the Listing Rules throughout the review period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE

COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the directors and the
Chief Executive Officer in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have been notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
or have been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers were as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

THE COMPANY

Liv Chong Hing Investment Limited

ESHEF AT RHEEBEZEHRAZR
iR
R-ZE-NAF+ZA=+—HB EEK
THRAZRAAAREEE LB (EER
BERHBERGIEXVER) 2147 - HE
RioREBEFTFNESZCREZSFRPE
RBIEXVBE7RESHBEHEARLD
AREBHEXSMERLD T (R
D) SERIEF SR E KRG 352
REFERDAMEFEENELM  RE
BRELMBETAESETESFRGZE
EFRANEARARRRBR - 25
W

EXAT R EEEEERD RS R HEE
R 153 b B HE 2

e
EARLRARAT

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD #&E &R B 1 EE

Family interests

Corporate inferests

Total interests as

Personal interests (inferests of spouse (inferests of approximate % of

(held as or child under 18) controlled the relevant issued

Long/short beneficial owner) KRS corporation) share capital

Name of director position fAAESR (BB T NAER Total interests EZAgtERm

BEEfE R/ %A (B&HH) Fhe#i) (FEHARER) BiEn BABHENE

Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 24,000 - 201,283,000 201,307,000 53.17%
B %L e (notes 1 and 2)
(M1 RD

Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston ~ Long 2,756,867 - - 2,756,867 0.73%

kA e
nofes: Wizt

1. 132,326,710 shares in the Company are beneficially held by Liv’s Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi is
the major shareholder. The above number of shares is duplicated under the corporate inferests of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

2. Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders, beneficially holds
68,956,290 shares of the Company, and thus is included in the corporate interests of Mr. Li Lit Chi.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Company,
the following shareholders (other than the directors or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the

FERFREEMGATHER

R-ZZE-AF+ZA=+—8 ' AL
AATA > FHIRER(RATESRITHA
RBERIN) RAD B 2B 10 R BERAD 5
EREBEFSRAERGIEXVEE2RE
D2 R EREMAN T E 2 R
B REEREEREEVEEMABRT
RAEBEMEMEKEATGRRASE L
BEZHTEBIRAEES% R L2

3¢ .
fm -

Group:

No. of ordinary % of the issued
Name of substantial shareholder Long/short position Capacity share held share capital
TERRER R/ %A St L ERR A E BERTRAER L
Liu’s Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132,326,710 34.95%
BEREBERAT i) BiAA (note 1) (FzE1)
Alba Holdings Limifed Long Beneficial owner 68,956,290 18.21%
FEREERLA 8 BaiBA (note 2) (HzED)

notes:

1. Liu's Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by, amongst others, Mr. Liu Lit
Chi. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors” interests in Share Capifal of
the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by Mr. Liv Lit Chi and his
associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors interests in Share
Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”
Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
by any person (other than the directors or Chief Executives
Officer of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more
as at 31 December 2019 which were required to be disclosed
to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

ER
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, “Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had, whether directly or indirectly,
have material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was partied to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In March 2018, the Company entered into a lease agreement
with Dr. Liv Lit Chung, a former Non-executive Director. The
Company leased the property for a monthly rent of HK$75,000
with effect from 1 March 2018 for a term of two years. The
lease agreement had been terminated upon Dr. Liu Lit Chung's
passed away in July 2019. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the aggregate rent paid by the Company amounted to
HK$525,000.

In March 2011, the Company entered into a service agreement
with K.A. Kho & Associates for architectural and consultancy
services provided to the Company. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,
Christopher, a Non-executive Director, is the sole director and
the sole shareholder of K.A. Kho & Associates. In addition, a
supplemental agreement with aggregate service fee of
HK$12,900,000 was signed in February 2016. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the service fee paid by the
Company amounted to HK$672,000 and the aggregate service
fee paid and payable by the Company amounted to
HK$12,845,000 as at 31 December 2019.

ESSHER

BREZE MBI RMEFE 40BA [EIEEA
TWBRBE| iz REEIASFE
NEMEE > ARRASESWEEES
BIEEA QA H A E 2 B PrET AL
ZERENHEREAEEEBKEBEN
BEARRE ©

REERARAHEEMHE 2B RER
SEANZHRETESEREARQF
FEMAEM AR 2RO IESFMERS

RENEERMZRREAFRKE LERER
ZADNBRES  WEREXRFTEALH
HEEFN-—FRABAINREES (BEE
ZIEEEBRIN) MR L ZRBEA

FAEALXS

RZZB-NF=ZR  XAGEAEHNIT
ESBALBLERTHEAN -HEA
ESRAB®75000T B=ZE-/N\F=A
—BRER REMEF - BREEBER
“E-NAFLAHY . HESHNTES
Rt -BE-ZE-NF+ZA=1+—8H
EHEE A2AHAXATEHEER
525,000 7T

R-ZZB——F=0 HFE&ZHAEER
NEFF —RBHR AEXATRME
EERHEMBERRE - AQ B ZFEHIT
BEETRREEDNTERAMBE 2 —
EERE-RR - Z—HARHER=-ZF
—R"EZBEF RBEBERABITREE
12,900,000t - BEZE=-ZE—hFE+=A
Et—HLEFE AR NEBE
BHES672,000t e R=FE—NFE+=A
=t+—H8 XRFAESHFRESHREE
MEE R 12,845,000 7T °

-2
c
@
Z
m
wv
wv
~
m
=
m
3
>
z
o
()
o
-~
-d
o
-~
>
A
m
@
(o]
<
m
-~
z
>
z
(@]
m
L
o
B
&
bl

>
o
g
i

N
0

BETHEXTHEH

HEHEHEFTY - |



w
o

610Z L4OdFY IVANNY | @ILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE8R&EE

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions, details of which
are also disclosed by the Group in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule
14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company fo Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the directors who do not have any interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in the above transactions, the
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of business

of the Group on normal commercial terms.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers and the Group’s turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers were both less
than 30%. None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Board owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest

in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company and
its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

shares in the Company.
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SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION EilREHE g

TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS HRESEN 10 MHRE =

According to the register of members of the Company as at 31  BEARATRRETMHWELR - R=F E

<

December 2019, the top 10 largest shareholders are as follows:  —AFE+ZA=+—-BFKREHZSHN10 B

URERMT : g

Number of shares held % §

Name of shareholder i EA BFERHER ERl 3

s

1. HKSCC Nominees Limited BRARER (REA)BRAT 157,356,625 4156 [

o

2. Chong Hing (Nominees) limited 48 (KB)ERAT 139,554,088 %8 B

>

3. Alba Holdings Limited EEREERLAR 35,000,222 9.25 a

3

4. MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited 10,000,000 2.64 %

&

5. Wragg Limited Wragg Limited 4,882,000 1.29 §

I

6. Leung Hok Pang Leung Hok Pang 3,848,000 1.02 ';ls
7. (heng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 3,160,000 0.83
8. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 3,100,000 0.82
9. On Luk Tong Limited On Luk Tong Limited 1,090,000 0.29
10.  Ma Chun Kif Francis & Wong Lok Yung Ma Chun Kit Francis & Wong Lok Yung 1,000,000 0.26
Total &t 358,990,935 94.82

LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS

According to the register of members of the Company as at 31

B D
BEAQNTRRECHNER  R=Z
—NWE+ZA=+—HRERIMHUT :

December 2019, the location of shareholders are as follows:

Number of shares held %
Location of shareholders T FRERHHA BNl
Hong Kong BA 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia HEREREE 36,060 0.0095
Europe B 800 0.0002
US and Canada ZERMEX 16,860 0.0045
Others Hit 8,580 0.0023
Total CH 378,583,440 100
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at the end of the financial year and of their respective
profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to select suitable
accounting policies and apply them on a consistent basis,
making judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; state the reasons for any significant departure from
accounting standards; prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis, unless it is not appropriate to presume that
the Company and the Group will continue in business for the

foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the
Group and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and

detection of fraud and other irregularities.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established on 30
October 2014. The current members of the committee comprised
of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu Kwun
Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly
approved terms of reference by the Board, the committee is
authorized to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on
all matters relating to the daily management and operations of
the Company and its subsidiaries. It also helps to discuss
significant daily operational issues, review business performance
and take prompt corrective actions as appropriate. The Board
believes that the function of committee could help to relieve the
Board of detailed review of information and to increase the

operational efficiency among different departments.

Detailed terms of reference could be seen at the Company’s

website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee report is shown on pages 36 to 37. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the
internal controls and the financial reporting requirements of the
Group. The Audit Committee meeting will normally hold twice in
each financial year immediately before the Board meeting for
approving the interim and final results. The committee is satisfied
with the Company’s internal control procedures and the financial

reporting disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee report is shown on pages 38 to 39. The
report showed the main duty and the work performed by the
committee during the year of 2019.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 40. The
report showed the main duty and work performed by the
committee during the year of 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company has substantially complied throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019 with those paragraphs of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the

Listing Rules, with which it is required to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the

Company are set out on pages 57 to 81.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability
insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management arising out
of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the directors as required by section 470
of the Companies Ordinance when this report prepared by the
directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of

the Companies Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE8R&EE

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The names of all directors who have served on the Board of
Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and

up to the date of this report are as follows:
Ms. Eva Liv

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Cavior Liu

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine
M:r. Liv Ying Shing, Claudius
Mr. Liu Kwun Bo, Darryl

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim

Mr. Mok Siu Kwong, Stanley
AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have
expressed their willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, a
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2020
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LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED SIMPLIFIED ORGANISATION CHART
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT B ZEEHEE

The Audit Committee (“AC") is made up of four members, all of

them are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The AC oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements including the selection of suitable accounting policies.
External auditors are responsible for auditing and attesting to the
Group's financial statements and will report to the management
of the Company from time to time on any weakness in controls
which come to their attention. The AC oversees the respective
work of management and external auditors to ensure the
management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal

control procedures.
The AC had performed the works as follows:

1. To review the financial statements of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2019;

2. To review the interim results of the Company for the six

months ended 30 June 2019;
3. To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence;
4. To review the system of internal control of the Company;

5. To review the audit plan and the engagement from external

auditors;

6. To make recommendation on the re-appointment of external

auditors; and

7. To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of account
and finance team of the Group in order to carry out the

duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was
found and all the recommendations previously suggested by

auditors were agreed and implemented by the management in
2019.
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Based on these reviews and discussions, together with the report
of the external auditor, the AC recommended to the Board’s
approval of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 with the Auditor’s Report thereon.

The Committee recommended to the Board that the shareholders
be asked to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the

Company's external auditor for 2020.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 3 March 2020
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT REZEEHREE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of six members. The
main duties of the Committee are (i) to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board in order to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy; (i) to identify suitably qualified
individuals to become directors of the Company and to select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company; and (iv) to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or reappointment of the directors and
succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the Terms
of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and duties.

The Terms of Reference were duly authorised by the Board.

In year 2019, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following

issues at its meeting:

1. To review the composition, size and structure of the Board

of the Company.

2. To review the attendance records of directors of the
Company.

3. To review the brief details of each director (including years
of service).

4. To review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

5. To review the directors’ appointment control schedule —

Rotation of Directors.

6. To review and confirm the independence of all the

Independent Non-executive Directors.

7. To review and amend as required from time to time the

Board’s diversity policies.
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The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting REZEEMEFTETEEHBAREME g
are circulated to the Board for information. The NC meets when (i R4Z 8k c BEEZESMBAEZER é
required but at least once per year. AEREE  EEFERVERT K- %
2
2
Members of the Nomination Committee REZEEEES §
M:r. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BRIE KL () g
S
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur EIREEE Py
o
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo ERERAN ST g
>
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher PR TE A
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John BrRE L §
m
Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEHREE g
Hong Kong, 3 March 2020 B8 —E-ETF=H=AH ®
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT M ZES

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) consists of four members, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of

the Company.

The main duties of the Committee are to formulate the
Company'’s remuneration policy as well as to determine and/or
make recommendations to the Board with regard to the structure
of remuneration packages for all directors and senior
management. When necessary and appropriate, the Chairman

and Managing Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by referring to the Terms of
Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and duties.

The Terms of Reference was duly authorised by the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had

reviewed and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

1. To review the Company’s policy, structure and the
remunerations packages for all directors and senior

management;

2. To determine and/or make recommendation to the Board

regarding the Directors’ fees and other allowances for the

year 2020; and.

3. To review and approve the annual performance bonus and

its policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting

are circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 3 March 2020
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS M % #E

Z
z
g
R 2
EIETLY 1,276,508 1,836,225 (30) 3
W a
Profit for the year atfributable to owners of the Company 479 984 1014267 (58) 2
PRRAEDARR 2 EFERF ' o §
Basic eamings per share SHHECHKST] 14 T B HKS) 48 T (58) B
Net assefs value per share SHEEHKS32.94 T EMEHKS32 75 7T 1 E
SREESE B HKS32.94 7T $32. E
Dividend per share a
BRES %
Interim B HKS0.22 1 BEHKS0.22 7 - E
i #HKS0.22 7T 3
Finol B HKS0.38 T B HKS0.48 T () [
L‘”ﬂ B HKS0.60 T B HKS0.70 7T (14)
Dividend payout ratio 53% 26% 27
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE 2w R 24
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
consolidated profit of approximately HK$446.5 million,
comparing to that of 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$1,047.9 million, representing an decrease of approximately
57.4%. The change was mainly to the decrease of revaluation
gains of the Group’s investment properties and less property

development profit recorded in the year.

Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from property
investment, property development, property management,
treasury investment, trading & manufacturing and hotel

operation.

Other income referred to various miscellaneous income other

than the main revenue.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of gain on changes in
fair value of investment properties and net exchange gains

(losses).

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
gross rental revenue of approximately HK$355 million,
decreased by approximately HK$0.7 million from approximately
of HK$355.7 million in the year of 2018, representing a

decrease of 0.2%.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group's overall occupancy of major investment properties

continued to maintain at 78.1% as at 31 December 2019.

HK PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Square

Chong Hing Square, located at 601 Nathan Road Mongkok, is
a 20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial development offers
over 182,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, Chong Hing Square
generated rental revenue of approximately HK$113.7 million,
slightly decreased by HK$0.2 million from approximately of
HK$113.9 million in 2018. The occupancy was 92% as at 31
December 2019.
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In the second half of 2019, all Hong Kong leasing properties
was seriously affected by the local social unrest. Chong Hing
Square, located at the heart of Mongkok, is one of the hard hit
areas. Most of the tenant’s business and revenue in this property
was adversely affected due to the transport disruptions, shop

closures and significant decrease of tourist arrivals.

The management had already initiated some marketing
measures and short term rental recession scheme to support and
relief tenant’s operating pressure under the current stalling
business environment. However, it is hard to estimate 2020 full
year revenue impact resulting from the protracted social activities
and the subsequent outbreak of health disease. Since the
outbreak of the coronavirus epidemic, numerous tenants having
food and beverages business had stopped and/or suspended
their business until the end of the disease. As such, the rental

revenue generated from this property will be affected in first half
of 2020.

Chong Hing Bank Centre

Chong Hing Bank Centre, located at 24 Des Voeux Road
Central, is a 26-storey Grade A office building. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, Chong Hing Bank Centre generated
rental revenue of approximately HK$92.1 million, increased by
HK$24.2 million from approximately of HK$67.9 million in

2018. The change was due to rental revision.

The Company, having retained several floors for the Group's
use, had entered into another 5-year fixed lease (starting from
19 February 2019) with Chong Hing Bank Limited at a monthly
rental of HK$7.98 million from HK$5.66 million, representing
an increase of 41%. The management regarded the new

tenancy would bring stable and good rental return to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE zatw Rk 24

Phase 4 The Grand Riviera, Foshan L1122 1& B 45 DU 2

Chong Yip Centre

Chong Yip Centre is located at 402-404 Des Voeux Road
West. It provides over 54,000 square feet of retail and
commercial space. For the year ended 31 December 2019, this
retail and commercial shopping center generated rental revenue
of approximately HK$8.9 million, decreased by 56.4% when
comparing to the year of 2018. The decrease of rental was due

to renovation work commenced in second quarter of 2019.

The management had decided to revamp the mall for gaining
higher rental return. The modern and chic concepts with bringing
more trendy retails and F&B outlets would be the main theme of
this new shopping mall. After renovation, the management
expected this would be one of the young and popular mall in the

western district.
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The new residential project under survey in Sanshui, Foshan LU= k#{EEEHBETHARTRE

Management and project team scheduled to take 18-month
construction period to complete the project. Total renovation cost
was amounted to approximately of HK$140 million and all

expenditures are funded by internal resources.

Fairview Court

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. The Group
owns 5 units, each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury
apartment on a low-rise building. For the year ended 31
December 2019, Fairview Court recorded rental revenue of
approximately HK$7.1 million, (it records net rental revenue of
HK$3.9 million after rental elimination.) This property was fully
let as at 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRC PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai

The Group’s mainland flagship property located at 288 Nanijing
Road West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai is a 36-storey
Grade A commercial building which commands a strategic
location and enviable view over The People’s Square just across
the street. With a total floor area of over 516,000 square feet of
office and commercial spaces and 198 carparks, this property
was approximately 70% let in terms of office space and 100%
let in terms of retail space as at year end. For the year ended 31
December 2019, this office building generated rental revenue of
approximately HK$127.7 million, representing a decrease of
9.6%.

Due to the keen competition and over supply of office building in
Puxi district, this office building recorded a record low
occupancy since its opening in 2009. Against the backdrop of
the continuing negotiation of phase Il Sino-US trade agreement
and the new outbreak of epidemic, the management expects it is
a difficult year in 2020.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

PRC

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

This comprehensive development situated at 1 Guilong Road,
Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan, is conveniently located
within half an hour’s drive from the Foshan financial district and

within 5 minutes’ drive from the new Foshan West Station.

Development Status

This Foshan residential project is a comprehensive development
and is developed by phases. The whole project, including Phase
1 to Phase 4, was completed and handover for occupation in

September 2018.
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Financial and Sale results

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
sale revenue of approximately HK$741.9 million of which 303
residential units were sold and recognized under consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The revenue was mainly referred to

the sale of Phase 4, The Grand Riviera Foshan.

As at 31 December 2019, a total of 5,130 residential units out
of total 5,264 units (representing 97%) and a total of 1,348
carpark units out of total 4,669 units (representing 29%) were
successfully sold out fetching accumulated sale proceeds of
approximately HK$5.4 billion. The management forecast that
further sale proceeds of approximately HK$1.3 billion would be
received if all unsold properties including residential units,
carparks and retail shops were sold under current market

conditions.

Acquisition of Land-use Rights in Sanshui District

The Group, through an indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Top
New Investment Limited, acquired a piece of land at Sanshui
district of Foshan by open land auction on 15 May 2019 for
cash consideration of RMB775.5 million. The site area of the
land is approximately 33,670.06 sq.m. with plot ratio of 3.2

times, providing total construction area over 139,000 sq.m..

Up to the date of the board meeting, the site was handed over
to our group. The preliminary site measurement and boundary
protection had been done. The first draft master layout plan was
also submitted for approval. Management and project team are
working closely to update the construction scheme and program
by taking advices from different consultants. Construction work is

scheduled to commence in the fourth quarter of 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HOTEL OPERATIONS

PRC

Budget Hotel

Since 2008, the Group started to operate budget hotel business
in Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou. All of these budget hotels
are managed by and under the brand name of Hanting. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, hotel revenue increased by
11% from approximately of HK$12.1 million in 2018 to
approximately HK$13.5 million in 2019. Due to the restructuring
of the business strategy, the Group had sold the budgeted hotels
at Shanghai and Beijing in 2016, only the hotel in Guangzhou

remains in operation.

HONG KONG

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & Serviced Residences

The previous office building (formerly known as Western
Harbour Center), located at 181-183 Connaught Road West,
was converted into a 183-room hotel and serviced residences.

The hotel was in full operation after obtaining the hotel license
on 2 December 2019.

Apart from providing 183 guest room (room size ranging from
330 sq.ft. to 1,080 sq.ft.), other facilities include two restaurants,
named The Common Room and The Tea Room, gym room, spa
room, multi-functions room, sky lounge bar and a wide range of
services and amenities. The two restaurants started operation in

the fourth quarter of 2019.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

Since the year of 2018, the Group teamed up with the same
joint venture partner, in addition to the investment in 2017, to
acquire one more warehouse (now in total 3 warehouses) in
Japan and one manufacturing plant in Australia. For the year of
2019, all these warehouses and manufacturing plant continued
to maintain stable rental revenue with 100% occupancy. The
management regarded the investment would bring the Group's
a stable return together with a long term appreciation of
properties. The share of results of joint ventures of approximately
HK$32.2 million, under equity accounting, represented the 50%
share of net asset value of the investment which included the

annual rental revenue and asset revaluation gain.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds increased from approximately
HK$12,332.8 million as at 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$12,394.0 million as at 31 December 2019,
representing a net increase of approximately HK$61.2 million.
The increase in shareholders’ funds was attributed to (a) profit
attributable to the owners of the Group of approximately
HK$429.9 million; and (b) net decrease of investment
revaluation and exchange reserves totaling approximately
HK$103.7 million; and (c) 2018 final dividend and 2019
interim dividend paid approximately HK$265 million.

FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

NET CASH BALANCE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's net cash balance (being
cash and deposits less borrowings) amounted to approximately
HK$543.4 million, decreased by approximately HK$1,075
million from approximately HK$1,618.4 million in 2018,

representing a decrease of 66%.

The decrease of net cash balance was used for the payment of
acquiring the land use rights in Sanshui and the construction

payment to One-Eight-One Hotel project.

In the years ahead, the Group’s major capital expenditures will
be incurred for the Sanshui residential project, outstanding
payment for hotel redevelopment project, and the renovation
cost of Chong Yip Centre. The management will ensure all these
capital expenditures within the budget and do not undermine the

company’s working capital.

The management expected that the Group’s cash balances could
be increased steadily further by the sale of the remaining
residential and carparks units of “The Grand Riviera”, Foshan
residential project, and the stable rental revenue generated from

different rental properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BANKING FACILITIES

Most of the banking facilities as at 31 December 2019 were
committed banking facilities. In managing the debt portfolio, the
Group has endeavored to maintain diversified sources of
funding. Currently, the major source of financing is still coming
from the banking sector, in which the Group has bilateral
banking facilities with various banks, most of which have
established long relationship with the Group. The management
will consider to widen the funding source from capital market if
both the market conditions and terms are favorable to the

Company.

The management will closely monitor the company’s funding
position, internal funding and cheaper external funding will be

used for coming development project.

LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group's financial policy to maintain positive cash
balance and high liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will
not only help the Group to fulfill all short term payment

obligations but also to improve the Group’s working capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring rental income of various
investment properties, cash sale proceeds from various
completed and uncompleted development projects and
committed banking facilities. Liquidity risk of the Group is low
and it has been further reduced by early refinancing and

improvement of cash flow.

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan
tenors. The Group's debt maturity portfolio is spread out over a
medium-long term, with 61% of debts becoming due within 2-5
years, and 8% of debts becoming due within 1-2 years
respectively. It was the fact that the Group's liquidity and cash
flow position in PRC was improved substantially following the

successful sale of Grand Riviera, Foshan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the
Group may use certain derivative instruments such as interest
rate swaps, cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements and
foreign exchange contracts. It is the Group’s policy to allow
using derivatives as hedging purposes only. With respect to the
counterparty risk of the derivatives, the Group transacts only with

financial institutions with strong investment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate
may result in a potential negative impact to the Group's financial
position. Given that, the management will actively involve and
review the movement of interest rate so as to minimize the

financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and not
to speculate in currency movement. As at 31 December 2019,
other foreign exchange exposures related to some major
investments in Shanghai, Foshan and Joint Ventures projects

which altogether amounted to the equivalent of about
HK6,038.3 million or 40.6% of the Group's total assets.

DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has entered derivative transactions with bank in
order to hedge the investment in Japan. The foreign exchange
risk exposure has been reduced by entering Cross Currency
Swap transaction for the purpose of matching the Japanese
assets with Yen borrowings. Besides, in order to minimize the
exchange rate risk effects of cash inflow, the Japanese yen
dividend receivable have been hedged by a Single Rate
Forward. The management keep closely monitoring these foreign
exchange exposures by implementing different appropriate

measures on a timely and effective manner.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE zatw Rk 24

EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY
As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a workforce of
511 (31 December 2018: 473). Staff cost for the year include

salaries, bonuses and allowances, were approximately

HK$144.0 million. (31 December 2018: HK$106.5 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and
determined by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that the
pay levels of its employee are reasonable and competitive in the
market and their total rewards including basic salary and bonus
system are linked with their performance. The members and

work done of Remuneration Committee are shown on page 40.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT e EaHEE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company has substantially complied with the Provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance

Code” or the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of Listing Rules.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the purpose of enhancing long-term
value for shareholders. The corporate governance chart adopted
by the Company could be referred to Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited Simplified Organisation Chart on page 35.

(B) DIRECTORS

(] THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP AND
CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

®  The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leadership
and supervision of the senior management for the purpose
of creating long-term shareholder value and producing a

sustainable growth and successful business.

* The principal tasks of the Board are to set objectives,
formulate strategies and to monitor the operating and

financial performance.

e The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate

and effective risk management and internal control systems.

* The Board also oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems, and management should
provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of

these systems.

*  Duties of the Board include approving interim and annual
reporfs, announcements and press releases of interim and
final results, setting the dividend policy, and approving the
issue, allotment, disposal or grant of options in respect of

unissued new shares of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR DIVISION
OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has clear and distinct division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Managing
Director.

Mr. Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board, provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board. The Managing Director is responsible for the
Company'’s business, daily management and operations
generally.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for the
Group's operation and performance by delegating duties
to different Executive Directors and senior management fo
achieve targeted objectives. The Board gives clear
directions to management of their powers and
circumstances in which the management should submit a

report.

Throughout the year, the role of Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company has not been
segregated as required by the code provision A.2.1 of the
Code. The Board considers this arrangement is in the best
interest of the Company that by nature of the Group's
business which requires considerable market expertise and
Mr. Liu Lit Chi, with his profound experiences in the
property and banking industry, shall continue in his dual
capacity as the Chairman and Managing Director.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, one
Non-executive Director and five Independent Non-executive
Directors. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Board met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least one-third of the Board should be

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors
strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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(iv)

The Board considers that the five Independent Non-
executive Directors are free from any businesses or other
relationships which might interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgment and each Independent Non-
executive Director brings his own relevant expertise to the
Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
could ensure that the Board functions effectively and
independently.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
committee members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. In short, these

committees have Independent Non-executive Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate
Governance Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising
three Executive Directors and two Independent Non-
executive Directors to perform the corporate governance

duties.

The biographies of the directors appear on pages 108 to
116. These demonstrate diversity of experience and calibre

of the Board in making management decisions.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

Those directors who have been longest in office as at each
annual general meeting shall retire from office and be

subjected to re-election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to submit
themselves to shareholders for re-election to the Board at
the first annual general meeting following their

appointment.

All directors have entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company and were appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election and retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

(iv)
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Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Under the Article 105, 106 and 113 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, all directors including

the Managing Director are subject to retirement by rotation.

Details of the term of appointment of all Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are as

follows:

(i) to perform such functions and exercise such powers as
are appropriate to the position as an Independent
Non-executive Directors or Non-executive Directors of

the Company;

(i) to comply with all laws, rules and regulations
applicable to be a director of the Company, including

but not limit to the Listing Rules; and

(iii) to notify the Board immediately upon the occurrence
of, or the directors becoming aware of, any matter

which may affect their independence.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Management Committee are

available to review on the Company’s website.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES AND
SHARE DEALINGS

The directors fully appreciate their roles and duties as
directors with supportive commitment of creating a healthy

corporate governance culture.

On appointment, new directors will be given an
intfroduction to the Group’s major business activities,
induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other

regulatory requirements.

Throughout the year, all directors complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules regarding Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers.
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(Vi)

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Code provision A.6.5 proposes that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of attending
continuous professional training for the year ending 31
December 2020.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, the Company Secretary also an
Executive Director of the Company, is a full time employee
of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman of the Board or Executive
Management Committee on governance matters and also
facilitates induction and professional development of the
directors. All directors have access to the advices and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year, the Company Secretary has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biography of Mr.
Lee is set out in the section “Biographical Details of

Directors and Senior Management” in the annual report.
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(C) BOARD PROCESS

U

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD
DECISION AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate
governance and in compliance with the requirement as
mentioned under Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance
Code, the Board has performed to hold full Board meeting
at least quarterly during the year 2019.

The Executive Management Committee was established on
30 October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liuv Kam Fai, Winston, Mr.
Liv Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung.
Based on the duly approved terms of reference by the

Board, the committee is authorised:

(1) to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on
all matters relating to the daily management and

operations of the Company and its subsidiaries;
(2) to discuss significant daily operational issues;

(3) to review key business performance and take prompt

corrective actions as appropriate;

(4) to discuss and formulate financial policy, including
review and present of final and interim results of the
Company to the Board, as well as make

recommendation of interim and/or final dividends or

other distributions to the Board;

(5) to discuss business opportunities arising from
changing conditions so as to formulate policies to

sustain the growth of the Company; and

(6) The Executive Management Committee is currently
receiving monthly management report which shows
the Group’s financial and operating results with

detailed analysis of different business activities.

The main function of the committee could help to relieve the
Board of detailed review of information and to increase the
operational efficiency among different departments. For the
avoidance of doubt, all matters that require public
announcement pursuant to the Listing Rules or rules of any
other relevant regulatory body must be approved by the
Board.
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Matters reserved for full Board decision include material
bank facilities arrangements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, material transactions with connected
parties, significant investments including large capital
projects, delegation of authority, treasury and risk
management policies and any matters involving a conflict

of interest for a substantial shareholder or director.

All directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with and advises the Board on corporate

governance and compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
the Board and the Board committee meetings, which are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final signed
version is sent to all directors for their records and open for

directors’ inspection.

All directors are allowed to take independent professional

advice at Company'’s expense.

The Company has purchased the Directors and Officers

Liability insurance.

Details of 2019 Board meetings attendance record are set
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out below: T
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEERRH HEE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Liu Lit Chi BAE
(Chairman, Managing Director and (TF EBBLEFTHER)
Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston B4
(Deputy Managing Director) (FIEZLLE) 4/4 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B, 4/4 100%
Lee Wai Hung TRk 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Liv Lit Chung (deceased on 11 July 2019) BAR(K=F-NELAT-Hiftt) 2/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher 5 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 2/4 50%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BHR 4/4 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John B 4/4 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo bl 4/4 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric E& 4/4 100%
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m

SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND TIMELINESS
The Company attaches great importance to continually
improve on the quality and timeliness of the dissemination

of information to the directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply

of information to the directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent
in full to all directors in a timely manner (we aim to give
relevant documents at least five clear days replacing
current practice of at least three clear days in advance of
meeting). Where appropriate, communications are sent

electronically.

All directors are currently provided with quarterly
management reports which shows the Group’s financial
and operating results with detailed analysis of those major
rental properties, property under development and other

investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, was regularly
taken for the purpose of reviewing and updating the
Company’s business and operating results with reference to

the quarterly management report.

Managing Director is currently holding internal
management meetings twice a week with all Executive
Directors and different department heads to update
directors on their lines of business and to review

performance for delegated assignment.

Executive Management Committee meetings were held
twice a week to discuss the daily operation and to review
the Company matters by reference to monthly management

reports.

58

)

ErHEY - ERTIREE
BENZNESERENZERM
REMERAAR 2ERE -

IEARERRAESERALE
%o
BRRBNNESEXHERES
RYXGFEES (BEREDEAN
ARERMEXYE  RREEANE
HEZRWBAHE) - EBEENR
T EBET HFRBRER -

FEESERERUETEEER
T ARRHARECMBEREE
EHBE N APEEXEME
W% - BRPYEREMIRE -

BEEHET-RE2REFES
& RBEZFEEERESEMAREN

ESRAKERRSBoRERBH
TESRTERMEERITARNE
HER NEFRUEREEB R
ik R EREERIRTEZRR

HOTEEZE S8 BARTMAE
& AR EESH UBEE
AEERERNARDTEE -



() RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

After the year ended of 2015, the Executive Management
Committee had engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) to provide consultancy services in relation to
enterprise risk management and internal controls. The Board
understands that it is the Board’s responsibility to evaluate the
risks of the Company and to implement the Company’s strategic
objective through an established, appropriate and effective risk

management and internal control systems.

Senior management had discussed with Deloitte regarding to the
Company’s existing system and internal controls and an
appropriate policy and detailed work plan had been formulated

after having identified the main area of risks.

®  During the year of 2019, the management had completed
enterprise risk management and the internal control
assessment and various follow up actions had been done
based on the findings and recommendations by Deloitte.
The management highly regards the internal controls and
considered that such review based on the identified audit
areas, will be performed annually so as to manage the risk

and control the effectiveness of the system.

(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set directors and

senior management’s remuneration policy:

e The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3
March 2005.

determine the remuneration packages for all directors and

Its terms of reference are to review and

senior management.

® The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, including three of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman),

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and a
Non-executive Director, Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher.

®  The committee meets at least once per annum.
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e The main duties of the committee include the followings:

() to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors and senior management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent

procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payment
and any compensation payable for loss or termination

of their office or appointment;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors;

(iv) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s

corporate goals and objectives.

e Details of 2019 Remuneration Committee meeting

attendance record are set out below:
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Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEGERY HEE

Members of Remuneration Committee FMEEERE
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman) BEE (1) 0/1 0%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HER 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John B 0/1 0%
Cheng Yuk Wo BL&A 1/1 100%
Cavior Liv (Secretary) BHE (HE) 1/1 100%

e  The committee is authorised by the Board to oversee and
determine the remuneration of Executive Directors and

senior management.

e No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
On matters other than those concerning him, the Chairman
or Managing Director may be invited to committee

meetings fo give advices.

RESREFEREEEREES
TEERSREEAE ZHM -

WHEESSERTEBCHEFMH - KR
ESHRABAGEBENEEN £
FRESAKETRALEZES
SRURHER -



(E)
U)

)

Committee members are allowed under certain procedures
to take independent professional advice at Company’s
expense for making and determining the remuneration

package proposal.

The committee will present a report to the Board after each

meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees for
all Directors, for shareholders approval at the annual

general meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in the

Remuneration Committee Report on page 40.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's position and prospects in all shareholder

communications.

The Board fully understands its responsibilities regarding

the preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF REFERENCE
AND RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT AND EXTERNAL
AUDITORS

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members, all
of them are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Dr. Cheng Mo Chi,
Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum,

Eric.

All members have experience in reviewing and analysing
audited financial statements of public companies or major

organisations.
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*  The committee meets not less than twice per annum. The

Chairman, the Managing Director and the Executive

Director who is in charge of finance matters may be invited

to the meetings. The committee also meets not less than

twice per annum with the Company’s auditor.

e The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

to be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an

external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duties to have effective systems. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experiences, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s

accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and

management’s response fo these findings;
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(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting

policies and practices;

(ix) to review the external auditor’'s management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management about the accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and management’s

response; and

(x) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditor’s

management letter.

Details of 2019 Audit Committee meetings attendance

record are set out below:
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Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEERRH HEE

Members of Audit Committee BENZEEZE
Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman) BHN(FE) 2/2 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 1/2 50%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BHR 2/? 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEEH 2/2 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TRIEHE) 2/? 100%

Under its terms of reference, the committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
external auditors, to review the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements, and to evaluate the Group's

system of internal controls.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee
members to take independent professional advice at

Company’s expense.

The committee presents a report or makes advice to the

Board after each meeting for addressing their work done
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() AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the auditor had
received from the Company and its subsidiaries approximately
HK$3.33 million for audit and audit related services (2018:
HK$3.13 million) as well as HK$0.5 million for non-audit
services (2018: HK$0.4 million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE SYSTEM TO

(F)

SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS AND COMPANY
ASSETS

Risk management is a crucial part of the Group's strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial

position and to protect its assets.

The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to
identify and manage the risks that the Group may be

exposed to.

These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
Executive Management Committee together with the
assistance of external auditors during the course of audit
and separate assignment to ensure their effectiveness and

compliance with Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

The Managing Director and Executive Directors will discuss
with external auditor in the Audit Committee meeting at
least twice a year on key issues in relation to internal

controls, audit findings and risk management.

As concluded in 2019 Audit Committee meeting, no
irregularities and major weakness in control were found by

the auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 7
March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of
the Board. The committee shall comprise members not less
than three and a majority of the committee is Independent

Non-executive Directors.
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®  The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Liu

Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board.

e  Other members are Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma

Hung Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun
Sum, Eric (Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr.

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive Director).
The committee meets at least once per annum.
The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i) toreview the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience required) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement

the Company's corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;

[iii) to assess the independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors of the Company; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the directors and
succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Details of 2019 Nomination Committee meeting attendance

record are set out belows:

REZESTIFRAESEIREE
NERERME -

ZEERNHMESOEE LY
TESERRLE  BHRHEEL -
BHFEMTERBEREE UK
HITESTRRLE -

EEESFELRTRBHE -
FEEIEREQETHIEE

() ZIBFERNEZSSZ2HRE
ABRAR(BEREE - A&
REBRFAE)LREMBES
ARBzKBEMBEHESSHF
Hz2BRHER

(i) MeEREEEERATEREIERA
AEEZALT  WHRERE
AMATHEEESMBEBES
SRHER

(i) FARAERARBILIHTESEZ
B R

(ivy RESHNZEEIREFEZEIRE
E(HFH—REAATEERITH
BE)NETTIQNESSR
B o

CE-NFERAZEEERUE
FOSREHIANT

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERH HEE

Members of Nomination Committee REZZXEEZEE
Liv Lit Chi (Chairman) BAE () 1/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FER 1/1 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo bl 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BiRR 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 0/1 0%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEE4 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TR (HE) 1/1 100%
e  Committee members are allowed to take independent ¢ ZEEZEASRKRBUZEER

professional advice at Company’s expense. ERHARE A -
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(G)

Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the

Nomination Committee Report on pages 38 to 39.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible

for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.

Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.

lts other current members are Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston,
and Mr. Lee Wai Hung, both of them are Executive
Directors of the Company and two Independent Non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John.
The committee meets at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the
policy for the corporate governance of the Company. The
duties performed by the Corporate Governance Committee

include the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors of the
Company and the senior management;

[iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct

applicable to the directors and the employees of the

Company;

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report as required under the

Listing Rules; and

BESE

(G)

FRARBZEGRERIEFE
HNEIBEIVEZREZEER
.:%W °
FRREZESHEEE 113
BEARNBNREEZIME -

EEELREET
RRABAR=ZZF-Z-F=RLHKI
TXEREES TEEEBTE
e REERR

XERZEEETFEHBERE L

ZEERRAMEZESEEBEEESL
ERFEERE 2HPREAT
HITES  URMUBLIFNTE
EEBRTERERHEL -

ZEEEBFELHET-REE-
TEEREEEEEARALEE
BHE  hEEREEERETZ

BERETHEE:

(i) HIFTRBIAERABZEEER
BERRER YHEEERH
=

(i) BMEARERAQARANEERS
’éﬁ}\ﬁziﬁm&%"\zéiﬁé
&

BMARERERARBDZHERT
RRBETEEREERE

(i)

(iv) #FT - MR REEEARELD
AEERESEZITHATR

V) BNAQRBDREETLEE
JARBERELD %EEJJZ*E
EREEERREFHIKE
53



(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department heads
from time to time requesting them to review their
corporate governance within the department and
require them to submit proposal or remedy action to

redress the matters.

Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁ*‘w’ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ
ERFEERFTHIMR

Zu—.%g/n  WIREERBER

RITENMEBBEEE °

(vi) ;F

° Details of 2019 Corporate Governance Committee meeting ~ ® —E-hEELEETLRTEESE
attendance record are set out below: HEREREIINT

Number of Attendance
meefing attended rate
HEEHRY HEE

Members of Corporate Governance Committee TEERREEEE
Liv Kwun Shing, Christopher (Chairman) B (£/) 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B#HR 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John 5] 1/1 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston B4E 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 1/1 100%

(H)
l)

Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company’s expense.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance

Committee are available on the Company’s website.

DELEGATION BY BOARD

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different departmental
heads) fully appreciate their respective roles with supportive
commitments of creating a healthy corporate governance

culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes that
management (include different departmental heads) has in

place to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board has delegated management functions to
Executive Management Committee and different department
heads for the Company’s operations and daily business

affairs.

(H)
(n

ZESZERERNBIYEES
R BREEARDEEE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF REFERENCE AND
REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has five Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and
Executive Management Committee, each of the Committees

have specific written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and

all members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi, Moses and has a majority of Independent Non-

executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Lit Chi,
the Chairman of the Board and has a majority of

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher and comprises two Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors of

the Company.

The Executive Management Committee comprises four

Executive Directors of the Company.

Each Board committees present their respective reports to
the Board after each meeting, for addressing their work

done and findings.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
PREAMBLE

This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practices in

relation to communicating with its shareholders and prospective

investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of open
and timely disclosure of relevant information on its activities

to shareholders, subject to applicable legal requirements.

The Company believes that providing regular
communications to its shareholders and the market is
important to ensure they have the available information
reasonably required to make informed assessments of the

Company's strategy, operations and financial performance.
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()

Communication channels

Communication is made through:

the Company’s annual and interim reports, which
have been enhanced to present a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the

Group position and prospects.

notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual
and other general meetings, which have been
enhanced to provide shareholders with additional

information in an understandable manner.

press releases on major developments of the Company

and its subsidiaries.

disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant

regulatory bodies.

Company'’s website at http://www.Ichi.com.hk from
which shareholders can access information of the
Group. The website provides, inter alia, corporate
announcements, business development and
operations, press releases, financial reports, and

corporate information of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The Board regards the annual general meeting as the

principal opportunity to meet with shareholders and

welcome any constructive opinions.

(i)
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Details of director’s attendance record of the annual
general meeting of the Company held for year ended 31

December 2019 are set out below:

BESE

BE-ZE-NAF+-A=1t—-HL
FEZARNARRASESHERT
SEEIIMT -

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEZRE HER
Execufive Directors HiTES
Liv Lit Chi (Chairman) BAE () 1/1 100%
Liv Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing Director) BB (FZEFELE) 1/1 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung 3 1/1 100%
Non-executive Directors Ff 'E?
Liv Lit Chung (deceased on 11 July 2019) BAR(K=F-NELtAT-Hift) 1/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher TR 1/1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIHTES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses e 0/1 0%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BiRR 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John EE 1/1 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo HHN 1/1 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEE4 1/1 100%

The Company arranges for the annual report and financial
statements and related papers to be posted for
shareholders so as to allow at least 21 days for
consideration prior to the annual general meeting. And all

other general meetings to be sent at least 14 days.

The Board encourages and supports shareholder
participation in general meetings. Shareholders are
encouraged to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend

such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the

highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board
committees and the external auditor of the Company will
attend the annual general meetings to answer questions

from the shareholders.

AERREZTHVEBEE  KNAF
ZHRBRREAFAEHNEDL21H@
BRRTFEFH  PBREREBEX
o MBAMEHMERRAEMS
ARERSRTAED 14BBXE
Ao
EFEFRRIERRSERRK
S -ESERRERHERERAE
ZRRERRRAEEFERS LR

ét X?R

ExETHRTETFRRSERR

EZ%%U  BRESERBERA
ES SIS

EXEXIF EZEEEEEZR
BRADNTZIIBERHBEESER
REFAREUmERRZEM -



() SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

®  Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the public
are responded by the Executive Directors, Director of
Finance, Company Secretary or the appropriate members
of senior management.

e The Company will respond in a timely manner to
shareholders’ queries and concerns.

(IV) THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

e All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting
rights. Annual general meeting proceedings are continually
reviewed in the light of Code on Corporate Governance
Practices.

*  Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual directors.

*  Preparation of a comprehensive annual general meeting
circular containing:

e  reelection of directors;

e general mandate to buy-back shares;

e general mandate to issue shares;

e amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
®  voting at annual general meeting; and

®  comprehensive information on each resolution to be
proposed.

The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to
demand and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at
shareholders’ meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll
and the poll procedures are included in all circulars in relation
to shareholders’ meetings and will be explained during the
proceedings of shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is
conducted, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on the business day following
the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.|chi.com.hk where the Company’s
announcements, business development and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of
shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on page 31.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
GENERAL MEETING (“GM”)

Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote may request

to call a GM of the Company.

The written request: (a) must state the general nature of the
GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
GM; (c) must be signed by the shareholders making such
request, and (d) may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more of those shareholders. A
request by joint holders of shares must be signed by all

such holders.

The request should be deposited at the registered office of
the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified by the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is valid,
the Company Secretary will convene a GM on behalf of
the Board by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements or applicable rules or regulations

to all the registered shareholders.

If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders

concerned will be informed and no GM will be convened.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
themselves convene a GM, but any GM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the

date of the deposit of the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be proposed
as a special resolution, the directors shall be deemed not to
have duly convened the GM if they do not give such notice
as is required by section 578 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

BREBRABRRXE(TRRXEDZ
BF
RHEZHTDORE%FRREZRRA
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(VI PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD

PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give notice
of a resolution if it has received requests from the following

number of shareholders:

(i)  Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote on
the resolution at the annual general meeting to which

the request relates; or

(i) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting

to which the request relates.

The written request: (a) must be signed by all the
shareholders concerned; (b) must be sent to the Company
in hard copy form at the registered office of the Company;
(c) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (d) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and (e) must be received by the Company not
later than 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to
which the requests relate; or if later, the time at which

notice is given of that meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is valid,
the Company will give notice of the resolution or circulate

the statement provided that:

(a) if the request relates to an annual general meeting,

(i) the proposed statement must be received in time
to enable the Company to send a copy of the
statement when the notice of annual general

meeting is despatched;

(i) and, the shareholders concerned have to deposit
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company'’s expenses in regard thereto not later

than 7 days before the annual general meeting.

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an annual
general meeting), the shareholders concerned have to
deposit a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the

Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later than

7 days before the GM.
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e |If the request is verified to be not in order or the
shareholders concerned have failed in the above manner to
deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the shareholders concerned will be
advised of the result and no action will be taken by the

Company in that regard.

®  Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under section 615 of the
Companies Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must
send a copy of it at the Company’s own expenses to each
shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the annual general meeting in the same manner as the
notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or as soon
as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the

meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation and
regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622,
Laws of Hong Kong). For further details on the shareholder
qualifications, and the procedures and timeline, shareholders
are kindly requested to refer to Sections 566 to 567, 571, 578,
580 to 582, 610 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong).

(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including
Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules
and the articles of association of the Company as amended from
time to time, if any shareholder(s) of the Company intends to
propose a person other than a director of the Company for
election as a director of the Company at any GM, the following

procedures shall apply:

®  a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged with the Board at the

registered office of the Company;
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e the minimum length of the period during which such
notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days and that the
period for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
GM appointed for such election and end no later than 7

days prior to the date of such GM; and

* in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the
Company of that proposal, such notice(s) for the nomination
of a director must state the full name of the person
nominated for election as a director and include the
person’s biographical details as required by the Listing
Rules.

(J) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were changes to the Company’s Articles of Association in
the annual general meeting held on 29 April 2015 and 15 May
2018, the shareholders of the Company had approved the
amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company. The
changes were carried out in compliance with the latest Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which came into effect
on 3 March 2014. The revised Articles of Association is

available in the Company’s website.
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B

ABOUT LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

Liv Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) acknowledge the
significance of effective environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) initiatives at an operational level. The Group is
committed to the principles of good corporate governance, and
strives to integrate corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) into its
corporate ethos. In 2019, the Group succeeded in developing
its business while promoting initiatives that benefit the
environment, our staff and the community, continuing to

contribute to the building of a harmonious society.

The principal activities of the Group are property investment,
property management, investment-holding and hotel
management. In the year ended 31 December 2019, our
primary properties were located in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). They comprised offices and

commercial, residential and industrial buildings.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) as set
out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK"). In the preparation of this ESG report, we adhere to
the four core principles of the ESG Guide, namely the
Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency principles. In
addition, we have adhered to the ESG Guide in terms of the

presentation and measurement of data for this ESG report.

The reporting period of this ESG report is from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019 (“Reporting Period”). During the
Reporting Period, the Group was principally engaged in
property investment, development and management. This ESG

report relates mainly to those business activities.
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

In light of the impact of global warming and environmental
pollution, the Group continues to seek opportunities to protect
the environment. We have integrated environmental
considerations into our business operations, including but not
limited to improving our environmental track record by
minimising pollution, utilising energy efficiently and reducing
waste in our daily operations, as well as by aligning with the

best practices in sustainable buildings.

ENERGY-SAVING CHARTER

In support of government initiatives on addressing climate
change, the Group signed the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department’s “Energy Saving Charter 2019” for Chong
Hing Bank Centre and Chong Hing Square. This Charter
promotes energy efficiency and energy-saving, one of the most
crucial means for Hong Kong to continuously reduce its carbon
emissions. The Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
has set four targets under the Charter: (i) maintaining indoor
room temperatures between 24°C and 26°C during summer, (ii)
switching off appliances and systems when not in use, (iii)
procuring energy-efficient appliances and systems (e.g.
appliances with Grade 1 energy labels/Voluntary Energy
Efficiency Labelling Schemes) and (iv) encouraging staff to adopt

energy-saving practices.

LEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL
DESIGN (“LEED”)

The Group is committed to maintaining environmental
sustainability by focusing on green building operation and
maintenance. Recently, we decided to adopt the U.S. Green
Building Council’s LEED frameworks for Chong Hing Finance
Center in Shanghai, to improve environmental standards, reduce
operational costs and improve building quality. In May 2019,
we appointed an environmental consultant to assess the
building’s compliance with LEED requirements. We made further
enhancements in some areas after considering the
recommendations of our consultant, including heat-island

reduction and light-pollution reduction.

A subsequent assessment had been completed by the consultant
at the end of November 2019 and we have consolidated all the
relevant records and information for application submission to
USGBC, while the final issue of LEED Gold Certification is
anticipated in May 2020.
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EMISSIONS

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) emissions have been reported to
have a major effect on climate change and global warming. In
support of environmental protection initiatives around the world,
and to minimise GHG emissions and non-hazardous waste, we
have implemented industry-standard measures and initiatives in
a number of areas, including deployment of energy-efficient
systems, implementation of waste-recycling and pollution

prevention.

During the Reporting Period, we participated in the
Environmental Protection Department’s Indoor Air Quality
Scheme and have been awarded “Indoor Air Quality
Certification — Good Class” for Chong Hing Square and Chong
Hing Bank Centre.

Under the regulations for electric-vehicle charging facilities in the
PRC, the Group has installed several electric-vehicle chargers,
covering not less than 15% of the total parking space at Chong
Hing Finance Center in Shanghai. This helps to reduce energy
wastage and air pollution, as well as promote the use of electric

vehicles.

Such charging facilities have also been installed at One-Eight-
One Hotel & Serviced Residences in Hong Kong, both for hotel

guest use as well as for the hotel’s own fleet of Tesla limousines.

We encourage our employees to comply with our environmental-
protection policies and measures, as well as relevant laws and
regulations. To comply with applicable environmental-protection
laws and regulations, the operations of Chong Hing Bank
Centre, Chong Hing Square and Fairview Court are governed
by the requirements of ISO 14001 : 2015, which is certified by
the British Standard Institution (BSI).

B

BHE REREHFRERERELCRE
BRECEEAZE HERHRAZHN
BRER TRERVBEEREHFRR
BERY EMEZEESBERTITX
SERENTE BRENBHERS
B eI B UL K5 R A o

EHREHE ZMASHEREREBINE
REREZEE > MAIEES KA RE

THORBERZENEZREEMREEE(R
SRSV
RETFEEH TEXTEREHEBERE

AEBEREBRAIEESHPOZESE
EFTERER  BETIRISKNE
B EEPRLERRERZRTR
WHEENEBTEAIE o

3 M IR 1£ & 78 B One-Eight-One /B & & R
BEAAFEZHLEZERE  ABEE
BERBEN TeslaBBEEHEEA o
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Air emissions during the Reporting Period are as follows: WMEHIRERERIT ¢ g
Unit 2019 2018 é
Bfi “E-nE 2-\% 5
<
Emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption and vehicles z
FERBRERRRENERBE >
Nifrogen Oxide (NO ) tonne 3,161.77 1,509.17 o
A[LMNO) WE o}
Sulphur Oxide (S0) tonne 15.73 151 3
B4 (S0) L >
GHG emissions during the Reporting Period: HEHEHRERELEK : §
Unit 2019 2018 g
L “8-1x = 7
Direct emissions or removals from sources (Scope 1) g
ERRERBARRAR(HE) @
GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 115.95 104.03 g
RBENRERENBZEREHR &1Lz (C0,) H I
Methane (CH,) kg 261.04 234.20 %
i (CH,) A B
Nitrous oxide (N,0) fonne 16.83 15.10
AfLERN,0) H
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2)
REREREHN (£E))
Electricity purchased from power companies™ Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 470.76 384.37
aENAFAREEN" &1Lz (C0,) H
Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 9.83 4.69
REBRERFAABENER &1Lz (C0,) H
Other Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 3)
HitEERERBHH (HE?)
Electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage
by govemment departments** Carbon Dioxide (CO,) kg 1,545.54 1,885.40
BRBMHEER KRS KEEENE D &1Lz (C0,) Ny
Business air travel by employees Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 14.81 15.86
EERLRKLENE Z8 LBz (C0) H
* Electricity consumption for our offices in Fung Yip Building is based on the latest available data, which covers the ABEEEARNBAERERNERENIEHE  REH
periods 1 January 2019 to 24 December 2019 BANA-E-hE-F-HE-E-AE+-A=tMEA -
** Water consumption for our offices in Chong Hing Bank Centre, Chong Hing Square, Chong Yip Cenfre ond Fung ~ ** ABEARBTH AEES  AFETFOREERENHEL
Yip Building is based on the latest available data, which covers the periods 1 January 2019 o 21 August 2019, ZRKENERBHTSEE BEDEIRA-S-1E-
1 January 2019 to 23 September 2019, 1 January 2019 to 17 July 2019 and 1 January 2019 to 30 October A-RZ-Z-A%NB=t-H -“E-NF-f-RZ=
2019 respectively. B-NERAZTZR ZE-NF-BA-BEZE-NEL

ATtER=E-hE-A-RE-E-AETA=1H
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

Our business operations did not generate any significant
hazardous waste during the Reporting Period. Nonetheless, we
recognise the importance of waste reduction. Waste-
management measures have been introduced to minimise both
the amount of waste generated and its impact on the
environment. For example, to reduce paper consumption in
Chong Hing Square’s washrooms, the Group installed automatic

hand dryers instead of providing paper towels.

As a result of our efforts in promoting recycling, we are pleased
to note that the recycling rates for plastic and aluminium cans at
our properties are substantially increased during the Reporting
Period.

Recycled materials during the Reporting Period:

FE 4 &I

EHREHE BANEBEEREEE
MEXREEEY BEWML - HMASH
RO BEMNEEZEN - LS REEY
EEEE SERLELENBENEUR
BEHSRENLE - Hl - B AIE
BEAFENRRERE  ARECZE
BERF2 - KA AL

EEFHEFOW > RARSEELHR
HHESRYENER K EEDWERR
@ LEF o

REMENBEME

Materials recycled Unit 2019 2018
BEMHE B —E-hE —E-N\E
Plastic kg 2.07 2,107
28 N
Paper kg 0.81 21,983
# D
Aluminium Cans kg 87.68 8,112
i N
Hlectronic Waste (e.g. Used fluorescent lamps and tubes) kg = 50
ETRN(NEEREREREE) N

USE OF RESOURCES
We continue to endeavour in reducing waste, conserving water,
and saving energy in our properties through sustainability

innovations.

BERER
BMPEEBBISERRRN  E8ERY
SEEATIRUEE ~ B R EIRE o



ENERGY-SAVING

Global warming and climate changes are the major
environmental problems facing the world. The Group has
established a series of measures to promote the awareness of
energy-saving particularly at One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced

Residences.

The Group’s measures to improve the energy efficiency of its

operations during the Reporting Period are highlighted below:

B RE
PHRBRLERKESLCEHASHEERHN
FTERBEBE - AKEBEEFHTE—RIE
e LLiR & B BE B3 © L H & One-Eight-
One BJE R RBXEE ©

EHREHNE AEEARSHEEENRE
RMEEHNEZRENT ¢

Head Office e Setting and maintaining average room femperatures between 24—26°C
& BIHERNREREREFTRK 242 260E 28 |

e Switching off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers and monitors) that is not in use, and

BETERNBARE (MT0H  ERRETRE) R

e Switching off some passenger lifts after office hours

ERLBBECRRI RS

Investment Properties o Using light-emitting diode (“LED") lighting on buildings” exterior billboards
REME ERFHENEERERRE R -BE (D) RH;

e Switching off lighting in areas that are not occupied, and

BERFEREINRSA &

e Having dedicated staff conduct regular inspections and monitor energy consumption

MEATHRERERERER -

Hotel Operation e Using double Low-E coating on external windows, to minimise the transmission of ultraviolet and infrared light, and
BEEME ENELRAEEEEHNER REHDLIMERAMRNEN ) &

e Switching off some passenger lifts at midnight

EFREEABDARES

Unit 2019 2018

Bl -2y K2 “E-)\F
Electricity Consumption* kWh 628,678.79 519,983.17
HEE* TRK

kWh/employee 1,860.00 1,160.68

TRE/&I

*

Electricity consumption for our offices in Fung Yip Building is based on the latest available data, which covers the
periods 1 January 2019 to 24 December 2019.

The Group will continue to monitor and improve performance on
consumption levels of resources and further initiatives will be

implemented if necessary.

. AMESERENRAERESNEANEHUEHE  REH
HoRAZE-NE-A-AE-2-NE+-A=tHEA-

REBRBEBREERREERBEKT
MIRRR - WTEB ML ERIKEGE — 18 o
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PAPER USAGE

In our daily operations, employees are reminded to reduce
paper consumption as a matter of good practice. During the
Reporting Period, the Group implemented initiatives to achieve

waste reduction and recycling.

In order to reduce the paper usage on our carpark management
system at Chong Hing Finance Center in Shanghai, an automatic
licence plate recognition system (ALPR) has been placed in
2019. The system includes standard-resolution IP cameras
designed specifically for licence plate recognition. To prevent
misidentification, we have installed a special lighting system
near the barrier. As a result, no more physical carpark tickets
are required from this automated system. Also, we accept
electronic payment — for example, WeChat Pay — to make all

parking processing and transactions paperless at this property.

USE OF BIODEGRADABLE TABLEWARE

As part of measures to reduce impact on the environment, eco-
friendly products are a solution to minimising pollution. For food
and beverage operations at One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced
Residences, we provide recyclable paper straws and some
biodegradable tableware, such as corn-based disposables for
takeaway orders. Furthermore, we use bamboo tissue instead of
tissue paper made out of wood pulp. Bamboo grows up to 30%
faster than trees so it could reduce environmental harm
consequently. We are committed to building a strong foundation

for living a sustainable life.

WATER MANAGEMENT

Chong Hing Bank Centre complies with the suggested standards
of Water Supplies Department’s Quality Water Supply Scheme
for Buildings. To promote water conservation, signs and notices
are posted near washbasins, and sensors are installed at taps to

control water consumption.

4R 5 1 F

HEEEFD BMREEEZERRY
EXRL AR EREHE *EESE
DRDEMRRERWER

ARLEBRARESHMPUEESEER
BHAE  BAR-ZF-NFREER
HEN R RL (ALPR) - BEERREERE
RN EEMRGEIPEEMK - R LE
e HAI ISR AT B AT 22 S PR Y AR
REL At ZEBERETEAE
BEEHZE- IO BAEZEFXM
(WHEXN)  BRUENEFER
BRRZEDERKL -

ERATAEMBERER
RBBROHRENTE  EHRRE
MBI SREBERERIE - £One
EightOne B /E R RBXEENEREE
P EMARRTERNERRERET
AEYEEER - GINEINETERER
UERBFERWEENXAme o &
MEATERLEARRR  BRATHER
HREBRBARMR3I0% @ AT LURDHRIFN
BE RMABLATHELEEEARTE
REMER -

KiREE
RIERITHROERKEBENRKEEEMR
KAAENBZERE - ATRETL
AXk BEEAFEMARMEFRE
™o WHEKEBREZKBES  EZEH
RKE -

Unit 2019 2018

Bfi b L ¥ —E2-)\F
Water Consumption™* m? 2,909.45 2,130.39
FEkE™ YK

m?/employee 8.61 4.76

Yhk/8T

*k

Water consumption for our offices in Chong Hing Bank Centre, Chong Hing Square, Chong Yip Centre and Fung
Yip Building is based on the latest available data, which covers the periods 1 January 2019 to 21 August 2019,
1 January 2019 to 23 September 2019, 1 January 2019 o 17 July 2019 and 1 January 2019 to 30 October
2019 respectively.

* BBEAEBTHL ARES  AEPOREERENHEA
ERKENERGHIEYE  RENMIRA-E-NE-
B-HEZZ-nENAZ+-B ZE-NE-B-HEZ
E-NEAAZT=R “E-hE-B-HEZE-NEt
AttBR=E-NE-B-RZ-E-AF+A=1H-



The Group will continue to monitor and improve performance on
water consumption level and further initiatives will be

implemented if necessary.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to any

pollution ordinances or regulations.

RECRUITMENT AND EMPLOYMENT

The Group recognises that employees are valuable assets and
that our success is to a significant extent underpinned by our
employees. On this understanding, we have an allencompassing
approach for recruitment, employment, promotion and retention,
coupled with reasonable remuneration and benefits for our
employees. In relation to employment and labour practices, we
strictly comply with the laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
the PRC. We advocate a community spirit that thrives on mutual
respect and equal opportunities, and we comply strictly with the

relevant laws and regulations.

The Group ensures that a fair and equal recruitment process is in
place. Candidates are considered regardless of their gender,
age, race, family status, religion or disability. The Group
provides equal opportunities to all employees for promotion and

career development.

For the protection of candidates in the recruitment process, we
confirm that all candidate information will only be used for
recruitment purposes, and can only be accessed by authorised
staff. Information on unsuccessful candidates will normally be

erased 24 months after their applications.

A comprehensive framework incorporating detailed human
resource management policies is included in our Operation
Manual and Staff Handbook. The Operation Manual and Staff
Handbook provides information and guidelines to our staff in
both Hong Kong and the PRC in the areas of working conditions,
benefits and remuneration, training and development, as well as
health and safety. Employees are also encouraged to discuss
their job advancement and career development goals with the
senior management who oversee their daily activities, and a

performance appraisal is conducted annually.
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EMPLOYEE WELFARE

The Group strictly follows labour laws and regulations and
provides a comprehensive package to employees, which covers
sick leave, casual leave (i.e. leave of absence at short notice for
personal matters or family emergencies), marriage,
compassionate, annual and injury leave, and statutory holidays.
This system aims to take care of all employees, expand the
variety of corporate culture activities, and increase the sense of

belonging among employees.

During the Reporting Period, additional allowances were
introduced in the Group. Employees who are required to report
for duty under tropical cyclone warning signal No. 8 or above
or a black rainstorm warning signal are eligible to apply for
over-time payment and allowances, such as meal and
transportation allowances. Furthermore, the Group is pleased to
grant due consideration to the circumstances of individual
employees and respond flexibly if they have practical difficulties
in resuming work on time due to adverse weather conditions or
road and traffic conditions. A clear work arrangement is
forwarded to each employee via instant messaging, and relevant

guidelines are stated in the staff handbook.

We have enhanced Group medical coverage for our employees
this year. They can nominate their spouse or child to enjoy
extended Group medical benefits. In addition, the Company

provides training allowances for all work-related courses.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group places heavy emphasis on ensuring the health and
safety of all employees. For example, all property management
staff are required to wear safety boots, which provide significant
protection. We ensure well-stocked first-aid kits are placed on all
floors in our offices. To ensure awareness of occupational health
and safety issues, the Group arranges safety training for all
employees. The Group has also continued to optimise its work
practices and daily management, through measures such as anti-
slip engineering around the swimming pool and tree-care
monitoring in Fairview Court, to foster staff health and safety.
The aim is to create a safe, healthy and comfortable working

environment.
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The Group emphasises safety when using equipment in
workplaces, communicating safety tips through training, briefings
and notices. Equipment operating guidelines and procedural
training sessions are provided regularly to continuously promote
and enhance employees’ safety awareness and practices. We

are targeting zero accidents and fatalities in the coming year.

In addition, our property management business has obtained
OHSAS 18001 as certified by the British Standards Institution
and I1SO 45001 in recognition of our compliance with

occupational health and safety requirements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to health and

safety laws and regulations.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We understand that human capital is a crucial part of our
business. We have established a series of training programmes
to ensure that all employees receive a significant level of
training. During the Reporting Period, we launched a series of
training programmes to strengthen the competence of employees

in responding to their needs in different positions and roles.

An orientation training plan was designed for most new
employees, especially who always meets and provides services
to our guests on the front line. We familiarise them on the first
day of work with the Group’s objectives, culture, rules and
regulations, and safety and product-related knowledge. In
addition, internal cross-training programmes were also provided
for employees, including prevention of bribery, environmental
management, and occupational health and safety programmes
in areas such as energy-saving, waste reduction and recycling,
tree-pruning management and stress management, as well as

customer-serving principles and skills.

AEEEBEEI BHREBENEERZS
RBr BRAEIFESHEARBRER
Z2  RAEHRARBREERIRE
FigdlliRiE - U RERERRESEEMN
ZEBRREE RPN EERERF
EITEEHREET -

o ZEMBTHEREEZZERT
ESSE HETUXEEXEKCBEBRR
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In September 2019, staff from our property management

department and representatives from other administrative
departments attended a workshop on stress management. We
invited an instructor from a professional institution to advise us

how to manage our emotions and handle pressure effectively.

In addition, our property management department invited the
Hong Kong Fire Services Department to give a fire safety talk
and arrange an evacuation drill for staff from the property
management department and representatives from other

administrative departments.

To enhance the competitiveness of the Group and of relevant
individuals, we provided various training sessions to senior
management under One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences,
and also encouraged employees from each level to participate

in training sessions offered by the Group.

LABOUR STANDARDS

During the recruitment process, the Group follows appropriate
procedures to ensure that employees adhere to the minimum age
provisions under the applicable laws and regulations in Hong
Kong and the PRC. During the Reporting Period, we did not

engage in any forced or child labour.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to employment

and labour laws and regulations.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group aims to deliver top-quality services to the customer,
while expecting firstrate quality from selected suppliers. When
selecting potential suppliers, the Group studies their background,
in order to choose those that can serve our best interests. We
also require our suppliers to strictly follow all relevant rules and

regulations.

The Group takes account of the environmental impact from our
suppliers’ products and to the extent practicable, favours those
who follow environmentally-sound practices such as offering
products with greater durability and greater energy efficiency.
Before procuring any materials or products, our procurement
staff examines the necessity of the product or service to avoid
any unnecessary consumption. During the selection process, we
take into account factors such as product quality and safety. At
the same time, emissions and pollutants generated such as noise
and waste materials at all stages are also one of our criteria for
supplier selection. For the sake of sustainability, we consider
alternatives when purchasing replacement products in favour of
those with greater durability and greater energy efficiency.
Priority will be given to local suppliers in the hope of promoting
local economic development and reducing our carbon footprint

by shortening the distance of transportation.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A document management system with multiple access
permissions was installed to improve and enhance data
protection and security to prevent information leakage. By
having different security levels, access to information is restricted

to relevant authorised users.

The Group emphasises the security of customers’ personal data
and supports a general policy of openness about how we
collect, use and disclose such information. To ensure data
privacy, all employees are required to fully comply with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance at all times when handling
customers’ personal data. In addition, we strongly recommend
that customers to take time to carefully read our Privacy Policy
and Personal Information Collection Statement when submitting

their personal data and information.
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To promote social integration and equality of opportunity, the
Group is dedicated to providing barrier-free access and facilities
for people in need. One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences
has provided three accessible rooms which are designed for

guests with disabilities or special needs.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to data

privacy laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has a zero-tolerance policy on bribery, corruption
and money-laundering activities, and has set out clear guidelines
for directors and employees to adhere to. For instance, to
prevent corruption, a tendering procedure is adopted for all
projects; all tender documents are kept confidential and are
restricted to concerned parties. All directors and employees are
required to strictly follow the relevant laws and regulations.
During the year, the Group has invited speakers from Hong
Kong's Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) to
introduce relevant ordinances for all our staff members, to
enhance awareness of corruption risk and create a healthy

corporate culture and sound ethics at the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance targeting the Group or
an employee in relation to corruption-related laws and

regulations.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY
We are committed to supporting the community by incorporating
social participation and contribution in our strategic

development. We believe that this will nurture a sound corporate

culture and good practices in the Group.
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In December 2019, our volunteers gathered to celebrate
Christmas with children from Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. We

made cookies and played group games with them.

During the Reporting Period, we took part in many community
activities. We encourage our staff to play an active part in social

welfare initiatives.

EARTH HOUR

On 30 March 2019, Liv Chong Hing Property Management &
Agency Limited pledged to support Earth Hour by turning off all
non-essential lights for an hour at 8:30pm and help safeguard
the future of the Earth by treasuring the world’s natural resources,
choosing sustainable products, reducing waste and promoting
and using renewable energy wherever possible. This event is
organised by the World Wide Fund for Nature (“WWEF").
Increasing public awareness of climate change is the major
purpose of this event. Since the first symbolic lights-out event in
Sydney in 2007, this event has built up an over ten-year history.
It is also the world’s largest grassroots movement for the

environment.

MOONCAKE-CAN RECYCLING

In October 2019, our property management department
collaborated with Christian Action, a registered charitable
organisation serving those who are disadvantaged,
marginalised, displaced or abandoned, to support new arrivals,
ethnic minorities, refugee families and foreign domestic helpers.
We collected over 60 mooncake cans which will be used in
environmental upgrading and recycling workshops, be sold to
environmental business partners, or exported to developing
countries. The resulting income will be used to develop
environmental protection and recycling activities, for the greater

benefit of vulnerable groups.

CHARITY POSTCARD

One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences is collaborating with
i-dArt, a social enterprise of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, in
launching a Hong Kong-themed postcard for charity bazaars.
i-dArt encourages people with different abilities to participate in
art, so as to promote social inclusion. The design philosophy of
the postcard is inspired by famous features of Hong Kong, such
as Cha Chaan Teng dining, the trams and Cantonese Opera.
All proceeds raised, without deduction of any administrative
costs, will go to the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, which is

working to build a better community for all.
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YOUTH WORK EXPERIENCE PROGRAMME (“Y-WE
PROGRAMME")

In 2019, the Group also provided non-monetary support to
society by participating in the “Youth Work Experience
Programme” (Y-WE Programme) organised by Child
Development Initiative Alliance, which is a pilot project aiming
to give youth exposure to large enterprises to improve their
career opportunities and upward mobility. We offered a two-
week work experience programme to enable participants to
gain more knowledge and experience regarding property

management.

EMPLOYMENT ENGAGEMENT

We believe that bringing happiness to and caring for those in
need and contributing to voluntary services promote stronger
community bonds. We firmly believe that our staff can contribute
to the community by participating in voluntary services whilst
developing their personal capabilities such as leadership,
management and communication skills. In 2019, our community
engagement services mainly focused on contributing to child and

youth development and elderly care.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
CONTENT INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27
to the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The following table provides
and overview on the general disclosures and key performance
indicators (“KPls”) of various aspects under each subject areq,
which are either cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of the

Review or supplementing the Review with additional information.
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Description Reference Remark
fik 8% st
ENVIRONMENTAL
RE
Aspect AT EMISSIONS
B : #5
General Disclosure  Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws Profecting the Environment
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges info water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
-REE BFRERRRBZEREBHR  mkRLbHES BERBEEEY RERS
WEEZN 0HX ROBTHETABEAFENHBLER
ROIMER o
KPI AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BREVEEN] HHNEEREEENEE - 354
KPI AT.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in tofal (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Emissions
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
BREVEEN] RERRALHE (UMHE) R (NER)ZE (WASESEN 3
BERHE) o
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, N/A We do not generate hazardous
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). waste in our operations.
BREMEEN] FEEEEEENEE OUEHE)R (NER)ZE (IUSEEE TER ABNEBLEIREERE
fi - GERHE) © NNEENEE o
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, ~ Waste Management
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
BRENERNL FEEEZERNAE CHHE) R (WER)ZE (INEESE BNER
fu - §ERIEHE) °
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Waste Management
BREVERNS HAEHEMENERRAEMR o BNER
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Waste Management
reduction inifiafives and results achieved.
BREVERN HIEREEREZERNNAL FEELENERRAGAR  BYER
Aspect A2: USF OF RESOURCES
BB ERNER
General Disclosure  Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and Use of Resources
other raw materials.
-REE BAERAER (BEER  kREMEMR) WEE o BRER
KPI A2.1 Direct and /or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas Use of Resources — Energy
or oil) in total (KWh in “000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production Saving
volume, per facility).
BRENEEN REREMNEER/TBBER (1 IR)E)”%%;(BW@ BRER —
TREE) REBE (INEEE ““1 ilguﬁﬁﬁuf
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Description

fhid

Reference

8% fast

ENVIRONMENTAL (Confinued)
B (R)

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per fucility).

BREVERI] BFEKEREE (NASEEEN  BEREHE)

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

BREVERNL HARRRANGTARMAEHR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency inifiafives and results achieved.

BREVERN, HRKBERKELIEENEE  UARRAAKNGTIARAE
R e

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if

applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

EREXERNS HARMReRMHNEE (UG E)R(NER) BLEEMEE -

Use of Resources — Water

Management

ERER - KFEE

Use of Resources — Energy

Saving

ERER — B8

Use of Resources — Water We encounter no issue in

Management sourcing water that is fit for our
pUrpose.

ERER — KFEE AMEERBERAKEREL
BEMEE-

N/A We do not generate significant
packaging material waste in
our operafions.

&R AMNEBLESREEN
BRI o

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Bl RERANER

General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment

and natural resources.

Protecting the Environment

-RiEE HESTAHRERAAERENEATENHE o RERS

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and ~ Protecting the Environment
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BREMEEN] HAXKIHURERANERNEAYERCHDERARYE  RERSR
Mg

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

BERSIER

Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

EEb . R

General Disclosure  Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws Recruitment and
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to Employment
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti- discrimination, other
benefits and welfare.

-REE EBEMREGE AERER IEEY BE TEKE S BERER

1t REBAREESEREMNG : 0BR ROETHETAR
EAFENRBEERRHIEH o



Description Reference Remark
g %% it
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
BREREIEH ()
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender employment type, age group and geographical ~ N/A
region.
BREWEEN] &M BRER FRANRBEAINESLY TEA
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. N/A
BREWEEN] &M FRARNRLEAINEERALE TER
Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EEY: REHEZS
General Disclosure  Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws Health and Safety
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employee from
occupational hazards.
-REE EERHEZ2THRERAEREREBELLEN  0FK RO  REHEZ2
BIHRTABEATENRBELERAFNER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. N/A
BRENESEN] RIFBERRCHARRILE. TiE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. N/A
BREVEEY) RIBBAIHAH- TEm
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how Health and Safety
they are implemented and monitored.
BREVERN HAFRANBEREERLER UREBHTRERNE sz
Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
EE: BREE
General Disclosure  Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for discharging Development and Training
duties at work. Description for fraining activifies.
-REE EERAEERTIERENNRREAENEUR  HlEIEE BRRE
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category N/A
(e.g. senior management, middle management).
BREVEEN] RUHNRESERN (NESRERE PRAEEES) AMNIIEE TEA
BAL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and N/A
employee category.
BREWEEN) RUEARESERNES  SEEETAFIINTIIRY TEA
Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
BEN: Z#TEE
General Disclosure  Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws Labour Standards
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
-REE BEBLEIHEHNZIN: OFK ROBFHRTARERY S IEH
ENREEERRAINES -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures fo review employment practices to avoid child N/A The child and forced labour
and forced labour. issues are not material to our
operations.
BRENEEN HIRNAREANERABRETIRENET TEA AMMERLBRSRERE

THBHETHEARR o
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Description Reference Remark

i 8% it

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

BREREIEH(H)

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. N/A The child and forced labour
issues are not material to our
operafions.

BREVEEN) BUEERERBRRERERERFARENSR o TR AMNEBLRSRERE
IMEHETHERER

OPERATING PRACTICES

EERN

Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

EmS . HEEER

General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Supply Chain Management

-RiEE ERMRENRERILERAREE o ffEsEER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. N/A

BREVEEN] RHEADNHUEEHE o TER

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of Supply Chain Management

suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monifored.
BREVEEY) HAGEERAMESNEN HmHHTEBREMANMERSE U HEEER

REBEANBTRERDE -

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
BE: EREF

General Disclosure  Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating fo
products and services provided and methods of redress.
FEFRUERARENRERESZ2 S  BERABEEIUR
BRAEN OBF ROBIHETAREAY ENHBEEER
ROINER -

—-RiEE

Product Responsibility



Description Reference Remark
g %% it
OPERATING PRACTICES (Confinued)
EEEN ()
KPI B6.1 Percentage of tofal products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety N/A There were no recalls
and health reasons. concerning the provision.
BREVERN] CEICERXERAITRZ2EREEAMARNKNELL TEA HECHERENIER
Al e
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how N/A There were no validated
they are dealt with. complaints received during the
reporting review period.
BRENESN) REERERRBRBORFHEUARELLL o TR BEECHERENIIER
W& o
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting infellectual N/A Intellectual property rights are
property rights. not material to our operations.
BRENESN HIREERRENEAEEEENER - TER AMNEBERRRENEE
BUBREAYE o
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. N/A Recall procedures are not
relevant to our operations.
BREVEEN! HRESRTARREREWER o TER EERFEEMOERLR
BRBEYE-
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they Product Responsibility

are implemented and monitored.

BRENESNS HUHEZENRERARIR URBBEHTRERRL EmEfL

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

EmY :RES

General Disclosure  Information on (a) the policies: and (b) compliance with relevant laws Anti-Corruption
and regulations that they have a significant impact on the issuer relafing
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money qundering

-REE BEMGLER BZ - RERAREN  OFF ROETHRT RES
AﬁEK?ﬁ%E’J*ﬁEﬁE@WWJE’JEﬂ :

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Anti-Corruption
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcome of the cases.

BREWEEY] RERSRHBTASHEERLICELENESFARMNEAE RES

&t #% °
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how Anti-Corruption

BRENERN

they are implemented and monitored.

B ERERERES  ARRBATRERNE

RES
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Description Reference Remark
g 8% et
COMMUNITY
iHtE
Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
EE HERE
General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Giving Back to the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activifies take Community

into consideration the communities” inferests.
-REE BEUHESER T REEMIHEZEARRARKEDEZE EELE

HRAEAHR
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of confribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, Giving Back to the

labour needs, health, culture, sport). Community
BREVESN] ZIEHER(NHE RBESH FIFK-BE - -BE) EERUE
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Giving Back to the

Community
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 2 & & #

Asat5 March 2020 BE=Z2=F5=F%R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Liv Kwun Shing, Christopher
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect], MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK], J.P.

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, php, B8, J.P.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, Msc(Econ), BA[Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric, CA(Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung
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B3I o

FREELE

EPITES
RPERREE

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKloD

BIFERITES
BN E 1 T GaM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

BEBiBREE

B8 #2181 php, 8BS, J.P.

BRERAN J5 2 Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

BB 7R S CcAlAust), CPA (Practising), CFE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 42 A & #

Asat5 March 2020 BE=Z2=F5=F%R
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Ms. Cavior Liu (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Liv Kwun Shing, Christopher (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston
Mr. Liv Kwun Shing, Christopher
Mr. Lee Wai Hung
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Ms. Eva Liv

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine
Mtr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim

Mr. Tong Tse Hon

Ms. Hung Shuk Yee

Ms. Salla Tin

MANAGERS

Mr. Tam King Hung, Peter
Ms. Tsia Fung Yee, Tina
Ms. Wong Yuk Man

Ms. Cheng Suet Kiu

Mr. Wong Ming Kwong
Mr. Ho Chi Chung

Mr. Pui Yuk, Ray

Mr. Wong Ming Kwong

Mr. Leung Kin Pong

Head of Property Development

Head of Finance Management

and Information Technology
Head of China Budget Hotel
Head of Project Development

Head of China Property

Development
Head of Leasing

Head of Property and Facilities

Management

Head of Human Resources

Senior Project Manager
Accounting Manager
Accounting Manager

Manager of Finance Management

and Information Technology
Maintenance Manager
Project Manager
Property Manager
Maintenance Manager

Project Manager
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 2 & & ¥

Asat5 March 2020 BE=Z2=F5=F%R
SOLICITORS

Deacons

Gallant Y.T. Ho & Co.
P.C. Woo & Co.
AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

BANKERS

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, Hong Kong Branch

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Credit Suisse AG Hong Kong Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank, Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited
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REGISTERED OFFICE
23rd Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax: (852) 2983 7725
Email: info@lchi.com.hk

GUANGZHOU OFFICE
18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road

Yue Xiu District

Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071

Email: guangzhou@Ichi.com.cn

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC
Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

Email: shanghai@Ilchi.com.cn

FOSHAN NANHAI OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road
Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town
Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218

Email: foshan@Ichi.com.cn

FOSHAN SANSHUI OFFICE
Room 1638-1639, Block 3, Sanshui Square

9 Zhangbian Road, Xi Nan Street
Sanshui District, Foshan
Guandong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 8778 6929

Email: foshan@Ichi.com.cn

M SRR

BHE

EEEP =T IR
AIERITHR O =T =48

B3 (852) 2983 7777 HH : (852) 2983 7725
Z  info@Ichi.com.hk

L E N
REIEMN T

BMRE=Z=Z5%
AMIE18AE

E5F 1 (8620) 8375 8993 /EH : (8620) 8375 8071
Z & : guangzhou@Ichi.com.cn

LBRER

FEEEH

AR = \\K

RIE SR A U305 E

5 1 (8621) 6359 1000 EH : (8621) 6327 6299
EH : shanghai@Ichi.com.cn
LR B EHERE

HEERE

#HILTHEER
BLEEN TS EEREH AR R
BRER %

NI E —H

B 1 (86757) 63860888 BE : (86757) 6386 2218
EF : foshan@Ichi.com.cn

L= KEHRERE

HEERE

FHILTH=KE

P T8 TRIAZ B 9 9%
=KEHIE1638-1639

TiE © (86757) 8778 6929

ZEF © foshan@Ichi.com.cn

0
o
-~
)
o
e
>
=
m
>
r4
(S)
)
==
>
]
m
=
[¢]
—
o
m
]
g
z
-
o
-~
ES
2
[¢]
4
B
I
bl
&
o
b3
%

-

ErHEXTERE O
N

BEHHFSYU-—&= |



-—
o
(-5}

610Z L4OdFY IVANNY | @ILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEABBHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 80, is the Chairman of the Board of the Company since 9
August 2017. Mr. Liv has been serving as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 26
February 2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive Director of the
Company since its incorporation in 1970. Mr. Liv also serves as
the Chairman of Executive Management Committee and
Nomination Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu, who was educated in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, is also a director of a
number of other companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any
other public listed companies in the previous three years. Mr. Liu
is the brother of the late Dr. Liu Lit Chung, an uncle of Mr. Liu
Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.

MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 53, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
since 1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Liu holds a Master
degree in Economics from the University of London, specialising
in Finance and Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu oversees the
Company’s strategic development, project implementation and
business operations. Mr. Liu also served as a member of
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive Management
Committee as well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of
the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liv did not hold
any directorship in any other public listed companies in the last
three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and the late
Dr. Liu Lit Chung, and the cousin of Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LIU KWUN SHING, CHRISTOPHER

aged 44, is an Executive Director of the Company, a position
which he has held since August 2008 following a re-designation
from his previous role since 2000 as Non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Liv also serves as the Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the
Executive Management Committee as well as a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu is a holder of a
Master of Arts degree in Jurisprudence from the University of
Oxford. He is also a qualified solicitor in both Hong Kong and
England & Wales. Prior to joining the Company on a full-time
basis, he was a partner of Deacons in Hong Kong, with a
primary focus in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions
and private equity matters. Mr. Liu is a member of the Foshan
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC) as well as a director of both
Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and Shanghai
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (COFA). Mr. Liu is
also a director of the Federation of Hong Kong Foshan
Association Limited, Hong Kong GuangFoZhao Fraternity
Association Limited, the Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Community Organization, Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce, an Executive Director of Guangdong Chamber of
Foreign Investors, a Vice-chairman of Foshan Investment
Chamber of Private Enterprises, a member of Hong Kong-
Shanghai Economic Development Association Limited and a
director of Shanghai Huang Pu District Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment. With a passion for the betterment of
society and education, he is also a member of the Institutional
Review Board of Hong Kong University/Hospital Authority Hong
Kong West Cluster and the Joint Chinese University of Hong
Kong — New Territories East Cluster Clinical Research Ethics
Committee as well as a school manager of Liu Po Shan
Memorial College. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liv did not
hold any directorship in any other public listed companies in the
last three years. He is the son of the late Dr. Liv Lit Chung, a
nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, and the cousin of Mr. Liu Kam Fai,
Winston.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEABBHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG
LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 57, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of
the Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Management Committee
as well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Law degree, a Master of
Business Administration degree and Postgraduate Diploma in
Construction and Real Estate. He is also a fellow of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Lee had worked in an
international accounting firm for over six years. Mr. Lee has over
twenty nine years of experience in corporate finance and
accounting. Mr. Lee joined the Company in 1992 and was
appointed as director in 1994. Mr. Lee is primarily responsible
for the Company’s finance and secretarial matters. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Lee did not hold any directorship in any

other public listed companies in the last three years.
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LB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA,
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect,
A.P. (Architect], MHKIoD

aged 57, served as Non-executive Director of the Company
since May 2011 and he is now serving as a member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies
degree on Urban and Regional Planning and a Master of
Architecture degree. He is an Authorized Person under the
Buildings Ordinance, a Registered Architect under the Architects
Registration Ordinance, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects, a corporate member of Royal Institute of British
Architects, an associate member of Royal Australian Institute of
Architects, a member of Royal Architectural Institute of Canada
and an associate member of American Institute of Architects. Mr.
Kho was an Executive Committee of the University of Waterloo
Alumni Association and a Committee Member of the University
of Manitoba Alumni Association from 1989 to 1990. During the
year from 1997 to 2003, he was a Director and Council
Member of the Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students Association
Limited. Mr. Kho is also a Committee Member of the Professional
Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations
since 2009. Furthermore, Mr. Kho is appointed as an Executive
Committee Member of Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of
Commerce and Director of Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of
Commerce Education Fund Limited in 2017. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Kho did not hold any directorship in any other public

listed companies in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEABBHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES

GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK], J.P.

aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 1999 and he is now serving
as a Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is a
practising solicitor and the Consultant of Messrs. P.C. Woo &
Co. He is also serving as Chairman of The Insurance Authority.
Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong
Kong. He is the Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President of International
Alliance of Practising Lawyers. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Dr. Cheng currently holds directorships in China
Mobile Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited (Formerly known as China Resources Enterprise, Limited),
The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, K. Wah
International Holdings Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited,
Tian An China Investments Company Limited and Towngas
China Company Limited, all being public listed companies in
Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng’s other directorship in public listed
companies in the last three years includes Kader Holdings
Company Limited and ARA Asset Management Limited, which
were formerly listed in Singapore. Save as disclosed above, Dr.
Cheng did not hold any directorship, whether in Hong Kong or
overseas, in any other public listed companies in the last three

years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 80, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also serves as a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Au
studied Law in Sydney and London respectively. He was
admitted as a solicitor in England in 1975 and in Hong Kong in
1976. He is a sole proprietor of Arthur Au & Co., a firm of
solicitors established since 1979. Mr. Au is a Notary Public and
was a member of the Notary Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel.
He is also a School Management Committee Member of the
Clementi Secondary School. He now serves as legal adviser to
the Association of Hong Kong Nursing Staff (previously named
as the Association of Government Nursing Staff) and The New
Territories North District Manufacturers Association of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Au is an active Rotarian, he was a District
Governor of Rotary International District 3450 (Hong Kong/
Macao/Mongolia) in 1990-1991. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Au did not hold any directorship in any other public listed

company in the last three years.

BIAFERTEE(F)

ERRERE

NtTE RZFE——-F+-_A=HAEZE
RERAEABBILFHITES  HEAAE
NABREES REZESKEEE
REEGZE - BERELED BIERM
ERRRKERBE G ERE - R
—“NtEFER—NAEAREDRESEER
REBHERMERL  XB—NLthEF
EBRIEHRREMITRAZITZEER
EE BEERBBRAZTAREIEKE
NEALEBEREZEEHE  THEX
RPEREBEREEZEENE - BAER
EEEELIHS (ABBRAEEEHS)
REABHALEREEER A REERE
BeBAEEROLHKBIE A NN
ZEE-AN—FE  BIREHKEw 34501t
B(FB BRMREHE)ZEBHEE-
BREMATIRRIN RBE=ZFR BX
SWRBEEEAEMLETARDTERE
EIEERIE o

(@)
(]
-~
-
(]
-~
>
=
m
>
z
o
w
I
>
bl
m
e
o
o
o
m
Fd
«K
z
Z
o
-~
ES
2
o
z
5
o
&
&
o
b3
*

-—
w

BETHEXTHEH

BEHHFSYU-—&= |



-—
-

610Z L4OdFY IVANNY | @ILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEABBHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN

PhD, BBS, J.P.

aged 53, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he is serving as a
member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Dr. Ma
currently is the Vice Chairman of Carrianna Group Holdings
Company Limited, this is a public company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive experience in
the catering industry, as well as property management and
development. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS)
from The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy by
Morrison University in 2004. As for the community service, Dr.
Ma was the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the
year 2002. He is a member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Advisory Board, the Standing Committee of Shenzhen Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and the
President of Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce, Qianhai. He
also serves as the Vice Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisations, Vice President of Hong
Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce, Vice President of
Kowloon Federation of Associations and the Executive Director
of China Overseas Friendship Association. On 1 July 2015, Dr.
Ma was appointed to Justices of the Peace by The Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Save as
disclosed above, Dr. Ma did not hold any directorship in any

other public listed companies in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. CHENG YUK WO

Msc (Econ), BA (Hons), CPA (Canada), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

aged 59, was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 7 March 2014 and he is now serving as a
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science (Economics)
degree in Accounting and Finance from London School of
Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting from University of Kent, England. He is a Fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has
over 20 years’ of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate
advisory services. Mr. Cheng is currently an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, CSI Properties Limited, HKC
(Holdings) Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC
Holdings Limited, Top Spring International Holdings Limited,
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited, Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited, Somerley Capital Holdings Limited,
Kidsland International Holdings Limited and C.P. Pokphand Co.
Limited, all of the abovementioned companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheng was also an Independent Non-
executive Director of C.P. Lotus Corporation, a company
formerly listed on the Stock Exchange which was privatised on
29 October 2019, from 2004 to 29 October 2019. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three

years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEABBHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. TONG TSUN SUM, ERIC

CA (Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit and the nomination
committee of the Company in March 2018. He obtained a
Bachelor of Economics from University of Sydney, Australia, a
Master of Commerce in Professional Accounting from Macquarie
University, Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia, Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Institute of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand. He is also
a member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, the Governance Institute of Australia and the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Tong did not hold any directorship in any other

public listed company in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MS. EVA LIU

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK, RIBA

aged 56, Head of Property Development. Ms. Liu is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in Architecture
from the University of Cambridge, and Property Valuation And
Law from the City University of London. She was in architectural
practice in England before joining the Company in 1999. She is
the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 52, Head of Finance Management and Information
Technology. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant, holding
Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over twenty
nine years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk
joined the Company in 1995 and is in charge of Finance
Management Department and Information Technology

Department.

BIAFERTEE(F)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MS. YAN YUET LAM, CHARMAINE

aged 45, Head of China Budget Hotel. Ms. Yan joined the
Company in 2007. Ms. Yan was educated in Vancouver,
Canada. Before joining the Company, Ms. Yan had worked
with various mainland companies at senior management post for
leading and handling numerous successful real estate projects
including the Shanghai Forest Manor, one of the top residential
villa projects in Shanghai. In addition, Ms. Yan has extensive
experience in business club operations both in Beijing and
Shanghai. Ms. Yan is currently in charge of the Company’s
budget hotel business.

MR. PAN SZE YUEN, CECIL

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA

aged 56, Head of Project Department. Mr. Pan is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degree in Architecture
from the University of Cambridge, and has over twenty years of
experience as a practicing architect in both UK and Hong Kong.
Mr. Pan joined the Company in 2006.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KIM

BEng (Civill, CEng, MICE

aged 51, Head of China Property Development. Mr. Jan joined
the Company in 2008. Mr. Jan is a professional engineer with
over twenty years of construction and project management
experience representing Clients, Consultants and Contractors on
both private sector and government funded projects in Ching,

Hong Kong and Macau.

MR. TONG TSE HON
BBA (First Class Honor], CFP
aged 51, Head of Leasing, holding a Bachelor (First Class
Honor) Degree in Business Administration and a Certified
Financial Planner conferred by the Institute of Financial Planners

of Hong Kong. Mr. Tong joined the Company in 2004.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEABBHN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MS. HUNG SHUK YEE

aged 55, Head of Property and Facilities Management. Ms.
Hung holds a Master Degree in Business Administration of the
University of Hull. She has over twenty years of experience in
general administration, procurement and facilities management
in the banking sector. Ms. Hung joined the company in 2016
and is in charge of the Property and Facilities Management

Department.

MS. SALLA TIN

aged 53, Head of Human Resources. Ms. Tin holds a Master
Degree in Human Resources Management of Macquarie
University, Australia and has over twenty years of experience in
human resources management in the banking sector. Ms. Tin

joined the Company in 2018.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
BRRBAFAKERE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting
of Liv Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the
year 2020 (“2020 AGM”") will be held at 27th Floor, Chong
Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on
Thursday, 21 May 2020 at 11:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the audited consolidated Financial
Statements together with Reports of the Directors and of the
Auditor of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019.

2. To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of
HK$0.38 per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
(“2019 Final Dividend”).

3. To reelect (a) Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher, (b) Mr. Kho
Eng Tjoan, Christopher and (c) Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo as
directors of the Company.

4. To fix the directors’ remuneration for the year ending 31

December 2020.

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and to authorise the Board of Directors to

fix their remuneration.

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or
without modifications the following ordinary resolutions:
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS irif iR:%

6. "THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the
Company to buy-back shares of the Company on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange on which
the shares of the Company may be listed and which is
recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission
in Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this
purpose, subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange or of any other stock exchange (as
amended from time to time), be and is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRRBAFARERES
(b) the aggregate number of shares of the Company

7.

which the Company is authorised to buy back
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of passing of
this resolution, and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly; and

(c) for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares in the capital of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options (including
bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and any securities
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible
into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exercise of such power be and is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including bonds, warrants,
debentures, notes and any securities which carry
rights o subscribe for or are convertible into shares of
the Company) which would or might require the
exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant
Period;

the aggregate number of shares allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant fo an option or otherwise) and issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (i) the exercise
of any rights of subscription or conversion under any
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and any securities
of the Company which carry rights to subscribe for or
are convertible into shares of the Company; (iii) an
issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise of
the subscription rights attaching to any options
granted under any share option scheme adopted by
the Company; (iv) an issue of shares as scrip
dividends or similar arrangement providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a
dividend on shares of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company from
time to time; or (v) specific authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting,
shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate number of
issued shares of the Company at the date of passing
of this resolution, and the said approval shall be

limited accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

() the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company; or

(b)

(d)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
BRRBAFAREREE

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares or any class of shares of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares as at
that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entittements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory applicable to the

Company).”
“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 6 and

7 set out in the notice convening this meeting being passed,
the general mandate granted to the directors of the
Company to exercise the powers of the Company to allot,
issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to Ordinary
Resolution No. 7 set out in the notice convening this
meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto
of an amount representing the aggregate number of shares
of the Company bought back by the Company under the
authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 6 set
out in the notice convening this meeting, provided that such
extended amount of shares so bought back shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued shares of

the Company at the date of passing of this resolution.”
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9.

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 April 2020

Notes:

1.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM is entitled to appoint another person as
his proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A member who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more
than one proxy to atfend on the same occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is
signed, or a nofarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Record dates of entitlements of the Members:

() For the purpose of defermining shareholders who are entitled fo attend and vote at the 2020 AGM to
be held on Thursday, 21 May 2020, whose name should be recorded in the Company’s shareholders
book on Thursday, 21 May 2020. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 18 May 2020 to Thursday, 21 May 2020, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the 2020 AGM, all share cerfificates with completed fransfer forms either
overleaf or separately must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 May 2020.

(b)  For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the 2019 Final Dividend, whose name
should be recorded in the Company’s shareholders book on Friday, 29 May 2020. The Register of
Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 27 May 2020 to Friday, 29 May 2020,
both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all share certificates with completed
transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712—1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not lafer than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
26 May 2020.

The registration for attending the above meefing will start at 10:30 am on 21 May 2020.

The Chinese translation of this notice is for reference only, and in case of any inconsistency, the English version
shall prevail.

If a Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above is hoisted or a Black Rainstorm Warning Signal is in force at or at any fime
after 8:00 am on the date of the meefing, the meefing will be postponed or adjourned. The Company will post
an announcement on the Company website (www.Ichi.com.hk) and HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk) to
nofify shareholders of the date, time and place of the rescheduled meeting.

The meeting will be held as scheduled when an Amber or a Red Rainstorm Warning Signal is in force.
Shareholders should decide on their own whether they would attend the meeting under bad weather condition
bearing in mind their own situations.

A circular containing further information on the proposals regarding the (i) re-election of Directors and (ii) general
mandates for the buy back and issue of shares will be sent to shareholders today along with the Company’s
2019 Annual Report.

As at the dafe hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive Directors: Mr. Liv Lit Chi
(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing
Director), Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung; Non-execufive Director: Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,
Christopher; and Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr.
Ma Hung Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric.
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MARKET PRICE MOVEMENT AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION CHART
mEEZRTEEX

Closing Price per Share SR KHE

March 2018 to December 2019
of Each Month —®—\F=PE-B-NET-H

g miE
SABAREA S E%)  (onmln B EER) s b

Lost Trading Date (Iosingﬂ‘lirice per Shore Morket Capitalizaton
BRUDE

31/1/2018 13.40 5,073
28/2/2018 12.88 4,876

29/3/2018 12.68 4,800

30/4/2018 12.66 4,793

31/5/2018 12.40 4,770

29/6/2018 12.40 4,694

31/7/2018 12.40 1,694 I I I I I
31/8/2018 11.88 4,498

28/9/2018 11.90 4,505 5 §I§I§I§ Elzlz
31/10/2018 1132 4,286 é é é é é é é é
30/11/2018 11.74 4,445 sEEE HEEE
31/12/2018 12.16 1,604

Market Capitalization W&
arch o December

31/1/2019 12.08 4,573 el 2018 s By 2010

HK$ in Million BEHET

28/2/2019 12.66 4793 5000
29/3/2019 13.88 5,255
30/4/2019 13.68 5,179 5,000
31/5/2019 11.98 4,535
4,000
28/6/2019 12.40 4,694
31/7/2019 11.90 4,505
3,000
30/8,/2019 10.82 4,096
30/9/2019 10.38 3,930 2,000
31/10/2019 10.76 4,074
29/11/2019 10.70 4,051 e TEE R B O H BB
31/12/2019 10.64 408 = FEE HHHE

NOTE: Closing price (HKS) are extracted from the web site of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. (Stock code: 00194)
Wi BT ELREEERA RS MERADEY - (RHAE < 0194)



LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART
BRAESEGCREBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

ALBA HOLDINGS LIMITED LIU’S HOLDINGS LIMITED OTHER INVESTORS

ERSEARAT ERKEARAT HipREE

18.21% 34.95% 46.84%

*LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED
BRIEEXARAT

Overseas " 3 o
Property Investment i Property Development Property Management Trading & Manufacturing Hotel Business

DEBAE i NEUR nRER B RN BIERT
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Liv Chong Hing Maanshan Gaoke
Property Management Magnetic Material
BB oA A p— & Agency Limited Company Limited e O

T ogistics Centre ek MTEE 3 - " o -
CES PRI (BLAS)  gbbiealal WEREBA L2

ONE-EIGHT-ONE

Japan Higashi The Grand Riviera
Hotel & Serviced Residences

Chong Hing Bank Centre Matsuyama Foshan Nanhai

Elegance Garden Guangzhou Wealth Good
et i Property Management Hanting Express-Guangzhou
Logistics Centre Company Limited e
PRI BLEK iy EERERMN R B
(BL=k) PEEBERAT

100% 50% 90% 100% 100%

Chong Yip Centre
UES:

Foshan Sanshui

Fairview Court Il

EEH

Logistics Centre

BARFHR L

100% 50%

Australia Manufacturing
Plant
RN

Chong Hing Square
RIR RS

100% 50%

Chong Hing Finance Center
Shanghai

LisfIBSRB D

100%

-—

ETHEXRTERE N
(%]

HEHEHEFTY - |

* Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ~ * HREEEBEARSHERATLT
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

AEBXTENER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

Description

i

Interest in

the property
attributable

to the Group
AEBELZ
I RE

Approximate

site area

(sq. ft.)

HE 40 3 A2 T 7R
(FHR)

Total gross

floor area

(sq. ft.)
REEEEEE
(FHR)

Existing use

BRRAZ

Investment properties
Hong Kong:
BB

1. Chong Hing Bank Centre
24 Des Voeux Road Central
B EER AT AN
EEE 2455

2. Chong Yip Centre
402-404 Des Voeux Road West
e
EEIE TG 402-404 5%

3. Fairview Court
94 Repulse Bay Road

=28

RIKEBIE 9455

4. The Westwood
8 Belcher's Street
B
BEREHIR

100%

100%

100%

10%

7,100

32,400

30,000

110,000

54,000

26,000

221,900

/P

R/P

(/P

411,900

Kowloon and New Territories:
NEERHR :

5. Chong Hing Square
601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
R EES
RE /5 T 2GE 601 57

6. Bonsun Industrial Building
364—366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
BRIXARE
S DR 38 364-366 5

7. Chatham Place
388 Chatham Road North, Hung Hom
S5
AR R R 4 388 5%

100%

100%

10%

12,300

18,000

182,000

8,200

61,000

/P

(/P

251,200

* Under Renovation 15 T2 {7



Description

i

Interest in

the property
attributable

to the Group
AEBELZ
I RE

Approximate

site area

(sq. ft.)

BE 40 AR T 7R
(FHR)

Total gross

floor area

(sq. ft.)
REEEEEE
(FHR)

Existing use

BRRAZ

Investment properties
Peaple’s Republic of China:
hEARLFE -

8. Chong Hing Finance Center
No. 288 Nanjing Road West
Huang Pu District
Shanghai
RIE S FhAH
i
9 2 79 2% 288 5%

9. The Grand Riviera
West of Luocun
Luocun Social Management Office
Shishan Town
Nanhai District
Foshan
2R RMNTE
Bl
SR
WLUEERNTEEER
350, 7 (62 th ER

100%

90%

55,000

103,000
413,000
180,000

110,000
73,000

879,000
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

AEBXTENER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
atfributable sifte area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
AEEELZ MAMBEEE RELZEEER
1k YRS (SEAR) (SEFAR) HEEHE
Investment properties
Japan:
AR :
10. Higashi Matsuyama Logistics Centre 50% 102,800 193,600 W
296-1,294-1, 3012, 301-1, 300-1, 299-1, 3021, 2951,
Oaza Shingo, Higashi Matsuyama-shi,
Saitama Prefecture
RIALFR A
4 F B4 5 A2 LU Oaza Shingo,
296-1,294-1, 3012, 301-1, 3001, 299-1, 3021, 295-1
11. Kakegawa Logistics Centre 50% 509,000 457,000 W
102, Shobugaike, Kakewawa-shi, Shizuoka Prefecture
#FH O
BF 9 82511 Shobugaike 102 5%
12. Hudano Logistics Centre 50% 53,700 104,000 w
548-1, Aza Haihata, Soya, Hadano-Shi, Kanagawa Prefecture
EHWRAB O
182311 8% 2= 5 1 Soyq, Aza Haihata, 548—1
754,600
Australia
2N
13.589—-599 Torrens Road, St Clair, South Australia 50% 319,800 161,600
2,458,300




§
8
Interest in E
the property Approximate Total gross =
attributable site area floor area Z
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existinguse  Status =
AEEEE:  BOMSER  SESSEER :
#id CES T (FHR) (FHR) RRAE  IEER 2
Hotel land and building ?
BELTHREF 4
Hong Kong: §
58 =
g
14, ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & 100% 10,800 184,000 H »
Serviced Residences oy
181-183 Connaught Road West ;
ONE-EIGHT-ONE S J& & AR 3 =\ =& ot
F 5B 181-1633% >
Properties under development
BREPYE
Hong Kong:
B
15, Various Lots in D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a n/a  Planning
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po TEA TER  FEHR
RIS A%
DR
People’s Republic of China:
PEARLFE
16.  Elegance Garden 90% 362,400 1,120,000 R Planning
Plot No.2, Nan Ce, Jianshe Dadao 15,000 (G-
Xinan Jiedao, Sanshui Qu 321,000 P
Foshan
HIEREE

BILTH=KE
ARAERRAERAR

1,456,000

(=Commercial #%  H=Hotel EE  I|=Industriol T%  P=CarPark =z  R=Residentiol £  0=0Office B2
S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities & BT & B3k i W=Warehouse &

129

BETHEXTHEH

BEHHFSYU-—&= |
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION & R & ¥

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 5 March 2020

HEEER=-Z-EF=A%A
RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
EENG
Interim Results

for six-month ended 30 June 2019

BE-Z-hFARA=THL
NER 2 R HIRE

Annual Results
for year ended 31 December 2019
BEZZE-NWF+-A=t—HL
FEZEFXR

Announced on 8 August 2019

ERZZE-AFENANB LM

Announced on 5 March 2020

ER-ZZBZZEF=-AAHQM

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
BRXE

Annual General Meeting

BRREFRE

Lctest time to lodge transfer forms

BE R HR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements
to attend and vote at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting)

EERERDBFE ??ﬁt
(BEARHFE-Z-FF
RRBFRAERERE)

To be held on 21 May 2020
BR-E-EFRA-+—-BET

4:30 pm on 15 May 2020
“ECEFRATHEATHOER=1TS

From 18 May 2020 to 21 May 2020
(both days inclusive)

_?_

(EF‘W%@%EW)




CASH DIVIDENDS
Relk B

Interim cash dividend

hHRERE

Paid on

>4 B

Proposed final cash dividend
BRAHRERE

Payable on

XYEH

Ex-dividend date of final dividend
REKRERER

Latest time to lodge transfer forms
BB F X REHR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining
entitlements to receive

the final dividend)
LERERDBFERLTFE
(e EAEWERIBARE)

HK$0.22 per share
BREE0.22 T

13 September 2019
—E-h&FAHT=H

HK$0.38 per Share

BRBE0.38T

5 June 2020

—ETEFAXAAH

25 May 2020

—EEFHEA-TEHA

4:30 pm on 26 May 2020
—E-FFAEASTAETHEER=1TS

From 27 May 2020 to 29 May 2020
(both days inclusive)

—ECERFERACtHLREE-E-ZEHEHRA=-+ANA
(BERMXEEER)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION & R & ¥

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

Share Registrars and transfer office
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183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,
Hong Kong

ROBECTRELR EEPRBSBELARAT
BRBEFERRNER-/N\Z=%
BMFALT -t ——FE—t— R

Share listing The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

IR = H ARBRERBEBHERZAERD A
HEEE

Stock Code 00194

ISR 00194

Board lot 2,000 shares

BEEN 2,000 fix

No. of issued ordinary share

378,583,440 shares

ERTEBRROHE 378,583,440 f%
Company’s e-mail address info@lchi.com.hk
AR EE I info@lchi.com.hk

Investors and Shareholders contact

REE KRR

Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung/Ms. Hilda Chan
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7779

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Website: http://www.lchi.com.hk

B EEEE TREZ/E
BERREHEP -t HURAIERTHRLT =
& 0 (852) 29837779

EH : (852) 2983 7723

#E : hitp://www.Ichi.com.hk




Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CREE TR E
HABER
HAEER
CRLES eSS
GANBRRE
R BT
GEARLRER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT % 3 # #{ &l & &=

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 140 to 264, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

==
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter as they represented 59% of the Group's total assets,
combined with the judgements associated with determining the
fair value. As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the investment properties are located in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The carrying
amounts of investment properties amounted to
HK$8,771,446,000 as at 31 December 2019 and a gain on
changes in fair value of HK$119,843,000 was recorded in the
profit for the year then ended.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuations performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (“Valuer”). Details of the valuation techniques
and key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements. The valuations have been
arrived at using direct comparison method and income
capitalisation method, which are dependent on certain key
inputs and assumptions in respect of prevailing market conditions

such as unit sale rate, reversion yield and monthly market rent.

FEETEIR
BHREFTSERRBERMNEREFE -
RRBAPGRESYBRERNENRAE
ENER ELEFHREERMEFRERE
REPMBHRREHAESREETREN -
BERTreHELEEREEBNER -

REMRMHE

BB RENELERBERETSE
TDHRAEE EXEEREES%  EE
HEEAFEERENHE - HUWKRE
MM RMEE 14T - REWELRN
BERRPEARAMB (LT ERE$
B - REMER-Z-NF+=A
=+ —-HWREERERS,771,446,000
T MBEZBLEFENRETTABE
119,843,000 T A FEES B W o

BAERE M BIRRMEE4FE - RNEER
REMEDZRB I SERERMERM (U
TR [ EER ) e b2 FEES
fRe IEANGERMMEZGAZE
HRHERGEMBRMRWEE 14 - HETD
RAEERLEBUER RSB ERETE
HERRBTHHERENETERRA
SHRRBREKR  PIMEMFEERNR  HE
BHEOHERZFADEAS -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT % 3 # #{ &l & &=

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included:

e  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

e  Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and
significant assumptions to assess if the adopted approach

is appropriate for the respective properties;

*  Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation methods
used based on our knowledge of the property markets in
Hong Kong and the PRC; and

*  Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs, including
unit sale rate, reversion yield and monthly market rent by
comparing these estimates to entity-specific information and
market data based on our knowledge of the property

markets.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT % 3 # #{ &l & &=

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
16 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #&é#E=m= %K
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE
2019 2018
“E-0E “T-N\F
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000
Mzt BETT BETT

Revenue g 5

Contracts with customers RFEEH 848,844 1,394,014

Rental income ik 0N 354,999 355,739

Inferest and dividend income FERREKA 72,665 86,470

1,276,508 1,836,225
Direct cosfs BEHAK (562,561) (878,151)
713,947 958,074

Other income HiA 12,747 21,411
Administrative and operating expenses THREERS (231,158) (203,725)
Other gains and losses Hiths R EE 7 108,662 407,618
Finance costs B RAR 8 (45,265) (19,122
Share of results of joint ventures FribAebE%E 32191 61,752
Profit before tax BREL TR R 591,124 1,226,008
Income tax expense FiE%iL 9 (144,655) (178,086)
Profit for the year KEERF 10 446,469 1,047,922
Profit for the year attributable fo: TEERFDER

Owners of the Company RAFRRR 429,984 1,014,267

Non-controlling interests FERRRES 16,485 33,655

446,469 1,047,922

Basic earnings per share BREXEA 13 HKSi#&#1.14 HKS /B #2.68




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REBEEREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=E-AE+-A=1-RILEE

2019 2018
k- Ly K2 —E-N\E
HKS’000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Profit for the year REEREN 446,469 1,047,922
Other comprehensive expense Hth2m%
Item that will not be reclassified fo profif or loss: FRENEZRmRZER
Fair value losses on investments in equity instruments BAVEEFARM2ZEKGEZ
at fair value through other comprehensive income ERIAATEERR
(“Fv1o”) (12,996) (59,362)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently fo profit or loss: ~ E# A EH 7 B2 E=E2ER -
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBNEBEEZENZ8
foreign operations (95,301) (187,453)
Share of other comprehensive expense of joint ventures FibaEtEEM2ETH (12) (6)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (net of tax) FEEHMRESE (BRHR) (108,309) (246,821)
Total comprehensive income for the year KEERHNRAR 338,160 801,101
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2ERRABAER :
Owners of the Company KAARE 326,270 775,377
Non-controlling interests FERER R ER 11,890 25,724
338,160 801,101
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2019 R=E-NE+=A=1-H

e BRI &R

2019 2018
“F-hE “E-N\§
NOTES HKS$'000 HKS'000
Mz BRI BETT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties RENE 14 8,771,446 8,701,400
Property, plant and equipment NE  BERKE 15 1,457,320 124,079
Properties under development BREMYE 15 - 1,244,922
Right-of-use assets FERESE 16 10,757 -
Interests in joint ventures SELEER 18 307,843 292,987
Investments in securities BHKRE 19 543,952 584,607
Deferred fax assets EEREEE 29 27,472 31,469
11,118,790 10,979,464
Current assets nBgE
Properties under development for sale FHERRDYE 17 895,424 -
Properties held for sale FHENE 17 686,117 860,707
[nventories RrE 20 25,455 29,900
Trade and other receivables Z2 R EMERER 21 84,174 88,667
Contract costs BHRAR 22 3,815 20,305
Investments in securities EHRE 19 18,097 22,563
Taxation recoverable G EEEA 27 33,458
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months FEAZAR%3H
fo maturity when raised EHBRITER 23 13,284 18,347
Bank balances and cash ROBERREE 23 2,039,861 2,460,110
3,766,254 3,534,057
Current liabilifies ik L=
Trade and other payables & 2 REMEMNER 24 448,258 244,799
Lease liabilities HEEE 25 4,837 -
Confract liabilities BHEfE 26 46,965 539,128
Derivative financial insfruments ERITETR 28 7,065 218
Taxation payable B 40,790 137,713
Borrowings — due within one year BH -~ R—ERZEH 27 491,350 867,818
1,039,265 1,789,676
Net current assefs TEEEFE 2,726,989 1,744,381
Total assets less current liabilities BEENTDEE 13,845,779 12,723,845
Non-current liabilities E ik ) -1
Other payables Hit IR 24 93,373 56,105
Lease liabilities HEaE 25 6,151 -
Borrowings — due after one year &5 — R—FHRIH 27 1,018,384 -
Derivative financial instruments ERTETER 28 776 7,252
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 29 256,875 263,420
1,375,559 326,177
12.470,220 12,397,068
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2019 2018 b=

“g-ht = =

NOTE HKS000 Ho00 e

Mzt BRI BETT ;

Equity frig g

Share capifal R 30 381,535 381,535 M
Reserves =15 12,012,500 11,951,238

Equity attributable to: RESER

Owners of the Company KAERR 12,394,035 12,332,773
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 76,185 64,295
Total equity LR 12,470,220 12,397,068

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 264 HRFE140E204B 2 &HREWHBRRE
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of R-ZE-_ZF=F+ABEZESHE
Directors on 16 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: REBRE#HT  YHTHALRERES:

MR. LIU LIT CHI MR. CHENG YUK WO
BExE ERFISEE
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN OF
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AUDIT COMMITTEE
FE - BEEEEERTHAES FRESETE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY e m2 5 R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

At T January 2018

R=F-\§-A-H

Profit for the year

Fair value losses on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expense of joint ventures

Other comprehensive expense for the year

AEERA

BAPEEG AR ARG BETEATEERE
BEBNEBFEL  EREE

R gL EEMREXH

AEEEMBEXN

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year

Investment revaluation reserve reclussified to accumulated profits upon disposal
of equity instruments at FVTOCI

Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve

Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

Dividends to non-controlling interests

AEERE (X)) KBS
RERAVERT AR 2ARE BRI AEHEH 22T
ZRENZREERRE

MERENEZ LT RIGHE

ERRADRZRE (A1)

SAFERRREZRE

At 31 December 2018

RZE-NE+ZB=1-H




2
%
Attributable to owners of the Company >
ARRRRER -
Property [nvestment Statutory Non- 8,
Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling g
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Tofal interests Total g
NRELR REE( EERE *ER W
R B it ikt 3 ke ey pavi] @t RRE st

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS"000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS"000 HKS 000 HKS"000 HKS"000
BRI BRI BT BRI it BRI BB i BRI i

(note 0) (note b) (note ¢)

(BtzFa) (BEED) (HzEo
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 64,523 339,731 - 8,043,168 11,799,689 39,186 11,838,875
- - - - - - 1,014,267 1,014,267 33,655 1,047,922
- - - (59,362) - - - (59,362) - (59,362)
- - - - (179,522) - - (179,522) (7,931) (187,453)
_ - - - (6) - - (6) - (6)
- - - (59,362) (179,528) - - (238,890) (7,931) (246,821)

- - - (59,362) (179,528) - 1,014,267 775,377 25,724 801,101

- - - (20,667) - - 20,667 - - -
- - - - - 29,062 (29,062) - - -
- - - - - - (242,293) (242,293) - (242,293)

(615) (615)

381,535 13915 2,956,817 (15,506) 160,203 29,062 8,806,747 12,332,773 64,295 12,397,068
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY e m2 5 R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

At T January 2019

Profit for the year

Fair value losses on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expense of joint ventures

Other comprehensive expense for the year

BAPEEG AR ARG BETEATEERE
BEBNEBFEL  EREE
R gL EEMREXH

AEEEMBEXN

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year
Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve
Dividends recognised s distribution (note 12)

AEERE (Xit) Wl
MERETES LT R RE
ERRADRZRE (WD)

At 31 December 2019

R=Z-AF+ZA=1-R




g
3
Attributable to owners of the Company >
KAAREER @
Property  Investment Statutory Non- ’_%.
Share Special  revaluation  revaluation Exchange surplus  Accumulated controlling =
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total g
NEEfR REEMR EERR E324 ]
B& BHGE e 1 B i ks e 2REH @5t RRER A5t

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BRI BETT BETT BRI BETT BRI BETT BETT BETT
(note a) (note b) (note c)
(Btka) i) (BtaFe)

381,535 13915 2,956,817 (15,506) 160,203 29,062 8,806,747 12,332,773 64,295 12,397,068

- - = - - - 429,984 429,984 16,485 446,469

- - - (12,996) - - = (12,9%) - (12,996)
- - - - (90,706) - - (90,706) (4,595) (95,301)
- - - - (12) - - (12) - (12)

- - - (12,996) (90,718) - (103,714) (4,595)  (108,309)

- - - (12,996) (90,718) - 429,984 326,270 11,890 338,160
= - 31,956 (31,956) - = -
(265,008)  (265,008) - (265,008)

381,535 13915 2,956,817 (28,502) 69,485 61,018 8939767 12,394,035 76,185 12,470,220

notes:

() Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the additional interest in a subsidiary acquired
during the years ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2012.

(b) Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from valuation of properties under property, plant and equipment upon fransfer fo investment properies in previous years.

(© The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from accumulated profits by subsidiaries of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). In accordance with the Company Low
of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to allocate 10% of their profit affer fax to the SSR unfil such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR
may be converted fo increase capifal subject to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC.

st :

() SHRREEAEENEE-ZEME+-A=T-ALEERBE-E-—E+-ACt-BLEER-ANBAAMXAREEREZNBARRMEE REEER SRR
AEZER

0 DXECLREEEAARENER GENE BERRBETNEFELORE

0  EEEHREERALINPENBLANZBEANES RETELRE  ALANTEANBLARRR BN INRENBERZEERGHE  EERRABEIRTAH
EMERNSNAL - REFEADERERHT  AERRRETEANEES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

FEBRITRER

2019 2018
“F-hE “E-N\§
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
(OPERATING ACTIVITIES B EE
Profit before tax BB AR 591,124 1,226,008
Adjustments for: mE .
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties REMENFEEZD NG (119,843) (436,055)
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of financial assefs RAVEEFABEZERMER
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) NTEELE(WR)EER (3,356) 1,867
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial TESRMIBEATEEEZD
instruments BB 465 6,679
Dividend income from investments REREWA (18,760) (28,398)
Interest income FEBA (53,905) (58,072)
Share of results of joint ventures e bEEE (32,191) (61,752)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % BERREITE 14,577 12,752
Depreciation of right-of-use assefs RAEEENE 4,845 -
Finance costs IR 45,265 19,122
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERREEE 314 2,075
Impairment loss recognised in respect of properties SHENEZHESR
held for sale s - 74,703
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital ~~ K3TREEL BB KEHLTE 428,535 758,929
Decrease in restricted bank deposits ZRERTERZRD 89,308 95,763
Decrease in frade and other receivables ESREMERER 2D 2739 16,790
Decrease (increase) in confract cosfs SRR ZED (EM) 16,046 (20,305)
Decrease in properties held for sale FHEME RS 130,465 566,389
Increase in properties under development for sale FHEBRRMEZEM (895,424) (343,253)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FE2RED (Em) 3,890 (4,022)
Increase (decrease) in frade and other payables BH REMENRR 2E ML) 256,403 (250,646)
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilties BNEEZ (D) B (480,367) 65,766
Cash (used in) generated from operations SEER (MR e (448,405) 885,411
Income tax paid ENEH (203,462) (159,935)
Dividend received on investments ElRiRERE 18,760 28,398
Interest received ElFE 53,905 67,790
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BeEE (A MEZREFH (579,202) 821,664




2019 2018
k- Ly K2 —E-N\E
HKS’000 HKS'000
BETT BETR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Addition of equity instruments af FVTOCI RAYEEFARMRZENEZ
BRIEZEM (24,042) (3,461)
Proceed from disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI HERATFEEFARM2AKEZ
BRIAMSHE 51,120 42,291
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL HERATEET ARG ERERE 1,822 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BERZE (14,609) (10,823)
Advance fo joint venfures BRERE = (39,031)
Repayments from joint venfures REDEEN 17,323 -
Addition of investment properties REMEZEM (11,857) (7,142)
Addition of properties under development BRAMEZEM (89,016) (33,416)
Placement of fixed bank deposits with more than FAZERREE

three months to maturity when raised THRTER (3,326) -
Release of fixed bank deposits with more than HE=EAREE

three months to maturity when raised EBRITER 8,190 341,449
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERE (A B2 RLFE (58,395) 289,867
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEEe
New borrowings raised FREEN 1,935,460 51,716
Repayments of borrowings BEER (1,284,386) (413,212)
Repayments of lease liabilifies BEHEEE (5,018) -
Dividends paid ERRE (265,008) (242,908)
Interest paid on borrowings EREHRAE (44,855) (46,259)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBHE (A 2REFE 336,193 (650,603)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B¢ RIELZEEE (i) & inFEaE (301,404) 460,868
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ~ E#lz B RkE2ZEER 2,368,804 1,966,500
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES e RES s 2E (27,539) (58,564)
(CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR, ERyBERASEEER -

REPRESENTED BY il 2,039,861 2,368,804
Bank balances and cash BOERRES 2,039,861 2,460,110
Restricted bank deposits ZREBITER - (91,306)

2,039,861 2,368,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

1. GENERAL

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is disclosed in the

Corporate Information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment
and investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 41 and 18,

respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of

the Company.

REMB®RRMEE

1. —REE
BRAEGCEARABD(ARAT D A
EEBEMRLZARBREMELQT
HRONEBHE XS ERABHE -
RAB2EMPEEMI R FRE XM
HEERFHRNARNEREE -

RRBAEBXBRNERERREE
ReTEMBRAARGELE ZTEHX
B BIEIIREE41 K2 18 °

REMBHRERUADA ZHEERBE
(B 25 -



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015 — 2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current

year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17”), and

the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which

already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether

a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1
January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related
lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated profits and comparative information has

not been restated.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
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When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent

relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease .

liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 months

of the date of initial application; EEREEAE
ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the rightofuse ii. RUKERBHITEFREEER
assets at the date of initial application; MR IR B A
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ENECNGEBNEEESER
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iii. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with iii.
a similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying

assets in similar economic environment; and

iv. used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date ~ iv.
of initial application in determining the lease term for the

Group's leases with extension and termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the
date of initial application. The weighted average incremental

borrowing rate applied is 3.3%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
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At
1 January
2019
iy
3
-A-AH
HKS'000
BT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as af 31 December 2018 RB-NE+-A=t-RRENELHERE 29,680
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental borrowing rates HEE BRI EETAIRETIR 25,966
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases W ERRE - EHHE (15,029)
Lease liabilities relafing fo operating leases recognised upon application ~ R=B—hE—B—RERE BHKREER L1605
of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 BRECEHEERNEEEE 10,937
Analysed as BRUTERIET A
Current T 3,086
Non-current k) 7,851
10,937

Notes:

(@ The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as af 1 January 2019 is relating to operating leases of land and
buildings recognised upon application of HKFRS 16.

(b) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered refundable rental deposits paid as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied under other receivables. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use of the underlying assets
and should be adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition. However, the adjustments fo present value
is insignificant to be recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2019.

On transition, the Group has made the following adjustments
upon application of HKFRS 16:

The Group recognised lease liabilities of HK$10,937,000 and
rightof-use assets of HK$10,937,000 at 1 January 2019.

Effective from 1 January 2019, leasehold lands which were
classified as properties under development and properties held
for sale are measured under HKFRS 16 at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019,
movements in working capital have been computed based on
opening consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
January 2019 as adjusted above.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the

Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition for

leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these leases

in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application

and comparative information has not been restated.

(a)

(b)

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets under
existing lease contracts are accounted as if the existing
leases are modified as at 1 January 2019. The application
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 January 2019. However, effective
from 1 January 2019, lease payments relating to the
revised lease term after modification are recognised as
income on straight-line basis over the extended lease term.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits
received were considered as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applied under trade and other
payables. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the
right-of-use assets and were adjusted to reflect the
discounting effect at transition. However, the adjustments to
present value is insignificant to be recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT

NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS @,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was
issued in 2018. lts consequential amendments, the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards,
will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock

Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories

or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that
at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique equals

the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and
e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
The significant accounting policies are set out below.
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
*  has power over the investee;

® s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

®  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is aftributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate

share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an
investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment

is acquired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that joint venture would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial

disposal of the relevant joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that

are not related to the Group.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

*  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

®  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

®  the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to
a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before

payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (sale of properties and interior decoration services),
the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance

obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contfract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that the
transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the

promised goods or services to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group's performance in transferring

control of goods or services.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in

transferring control of goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would

not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or

services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one

year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its interior decoration
contracts. The Group first assesses whether these costs qualify
for recognition as an asset in terms of other relevant standards,
failing which it recognises an asset for these costs only if they

meet all of the following criteria:

(a)

the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated

contract that the Group can specifically identify;
(b)

the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that
will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)

performance obligations in the future; and

(c)

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or

the costs are expected to be recovered.

loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The asset is subject to impairment review.

LEASING

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with fransitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease

components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account
for the lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the

portfolio.

Shortterm leases

The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption to
leases of land and building that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on shortterm leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in

accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
*  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

* any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

*  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

* an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions

of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the
end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its

estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property and
inventory are presented within “investment properties” and
“properties under development for sale/properties held for

sale”, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable;

*  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

* amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

®  payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate

the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

inferest accretion and lease payments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Llease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

* the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease

if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding

the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone

price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of

the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone

price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered as
integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a

straight-line basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset fo the lessee, the contract is classified as a

finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straightline basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Upon application
of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straightline basis over the lease term. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are

recognised as income when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group's

ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenuve from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative

stand-alone selling prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS @ and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease

payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new

lease.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the

Group’s interests in joint ventures.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible

for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary

difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
seftled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over

time, rather than through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets
and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use

assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary

differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied

to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the

relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” (upon
application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid lease payments” (before
application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties

are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building (Continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Effective 1 January 2019, investment properties also include
leased properties which are being recognised as right-of-use
assets upon application of HKFRS 16 and subleased by the

Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease

income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period

in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Effective 1 January 2019, a leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset upon application of HKFRS 16 is
derecognised if the Group as intermediate lessor classifies the
sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE
ASSETS AND CONTRACT COSTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
properties under development, right-of-use assets, and contract
costs to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated

in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
properties under development, and right-of-use assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets
related to the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying amounts
exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for related goods or services less
the costs which relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not been recognised as expenses. The assets
capitalised as contract costs are then included in the carrying
amount of the cash-generating unit to which they belong for the

purpose of evaluating impairment of that cash-generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE
ASSETS AND CONTRACT COSTS (CONTINUED)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its

recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion

and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES FOR SALE

Properties under development for sale which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties for sale are
classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land element
which is measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon the application of
HKFRS 16, properties under development for sale/properties for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to

properties for sale upon completion.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating inferest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s

ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

®  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting

contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,

except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial

recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect

to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity

investment in other comprehensive income if that equity

investment is neither held for trading nor contingent

consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

® it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near term; or

®  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of shortterm profittaking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become creditimpaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become creditimpaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the creditimpaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer creditimpaired.

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to accumulated

profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a

recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured

at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’

line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and
other receivables, fixed bank deposits with more than three
months to maturity when raised, and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision

matrix with appropriate groupings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

*  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit

risk before the amount becomes past due.
(i)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an

Definition of default

event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.

3. FEEHBE(R)

EMIA(E)
EMEE(R)
EHEERE (&)

(i) fEEREREZEME)

T B 2 AR - NEERS
EENNTEHER=TX  EAH
BRAURGEERBCEEEM RIS
EEEEEATXINERER -

AEBEEHEZAUBRNEERBES
BEIRMNRE 2Nz - BEFTRE @
A RERZERESHAHARRE
B mEpmREE o

(i) EBHNER
MARCERREEMNS ~AEERA
BHEHEANBFTREBEIRRRE
MWERBTREBATKTEEHDE
A (BEAKE) B (CRFTRAEE T
B KR m) BEE o

TwmEXRM AEERS  ERER
EERBEBOORRBEEN XK
EAESEBAXIFNER RERE NG
BHENGEEER/NRE -

-

HEHEHHZY-—F=- | EVHEXTNEE o

Z
>
4
(o)
=
~
B
o
=
=
%
&
-

N



-—
-3
(-]

6102 L4OdFY IVANNY | QILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is creditimpaired includes observable data about the

following events:
(a)
(b)
(c)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d)

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted

at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is creditimpaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised

in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,

but is transferred to accumulated profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for
trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

*  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of shortterm profittaking; or

e it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an

accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and
bank and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as
a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge

relationship.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred

tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured

using the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios in Hong

Kong and the PRC and concluded that (a) the Group's investment

properties in Hong Kong are not held under a business model

whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, (b) the

Group's investment properties in the PRC are held under a

business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of

the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties in Hong Kong, the directors of
the Company have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties located
in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes
on disposal of these investment properties. The presumption that
the carrying amounts of the Group’s investment properties
situated in the PRC are recovered entirely through sale has been
rebutted and the deferred tax on the changes in fair value of
those investment properties is recognised according to the

relevant tax rules.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 December 2019 at their fair value,
details of which are disclosed in note 14. The fair value of the
investment properties was determined by reference to valuations
conducted on these properties by an independent qualified
professional valuer using property valuation techniques which
involve certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions may
result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair
value reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the carrying amount of these properties included in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The carrying
amount of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2019 is approximately HK$8,771,446,000 (2018:
HK$8,701,400,000).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2019, a deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$183 million (2018:
HK$226 million) has been recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of approximately
HK$556 million (2018: HK$472 million) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period

in which such a reversal takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

5.
(i)

REVENUE
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

An analysis of the Group's revenue and the reconciliation of the

revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts

disclosed in the segment information is as follows:

5.
(i)

W #3

REMB®RRMEE

HERZITESRBKASE

REBRAND T REZEF QUK
BEDERFTIRESBRANHRNT ¢

2019 2018
s Ly K2 —E-N\F
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT
Property development NEER
— Sale of properties —MEHE 468,154 1,195,398
— Inerior decoration services - EREBRE 273,781 88,256
Property management MEER 21,599 20,896
Trading and manufacturing ESREE 69,398 77,346
Hotel operation BELE 15,912 12,120
Revenue from contracts with customers HE RS LMK S 848,844 1,394,016
Property investment (note) NERE (M) 354,999 355,739
Treasury investment B%RE
— Interest income — FBWA 53,905 58,072
— Dividend income - REWA 18,760 28,398
Total revenue il 1,276,508 1,836,225
note:  Operating lease payments mainly includes base rental. Leases are negotiated for ferm ranging from one to five i3 : SLRARBITAEEARS B BENARE—2E
years with monthly fixed rental. ENSAEERE



5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. Uz (48)
(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM (i) HEFRZITESRBBAGRE(E)
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-—ZE—hE+=-B=+—HIEE
Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel
investment  development management  investment manufacturing operafion Total
MERE NERR NEER HHERE BARRE EEEE L
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Sale of properties MEHE - 468,154 - - - - 468,154
Interior decoration services ~ EREERE - 273,781 - - - - 273,781
Property management WEEE - - 34,528 - - - 34,528
Trading and manufacturing EE)ET - - - - 69,398 - 69,398
Hotel operation EESE - - - - = 15,996 15,996
Eliminations on infer-segment  £EAR 544
fransactions - - (12,929) - - (84) (13,013)
Revenue from contracts with R F ALk
wstomers - 74193 21,599 - 6939 15912 848,844
Property investment MERE 359,250 - - - - - 359,250
Interest income FIEWBA - - - 53,905 - - 53,905
Dividend income REWA - - - 18,760 - - 18,760
Eliminations on inter-segment  £EAR 544
fransactions (4,251) - - - - - (4,251)
Segment revenue AR 354,999 741,935 21,599 72,665 69,398 15912 1,276,508
Property Property  Trading and Hotel
development  management  manufacturing operation Total
WEER NEER Eo RS EELE L
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AT BETT BETT Bt BETT
Geographical markets WENS
Hong Kong BE - 21,599 - 2431 24,030
PRC HE 741,935 - 69,398 13,481 824,814
Total st 741,935 21,599 69,398 15,912 848,844
Timing of revenue recognition B
A paint in fime R-EEY 468,154 - 69,398 2,342 539,894
Over time BEERE 273,781 21,599 - 13,570 308,950
Total st 741,935 21,599 69,398 15912 848,844
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

5.
(i)

Wk (48)
HEFRZITERBBKANSEE(E)

REMB®RRMEE

BE-Z-\F+ZA=T-HLEE

Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel
investment  development  management investment  manufacturing operation Total
NERE NELR NEER BERE ERRHE BELE @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
BRI BRI BET T BETT BET T BETT BETT
Sale of properties MEHE - 1,195,398 - - - - 1,195,398
Inferior decoration services ENRBIRE - 88,256 - - - - 88,256
Property management MEEE - - 34,143 - - - 34,143
Trading and manufacturing EE)ET - - - - 77,346 - 77,346
Hotel operation EREE - - - - - 12,120 12,120
Eliminations on intersegment ~ £ER X 7454
fransactions - - (13,247) - - - (13,247)
Revenue from contracts with ~ ERZFA A%
customers - 1,283,654 20,896 - 77,346 12120 1,394,016
Property investment MERE 359,986 - - - - - 359,986
Interest income FIEWA - 13,676 - 44,396 - - 58,072
Dividend income REWA - - - 28,398 - - 28,398
Eliminations on infersegment ~ EER%R 5 444
transactions (4,247) - - - - - (4,247)
Segment revenue AR 355,739 1,297,330 20,896 72,794 77,346 12120 1,836,225
Property Property Trading and Hotel
development management  manufacturing operafion Total
NERR NEER BSREE ERELE st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT BBTT BRI BETT
Geographical markets WENS
Hong Kong &8 - 20,894 - - 20,896
PRC HE 1,283,654 - 77,346 12,120 1,373,120
Total at 1,283,654 20,896 77,346 12,120 1,394,016
Timing of revenue recognition R R
A point in fime R-EEE 1,195,398 - 77,346 - 1,272,744
Over fime BEERE 88,256 20,896 - 12,120 121,272
Total A5t 1,283,654 20,896 77,346 12,120 1,394,016




5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)
(ii) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS
Property development
For contracts entered into with customers on sales of properties,
the relevant properties specified in the contracts are based on
customer’s specifications with no alternative use. Taking into
consideration of the relevant contract terms, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the Group concluded
that the Group does not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers. Revenue
from sales of properties is therefore recognised at a point in time
when the completed property is transferred to customers, being
at the point that the customer obtains the control of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment

and collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the
payment terms of the sale and purchase agreement. Such
advance payment results in contract liabilities being recognised

throughout the property construction period.

The Group provides interior decoration services to these
customers. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these construction services
based on the stage of completion of the contract using input
method.

The Group’s interior decoration contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the construction
period. The Group requires customers to provide upfront
deposits, when the Group receives a deposit before construction
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific contract

exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(ii) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Property development (Continued)

A contract asset is recognised over the period in which the

construction services are performed representing the Group's

right to consideration for the services performed.

All the interior decoration services are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price

allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Property management

Revenue from property management represents charge-out
collections, which consist of payments in respect of the operation
of the properties which are payable by the tenants, are
recognised over time using output method when the services and
facilities are provided. The Group applied the practical
expedient in HKFRS by recognising revenue in the amount to
which the Group has right to invoice, since the Group is entitled
to bill a fixed amount in advance for each month according to
the terms of the relevant lease. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the

unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Trading and manufacturing

For sales of magnetic products, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred to customers, being when
the goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following the delivery, the customer has full discretion
over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears
the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The

normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

Hotel operation

Hotel room revenue from customers is recognised over time using
output method when the service and facilities are provided. All
the hotel operation service are for periods of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to

the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Revenue from food and beverages is recognised when the food

and beverage are delivered to the customers.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HE&EH

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, ZARAT@EHITES  EFBEZREA -
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the FMERIEHFRDPEREME®R 22
purposes of resources allocation or assessment of segment &Rl - IR EBEEVFTIRMEMNHEEMN
performance focuses on types of goods and services delivered RISHEEA DT EE - TELKEREKA
or provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM REBEAREE 2 7] 285 EHE - BMEK
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segment of T % BIMEAILE D EESGHEIE o

the Group.
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Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments R EFBIIERELEDFE SR EES HAE
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows: BeXBREBOSBUT :

1. Property investment — investment and letting of properties 1. YERE — WERERHEE
2. Property development — development and sale of 2. ¥¥%E — YERRERHE 817

properties, including interior decoration services B IRE

3. Property management — provision of property management 3. ¥ EIE — B EEIERE

services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in 4. Bfi§RE — EEREMESMTAN

securities and other financial instruments REREKE

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of 5. BZEHE — MMERREREE
magnetic products

6. Hotel operation — management and operation of hotel 6. [EE&EZE — BAEEERLEE
business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by operating and reportable segments.

6. SEHEAH(H)
SRR REER

SES Pl

For the year ended 31 December 2019
Segment revenue
Comprising:
— revenue from customers
— infer-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties

Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

BEZZ-NE+ZAZ+-HLEE
pap L6y
afE
— &Rk
— KERRS (W)

EERX

RENELVEEZBNEG

BOTEEABR ERERNTEERDUE
ERITETAZAVERRBER

HWENE  BERREZER

Net exchange (losses) gains 5% (58 s
Segment profit (loss) 28R (B8)
Finance costs BBHA

Share of results of joint ventures fritaEtEEE
Profit before tax BRBL AT A

nofe:  Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices.
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Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel Segment
invesiment  development  management investment  manufacturing operation totll  Eliminations  Consolidated
NERE ELH NRER MERE HoRRE EEEE VETE) Ef &a

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT ERTR AR ARt ARt BT AR AR ARt

359,250 741,935 34,528 72,665 69,398 15,996 1,293,772 (17,264) 1,276,508
354,999 741,935 21,599 72,665 69,398 15912
4,251 - 12,929 - - 84

(136,197) (478,934) (20,572) (38,653) (63,769) (60,111) (798,236) 17,264 (780,972)

119,843 - - - - - 119,843 - 119,843

- - - 3,356 - - 3,356 - 3,356

- - - (465) - - (465) - (465)

(174) = = = (138) (2) (314) = (314)

(561) (7,846) 104 (5,455) - - (13,758) - (13,758)

342,161 255,155 14,060 31,448 5491 (44,117) 604,198 - 604,198

(45,265)

32191

591,124

N
o
(=}

HHEFTY-—&F=- | BEvHEXIEEE



N

6107 IO IVANNY | QILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NIt g

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by operating and reportable segments.

6. SEHEAH(H)
SEMEREE(E)

SES Pl

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Segment revenue
Comprising:
— revenue from customers
— inter-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of invesiment properties

Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

BEZT-\$+ZRZt-HLEE
bt
(2
&Pl
- KBRS (W)

E£ERX

REMELVEEZBYEG
BRYEEF RS EHEEATEELDER
ERITETAZATEERDES

HENE  BERREZER

Net exchange gains (losses) B ENE (F8)
Segment profit AEER

Finance cosfs BIBAAR

Share of results of joint ventures b eetELE
Profit before fox BRBL AT A

REMB®RRMEE

UTARRIZBREZ B2 AEE W ES
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Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment ~ development  management investment  manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
NERE NxER NEER BBRE  BHREE BELE NEAT B Ga

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BRI i i R BT BRI BT o R i

359,986 1,297,330 34,143 72,794 77,346 12,120 1,853,719 (17,494) 1,836,225
355,739 1,297,330 20,896 72,794 77,346 12,120
4,247 - 13,247 - - -

(129,305) (825,628) (20,016) (20,532) (71,320) (11,158) (1,077,959) 17,494 (1,060,465)

436,055 - - - - - 436,055 - 436,055

- - - (1,867) - - (1,867) - (1,867)

- - - (6,679) - - (6,679) - (6,679)

- (2,075) - - - - (2,075) - (2,075)

61 (21,799 219 3,703 - - (17,816) - (17,816)

666,797 447 828 14,346 47,419 6,026 962 1,183,378 - 1,183,378

(19122

61,752

1,226,008

note:  Infersegment fransactions are charged at prevailing market prices. Wzt SERARZEBRTHERER

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same #5182 2FTBEREEM &F 3 Frifl 2 A&
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment B R HEMERE - 2B &H (EFE)IEE
profit (loss) represents the profit earned by/loss incurred from Rt AFTEEE CEEXBERMBRAZ
each segment without allocation of share of results of joint BERTE P EFRN BN, EZ2H
ventures and finance costs. In addition, the Group’'s 1 It/ BIBRESEEHMWEK D
administrative costs are allocated to respective operating 38R ASFTH & 2 1T BUK AR E 1% 18 B £ 7%
segments on the basis of revenue earned by individual operating S BRI WEES R ERELE DM -
segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the HNEBCUNKDEFEREBLELEREK
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. AZH YAEERSBERTZDE

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& & Bt # 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEEH(E)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES PHEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilites LU TAREHL/E2AEBEERERE
by reportable segments: DA
Segment assets DHEEE
2019 2018
—F-nf —E-N\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Property investment MERE 9,006,316 8,986,482
Property development MERE 2,794,724 3,742,597
Property management MEEE 3,709 3,421
Treasury investment BIERE 1,236,491 1,323,787
Trading and manufacturing EC)EL 92,749 92,620
Hotel operation AELE 1,415,713 6,700
Total segment assefs PTEEEAR 14,549,702 14,155,607
Taxation recoverable ER 27 33,458
Inferests in joint ventures AELERER 307,843 292,987
Deferred tax assets BEHBEE 27,472 31,469
Consolidated assets SREE 14,885,044 14,513,521
Segment liabilities SEEE
2019 2018
—F-1f —2-N\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Property investment MERE 328,726 178,587
Property development MERR 176,015 643,819
Property management NEER 2,986 3,077
Treasury investment BRRE 8,974 8,623
Trading and manufacturing EEE 10,902 12,179
Hotel operation BERE 79,822 1217
Total segment liabilities GEEENEFE 607,425 847,502
Taxation payable ERHH 40,790 137,713
Borrowings & 1,509,734 867,818
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIESE 256,875 263,420
Consolidated liabilities SRERE 2,414,824 2,116,453

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and AERSERBERRIBEIEER -
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated BRRAWREFHR - SE L ENERRIE
to operating segments other than taxation recoverable, interests ERMIEEEIN > FIEEEHIHEEK
in joint ventures and deferred tax assets. All liabilities are 2% MBREMSBIR - ERRELEFRE
allocated to operating segments other than taxation payable, B&/  FIBEEHEILEXKDE -

borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6. SHEEH(EK)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hibo@EER
Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment  manufacturing operafion (onsolidated
EZ L YEER HHRE 85 RHE EEE ]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT B8 BT AR BRI BT BT
Amounts included in he measure of HEDEE
segment resulfs and segment assefs: ABEEZEE:
019 2
Additons fo nor-<urrent assefs (nofe) FREEREN (M) 20764 93129 - - 5823 746 120,462
Deprecafion i 9,975 m - - 2559 6,616 19422
18 23-I\5
Addions fo norrcurrent assefs (nofe) FROEELM(HED) 12,003 40,152 - - 1,067 1,639 55,881
Depreciation i 1,045 2173 - - 2859 15 12752
Impairment loss recognised in respect BHENERESERD
of propeties held for sale - 74,703 - - - - 74,703
note:  Non-current assets exclude inferests in joint ventures, financial instruments and deferred fax assets. Wt FRBEETERAECERE SRMIEREEREEE -
Geographical information EEE

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and other
parts of the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on the
location of the operations. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets is presented based on the geographical location

of the assets.

REBEBUREBRPEHMME -

BRAKEBECENIREFZUEE
BLBREEEBMEBEZ®R FRAL
SERBDEENERAZREEMEH

Revenue Non-current assets
e FRBEE

2019 2018 2019 2018
k- K2 E-N\E k- Ly K2 “E-)\E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BT BETT BRI
Hong Kong Y 290,673 274,371 7,503,529 7,228,702
PRC mE 985,835 1,561,904 2,735,994 2,841,699
1,276,508 1,836,225 10,239,523 10,070,401

Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 contributing over 10%

of the total operating revenue of the Group.

FRBEETREFESLELEES T8
TAREEBEEE °

FTEEFREH
BE-Z-hF+ZA=+—HK=Z
—NF+ZA=+—HBLFE AEX
BEFzHRREAEEALEERZBA
10% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

REMB®RRMEE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HibWsREHE
2019 2018
3N “E-0\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties RENFELTEELENE 119,843 436,055
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of financial assets BRAVEESAER ERER
at FVTPL AHEEZBNE (K1) 3,356 (1,867)
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments 74 ¢ @ T B2 A FEEEBER (465) (6,679)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE BERREER (314) (2,075)
Net exchange losses ELFER (13,758) (17,816)
108,662 407,618
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBERE
2019 2018
“F-0E —E-N\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Interest on borrowings: EZFE
Bank loans HITEH 43,709 31,345
Other borrowings HifE % 984 3,301
44,693 34,646
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFR 410 -
Other inferest expense RIS S H 162 -
Less: Amount capitalised as cost of properties under B ABENT I BN ME Rt &
development/properties under development for TERERE  FHERRETYE
sale at o capitalisation rate ranging BAZERE
from 3.77% to 4.75% per annum - (15,524)
45,265 19122
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiRBixH
2019 2018
“F-NE “E-0\E%
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT
The charge comprises: TaE:
Current fox: REERE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBAEH 12,945 14,949
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HE R EREH 98,182 124,838
111,127 139,787
Dividend withholding fax REFBHH 15,778 14,010
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BAFE (BE) TR
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFIEH (130) (150)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax e R FEH 389 135
259 (15)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") B L A ER 15,502 26,593
Deferred faxation (note 29) EIERIE (MHEE09) 1,989 (2,289)
144,655 178,086




9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as

9. FisBixl (&)
REEZHBEEFGSERRARRBA
A ZEERAT ¢

Z
>
4
(o)
=
~
B
o
=
=
%
&
-

follows:
2019 2018
“F-NF —2-N\%
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT
Profit before fax BB AR R 591,124 1,226,008
Hong Kong Profits Tax af the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)  #BZ 1654 (ZB—NE : 165%) 5182
EEFIER 97,535 202,291
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures FriEagtE$ B HiEYE (5312) (10,189)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose FARERFRTE 15,380 9,445
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEFHMA BB E (33,328) (89,602)
Under(over) provision in prior years BAFETR (BR)RE 259 (15)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REAREEEz R K2 17,300 6,552
Tax effect of utlisation of tox losses previously not recognised ~ EAIRERB R HBER2HKZE (856) (179)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating REMBFRELE CHBARATEHE
in other jurisdictions ga 30,570 55,132
PRC LAT B L ER 15,502 26,593
Tax effect of PRC LAT HE L IEER BB E (3,875) (6,648)
Dividend withholding tox B S T8 15,778 14,010
Others Hit (4,298) (29,304)
Tax charge for the year KEERBESLH 144,655 178,086
nofes: Bzt

(@ On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bil ()
2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profifs fax rates regime. The Bill was signed info law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-fiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HKS2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKS2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the twotiered profits fax rates regime will
continue to be taxed af a flat rate of 16.5%.

W=B-NE=A=+-H BREULEBBT[-3-tF
BB BT (F1R)RAER] (RAER])  ZRAERS
ATEBHNERBZHE  ZARRZE-NEZ A=t N\H
BERALE YRRBEZHTE - REEBANEHIE
REREEBENECAEATABERIIVER mEB
“EHEBTNABUARISHER - THAEERBHBIE
HENEBERNFIELEER Y NEEHEAH o

FRFEEAR  EREEASHAEMSRNSERGH
BRERUBEABE - BENGHEME FE A BRBET
H10.5%5 8 o

BREARAMACEFEHE (REFERE ) REXFH
BHARKEARN vENBRAARERIN(ZE-NF!
15%) °

REFERERSNNABEAT  AEHDERTE T HEE
B ARTHEERENARKERENFREBANRLRE
EME HRETEAIEARHY T REHBENFEE

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits fax
rates regime as insignificant fo the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

(b)  Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation (b)
Regulation of the EIT Law, the fax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2018: 25%).

(¢ The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant ()
PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilifies are subject fo the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on

. - . 209
which the provision for LAT is calculated. o .
-4
»
R
"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& & Bt # 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. XEERH
2019 2018
s Ly K2 —E-N\F
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT
Profit for the year has been arrived af ofter charging: REERNEHRTHIZE
Directors” emoluments (note 11) EBHS () 28,770 28,275
Other staff costs EMETIHA 110,892 74,638
Staff refirement schemes contributions, net of HK$22,000 ST EMEFIME - MER U1
(2018: HKS84,000) forfeited contributions BEN0T(ZE-NE A% 4,364 3,578
Total staff costs BIMAEL 144,026 106,491
Auditor’s remuneration TS 2,891 2,874
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE  BERRETE 14,577 12,752
Depreciation of right-of-use assefs ERAEEENE 4,845 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings thpEFLefyzEs - 7,505
Selling expenses (included in “administrative and HERT (BRE[THREERY))
operating expenses”) 3,989 17,418
Impairment loss recognised in respect of properties held for sale & H €M% 2 REEERER
(included in “direct costs”) (BEETEERK)) = 74,703
and after credifing: BEA
Gross rental income from investment properties RENELHSUA 354,999 355,739
Less: direct expenses of investment properties that B ERELRSRAZREYEERER
generated rental income during the year (25,968) (31,549)
329,031 324,190




11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2018: 11)

11.ES THAZXREENS

ENFIEATFINA(ZZE-NF 118)

Z
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&
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directors were as follows: EECoMEeWT -
Other emoluments
HivM &
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees henefits (notee) confributions  emoluments
EF il
HMR #EE RN
ne Hiwiadl (Mizte) B T
HKS'000 HKS’000 HKS'000 HKS’000 HKS'000
BETT BRI BETT BETT BRI
2019 ZE-nf
Executive Directors (note a) BTEE (W)
Liu Lit Chi BIE 300 9.291 - 559 10,150
Liv Kam Fai, Winston BiE 200 5,881 - 387 6,468
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B 200 4818 - 378 5,396
Lee Wai Hung TRl 200 3,709 - 371 4,280
Non-executive Directors (note b) FHTES (B
Liu Lit Chung BIIR 117 559 - - 676
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HRR 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BIEROES (Mo
Directors (nofe c)
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses e 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen, Authur BiER 300 - = - 300
Ma Hung Ming, John B 300 = = - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo 5 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EEHR 300 - - - 300
Total 3t 2817 24,258 - 1,695 28,770

B HEEY &= | EVHEXTEEE O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMB®RRMEE

11.EE - THEARRESEMNS (F)

Other emoluments
HivM &
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Refirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (note e)  contributions  emoluments
HMR RE RINER
He HitgE A (izTe) HE[ ame
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETR BETT BETT
2018 —E-0\f
Executive Directors (note a) BTEE (W)
Liv Lit Chi BIE 300 8,674 430 513 9.917
Liv Kam Fai, Winston BiE 200 5,505 288 342 6,335
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B, 200 4175 280 324 4979
Lee Wai Hung TEMH 200 3,255 275 326 4,056
Non-executive Directors (note b) FHTES (HED)
Liv Lit Chung BIR 200 988 - - 1,188
Kho Eng Tioan, Christopher RR 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BIEHITES (Mo
Directors (note c)
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses LS 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen, Authur BHR 300 - - - 300
Ma Hung Ming, John Ei5H 300 - - - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo BEAN 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric = 300 - - - 300
Tofal st 2,900 22,597 1,273 1,505 28,275
nofes: Bt st
(@) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their sevices in connection with the management of () FHTEE Y A EEERAN IR ALESH 2 BRAR o

the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company or ifs

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors) as an inducement o join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

(b)

subsidiaries.
(©

Company.
(d)
(e)

The performance related incentive payment is defermined by reference to the individual performance of the
directors and approved by the remuneration committee of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018.

0]

(e)

BIarES e EAFARAASNBLAAES 2 RE
BB

LB TES HERE AR RAES 2 RHAR

£ AEERENEAESREAERHAL (BEES)X
MEAHE - EAMAREBES AR EERG 2 RBABRH
B-BE-E-NE+t-A=ZT-HR=-F-NE+=A
ST-AEMEFE YEESHRANEIBEHENZ
Be

HE_E-NE+-A=+-AR-E-N\E+-A=1+-H
IREEERRBER  ERRESNAENREERE  UHA
E@FMZEERE



11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year

included four directors (2018: four directors), details of whose

remuneration are set out as above. Details of the remuneration

for the year ended 31 December 2019 of the remaining one

(2018: one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor

chief executive of the Company are as follows:

11.ES THARRESEMNS (F)

FRAAEBLERSHEERENSE
B(ZE-\F EOEEF) HHEMWF
BEHIWE - BEZF-NF+ZA
ST-BLEFENGRT-—R(ZZF-N
F:-R)BeHFEE(AHAQXTES
TR BEFBEFISNT ¢

2019 2018

ZF-0% ZE-N\E

HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETT

Salaries and other benefits TEHEMEF 1,821 1,614
Performance related bonuses ERERBNES - 136
Retirement scheme contributions BRBRIET 182 155
2,003 1,905

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

FEARFESNESFHNE T AHN
T EHMWEUATHER

No. of employee

EIAH
2019 2018
Z3-hnE =

HKS1,500,001 to HKS2,000,000 A1 500,001 70 258 852,000,0007
HK$2,000,001 to HKS2,500,000 FBEE1,000,001 70 28 %52,500,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMB®RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE
12. DIVIDENDS 12. g8
2019 2018
ot BV “2-N\%
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FREAI KRS |
Interim dividend paid for 2019 — HK$0.22 per share “E-NEBRTERESRAER N
(2018: interim dividend paid for 2018 — HKS0.22 (ZB-NE BR=E-NEHHRE
per share) FRE®NT) 83,288 83,288
Final dividend paid for 2018 — HK$0.48 per share “E2-\EERRERESRAER 14T
(2018: final dividend paid for 2017 — HKS0.42 (ZB-N\E BR-E-tEXBRE
per share) FRE®T) 181,720 159,005
265,008 242,293
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend ZEBEHREHERE  BE-FT - F
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of HK$0.38 +=A :‘f‘— ALEFEZRBPREER

(2018: final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 of HK$0.48) per share, in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$143,862,000 (2018: HK$181,720,000)
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval

by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$429,984,000 (2018: HK$1,014,267,000) and on
378,583,440 (2018: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

B#0.38 T(ZF—N\F : Eﬁi_? AN
F+ZR=1t-BLFEZRHEREE

5%’#50 487t) » H#)78% 143,862,000
T(Z=ZZF - )\F: 8 %181,720,000
) ﬁ“‘Elﬂ%%éi_” » W6 A A B & R IR
BERE LEEREHE -

13. BlxEFRF
RABRREESRELRER T MRIEAR
EEZIK’&E&iEE{EZ%T%%M’\J‘}%W%
429,984,000t ( = - NF: BE
1,014,267,000 7T ) &Z'KEF_E@;WTE
fR378,583,440%( = & — J\ #F:
378,583,440 %) 5t & °

BE-Z-NEF+-A=t-HR=ZF
—\F+ZA=T—-HBLFERIES
EEEBER  AULBESREBNTE
X



14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14, 8 &M

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and ANEERBELELHEEHESEETE B
industrial units and retail stores under operating leases with M I EEBNURSERE  8AXN
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial & HEBEAH —FEHEFE - F A
period of one to five years, with unilateral rights to extend the HBEFEEMNKESEREZEREAAA
lease beyond initial period held by lessees only. BEENADEER LA o

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of HRFIEHEEHYLUEERSES H AL
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the E#iH{E X HMAEEFSEEENRZHE
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease TMEAZ I EREK - HESE T E SRtk
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or BEIERM, A A TEH S H iz
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.  1ZIE B Bt EH)IRIE o

Z
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HKS000

BETT
FAIR VALUE NEEE
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-A—H 8,392,900
Currency realignment [ & (134,697)
Additions Sl 7,142
Gain on changes in fair value NYEEEBUE 436,055
At 31 December 2018 R-Z2-NE+=A=1-H 8,701,400
Currency realignment Bz (61,654)
Additions 140 11,857
Gain on changes in fair value AYEEZBNS 119,843
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 8,771,446

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the EfFYERIFEER  AEBEWEHE
Group's policy to engage an independent qualified professional ~ JIEE B & &R B (LERMETHE ©
valuer to perform the valuations. The management works closely EEEEGEMETEHE  BXBEEN
with the valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques &8 3% 17 b B AR B gy A B35 o

and inputs to the model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

On 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, independent
valuations were undertaken by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Ltd. (“Vigers”), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group which has appropriate professional
qualifications and recent experience in the valuations of similar

properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison
method by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions or, where
appropriate, by capitalising the market rentals of all lettable
units of the properties by reference to the rentals achieved in the
lettable units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made by
reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for the similar
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the valuer’s

knowledge of the factors specific to the respective properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best

use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the

fair value measurements is observable.

REMB®RRMEE

14, &M (F)
R-ZFB-—NAEFE+-A=Z=+—HBR=Z
—-N\FE+-A=+—H BIUERH
B HT & B ST AR B PR A B ([ E& Hr 1)
EIT BERTAEAEETHEELS
VEERSEMGEMN  HEMEBHES
P EETHEREBEENSXERK
ITHAASER ©
FENEZELBENZ2Z R E R AR
ENELYENTSERRZZETHE
BUZEENEEARMBIIEUYENAE
ABERUAERCEMBAELENDY
MEHBEGRERE)SE - AEES
MERBAEAEENNTEHEENSZ
A HEMERNABEURITECLY
(XNEHMBABRIGEHRE - EFFA
NWEARLLEEDKSZMEMMZLE
WELUMEBRFAENRREE  BER
BEEMArAREEENETENGSE
EERBEEA -

EHFTMELAFEER  YENESK
RERZREENAR -

TRIBERREMEN L FEENMF
BEENER (ERERET FTANMER
OREAZE)  UREBRAFEETES
M ASHAUBAGHNEE 840
FEEAEIBEELNTEERBTHIR
A(E—EE=RH) -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEEME(F) §
Investment properties E
held by the Group in the Valuation Relationship of =_c3,
consolidated statement of technique(s) Significant unobservable ey
financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value g
FEEHBHRENET) fERLEREEEY EXTABRAGHNER ARG HNESN T
REEMBRRR ENTEENRE

Investment properties in Hong Kong ~ Direct comparison method
with an aggregate carrying amount of ~ EFELLESE
HKS533,450,000

(2018: HKS1,115,950,000) The key input is
EERNRENEAREERY IELEA
533,450,000 (=B \F : B

1,115,950,000 1)
(1) Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the time, An increase in the unit sale rate used
(1 EfuHEES location, and individual factors, such as frontage ~ would result in an increase in the fair
and size, between the comparable and the value measurement of the investment

property, ranging from HKS130 to HKS34,000  properties by the same percentage
(2018: HKS130 to HKS35,000) per square  increase, and vice versa.

feet on gross floor area basis for properties and ~ FEAMENEEBR—BLHA » &%
ranging from HK$930,000 to HKS1,450,000 RENENATEEHERFRNE
(2018: HKS800,000 to HKS1,450,000) per LI+ K2R

unit for car park spaces.

ZRIGE W ERERNEENELS 2

BNENRE  NPEEERFR » B

EERERBEDNETAREEH 130

FEK34000(ZF-N\F : B%1307

EER35,0007) (RERERER:T) - FE

S BISEL BB 930,000 LB

1,450,000t (=& —/\5 : ##800,000

TEE®1,450,0007T) ©

217
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ=%

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
FEERBHRENET
RESHBRRR

“NETZA=T-HLFE

Valuation
technique(s)

and key input(s)
HERTRIERY

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EXTUBHGHNEY

REMB®RRMEE

14. &M (F)

Relationship of
unobservable

inputs to fair value
TARAGHHNEY
BT EEMER

Investment properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate carrying amount of
HKS4,762,800,000 (2018:
HKS4,767,600,000)
ERBNRENZAREESRS
4,762,800,0007t (=B N\E : &
" 4,767,600,0007c)

Income capitalisation method
63X d
The key inputs are

(1) Reversion yield

() BE4HERE

Monthly market rent
) BAmEHEE

Reversion yield, taking info account of the capitalisation of
tental income potential, nature of the property and prevailing
market condifion, ranging from 3.3% fo 4.8% (2018: 3.3%
fo.4.8%).

ZRIBSETUAERL  MERERR
KR BHENEEREESI.I%E4.8%
(ZB-NE:33%F4.8%) ¢

Monthly market rents, toking into account of fime, location
and individual foctors such as frontage and size, befween
the comparable and the property, ranging from HKS42 o
HKS180 (2018: HKS42 to HKS180) per square feet per
month on lettable orea basis.

ZRIKE  ARHBNEENELG 2
BOERNERZ  nrpkFE SAMmER
STARTEERRTELAREAES 27
ZREEIB0R (ZE-NE BB TER
#1807)

Alight increase in the reversion yield used would
result i a significant decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment propertes, and
Vice Versa.

FrRNERENE G2 EREM L
#oeLRENENDTEERR
BATH RZFA

A slight increasg in the monthly market rent used
would result in a significant increase in the foir
value measurement of the investment properties,
and vice verso.
FIRANGRmEHSEREM LT -
BLRENENLATEETEREX
I 0P ¥



14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. &M (&)
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Investment properties

held by the Group in the Valuation Relationship of
consolidated statement of technique(s) Significant unobservable
financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
FEEHBHRENET) RERLRIEEY EXTARAGHNEY ARG HNEY
REEHBRRR BN TEEMER

Investment properties in Hong Kong ~ Residual method

with an aggregate camying amount of ~ FERE
HKS719,000,000 (2018: nil)
EEBNRENELRAEEYE Thekeyinputis
719,000,000 (Z8-NF: &) FELYA
(1) Gross development  Gross development value on complefion basis, ~ An increase in the gross development
value mainly taking info account the time, locafion,  value would result in an increase in the

(1) #BREE fair value measurement of the
investment properties by the similar
percentage increase, and vice versa.
FIRNARREE-BLHA 89K
EMENATEETEZRONED
LI RZTFHR o

design, fronfage, layout and size between

the comparable and the properties,

which ranged from HK$22,000 to HK$40,000
(2018: n/a) per square foot

ZRINE  HERERNEENERS 2
BNEREZ  NPERERFE BRI
BEESTNARREETABTARMAY
22,000t E A% 40,000t (ZE-N\F :

() Estimated project
development cost

(2) FEIERERRAA

#) e

Estimated total construction cost fo complete amounted fo

HKS139,935,000 (2018: n/a)

fhat TR AR BN AL E R 139,935,000

(2018 : &) o

Anincrease in the estimated project development
cost would result in a slight decrease i the fair
value measurement of the investment properties,
and vice verso.

FrRMEAR BRRRA-B LA -
BLRENENATERT RN
T RZHHR

N
_
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14, &M (F)

Investment properties

held by the Group in the Valuation Relationship of
consolidated statement of technique(s) Significant unohservable
financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
FEERBHRENET RERLHREELH EXTUBAGHNEY TARAGHHNEY
RESHBRRR BT EEMER

Investment properties in the PRC with  Direct comparison method
an aggregate carrying amount of BELE
HK$232,195,000

(2018: HKS237,389,000) The key input is
ETENRENAREERES  ITELER
232,195,0007 (ZF— N\ : A%

237,389,0007¢)

(1) Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking info account the time, An increase in the unit sale rate used

(1 EfusHEEs location, and individual factors, such as frontage  would result in an increase in the fair
and size, between the comparable and the value measurement of the investment
property, ranging from RMB4,650 to properties by the same percentage
RMB15,500 (2018: RMB4,650 to increase, and vice versa.
RMB15,500) per square meter on gross floor ~ FrAMENHEEK—B LA 82
area basis for properies. REMENATBEGEREENE

ZRIGE HERURNERNELS 2 AEM R2FR -
BANENRS  IFERERFY &AL
g EEEBRERSTAREA
RE4,650TZARH 15,5007 (28 -1
£ ARB4,650TZARE15,5007) °

Investment properties in the PRC with  Income capitalisation method

an aggregate carrying amount of &R
HKS2,524,001,000
(2018: HKS2,580,461,000) The key inputs are

ETENRENFAREEESE  TELEAR
2,524,001,0007 (Z8-NE : &
2,580,461,0007)
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking info account of the A slight increase in the reversion yield
(1) WEHENERE capitalisation of rental income potential, nature  used would result in a significant
of the property and prevailing market condifion, ~ decrease in the fair value measurement
ranging from 6.0% to 6.5% (2018: 6.0% to  of the investment properties, and vice
6.5%). versa.
ZRIBSBTUAEAL MERERR FRANERENEEZEEEME
BiR BERENEREEER6.0%26.5% T ESRENENATEHEIEE

(ZB-N\F:6.0%26.5%) BATH R2H# o
(D) Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, toking info account of fime, location A slight increase in the monthly marke rent used
) SAMSEEE and individual factors such s frontage and size, between  would result in a significant increase i the fair

the comparable and the property, ranging from RMB95 to  value measurement of the investment properties,
RMBT,217 (2018: RMB95 to RMBI,217) per square and vice versa.

meter per month on lettable area basis. FANSATSHSEEEMLH

ZRINE wARUBRNEENEAG, SLREMFNATEEFEREX
BHEREZ  npakFE  BAMHR LA RzKf-

Tl AR HRERAETHRMARK 95

TEARBI 217 (Z8-NE: AR®

BREARE2177) 0



14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018 were measured using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs and hence were

classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group used market observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages an independent qualified professional valuer to perform
the valuations of the Group's investment properties. At the end
of each reporting period, the Group works closely with the
valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2
inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in
the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the
Group will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3
inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the

directors of the Company.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

14. &Y (&)
—E-AFE+ZA=t+t—HAKRZ=Z—N
F+-A=+—HHEREVENATE
BEDANAEFTTHASEHNE KB A
BPHHERDT W2 EALAFEER
BE=RF -

EhEFAAEERENENAFEER
AEEEASERNRHTRECAT
S EAEANRE 58 - R5WAZH
YARAE AEESERBELSERE
EMEMEBASEREMEFLMGEE-
EEREBR  AEEEALEMNEDS
B MBI RBEE KRB RE=RH
AV EEFENSBEHERLDREAZ
o AEEEHAZHAERTS L
MABIREFSHBASEE 28
THEBRAE-RE - EE-—RBI@A
BRI TTRE AEESXRARESE
=RNMARBNGEERDT - BEED
FEEREAZDK  KBNWERED
RABESBER -

FREBEBEAREBHE=RH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/PROPERTIES

UNDER DEVELOPMENT

15.

REMB®RRMEE

ME - BERRE ERDME

Furniture,
Other fixtures,
Hotel leasehold motor vehicles
land and land and Plantand  and computer
buildings buildings machinery equipment Total
EELE Ht@EELi 7 RE-
REF REF BREHKE EHRERR afE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS"000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
oSt KA
At T January 2018 RZE-N\F-A—H = 105,137 41,635 109,213 255,985
Currency realignment ERAR - - (1,727) (1,289) (3,016)
Additions 140 - 1,177 1,287 8,359 10,823
Disposals HE = = - (2,237) (2,237)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\&
+ZA=1-H = 106,314 41,195 114,046 261,555
Currency realignment Exfz - (26) (812) (584) (1,422)
Additions #10 = = 5,823 8,786 14,609
Transfer from property HERERYIEEA
under development 1,117,575 - - 216,363 1,333,938
Disposals HE = = (481) (9.752) (10,233)
At 31 December 2019 R=E-n%
T=H=1—H 1,117,575 106,288 45,725 328,859 1,598,447
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION #7% i 84
At T January 2018 RZE-NF-A—-H - 15,100 22,512 92,569 130,181
Currency realignment ERFE - - (948) (4,347) (5,295)
Charge for the year KEEXH - 2,436 2,859 7,457 12,752
Eliminated on disposals AL ER - = - (162) (162)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE
+=RA=+-H — 17,536 24,423 95,517 137,476
Currency realignment ExHER - Q) (493) (513) (1,007)
Charge for the year KEEYH 2,739 2,485 2,559 6,794 14,577
Eliminated on disposals A ERE — - (342) 9,577) (9,919)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE
+=A=1-H 2,739 20,020 26,147 92,221 141,127
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+ZA=t-H 1,114,836 86,268 19,578 236,638 1,457,320
At 31 December 2018 RIE-NE
+ZR=1-H - 88,778 16,772 18,529 124,079
notes: FIEE -

(@) The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straightline basis af the following rates ~(q)

per annum:

Hotel land and buildings

Other leasehold land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles and computer equipment

Over the shorter of the term of lease or 2% to 3%

Over the shorter of the term of the lease or 2% to 3%

10%

10-20%

FiE  BERREERDRESEE
THIFRITE :

BERELERET BEREAHNER
EWREST]
HttBE L RET BRRECRNFH
%23
BER# 10%

R#Es h
G RE  EHREMRE 10-20%



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/PROPERTIES

UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

nofes: (Confinued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2018, properties under development amounting fo approximately HKS1,244,922,000
represented the cost in relation o the redevelopment of a property located in Hong Kong into a hotel. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, additions of properties under development amounting to approximately
HKS89,016,000 (2018: HKS37,916,000). Upon the completion in December 2019, it has been transferred
info property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the management of the Group concluded there was indication for
impairment and conducted impairment assessment on hotel land and buildings with carrying amounts of
HKS1,114,836,000. The management of the Group estimated the value in use of the cash-generating unit to
which the hotel and buildings belong. Such value in use calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering the following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rafe
is 8.8%. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using 4% growth rate. The growth rate is
based on the industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industry.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculated is the budgeted gross margin, which is defermined based
on management expectations for the market development.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Based on the result of the
assessment, management of the Group determined that the recoverable amount of the hotel land and buildings
based on the fair value less cost of disposal of the hotel properties was higher than its carrying amount. No
impairment is recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019.

15.

FfEE -

()

VE BMERREG BERPUE
(%)
()
R=ZB-—NEF+-A=+—8 BEFNE
BB, 204,922 0T ART A —ARAE B

MEEHBRAEENRAR - R=F—NF
TZA=T-—HIEFER - BRHDYZEEMN
HBHB89,016,000t (=ZF—\F : B
379160007T) - =ZZE—NEF+ZARTE - E
BREYE - BEMRE

BE-Z-NF+-A=1+—-HLEEFEE X
SEEREEASHFERENR - WHIRE
BERBY1,114,836,0007T #5EE L #h FE2
SEMET T RERM - AEBEEEMGEE
EREZENFBNRESELEMNERE
B ZEREENAEERRERETER -
ZREREFAANRENLEBEEEEMN
ARBEFHIBERE  BATHTRED8.8% °
MAFL LR SRERER4%IE R EE
B o MEERRBEBETEERER  MATEB
TENRBPHERE - SAERAEBEENS
—AFERBRREREENE  ZEBFNRER
BEEEHM SR RNEPEEN -

AR E £ 2R T A PEER SR AL ERE
BEZBEE - BEMEER  AEEEERE
BE  BAFEERESHEEEWENKE
E RS L AEEYATRENEERS
REKREEE BE-ZF-AF+=A
=+ —HILFERERRE -
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EHESE
Leased
properfies
HENE
HKS'000
BRI
As at 1 January 2019 R-F-A%—-A-H
Carrying amount REE 10,937
As at 31 December 2019 RZF-A%+-A=+-H
Carrying amount REE 10,757
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-F-A%&+-RA=+-HLEE
Depreciation charge nE 4,845
Expense relating o shortterm leases and other leases with lease terms ~ EEHBER KB AR ERFNEERBNEREE R
end within 12 months of the date of inifial application of HKFRS 16 EREBUKREERE 52 HRIMEAREL 3,806 -
Total cash outflow for leases HERERLAR 5,018 %
»
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEEEM 41980 3
o

HHEHEFTY - |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For both years, the Group leases various offices, director and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to fifteen years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for

which the contract is enforceable.

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of properties

under development for sale of approximately HK$895,424,000

was expected to be realised after twelve months from the end of

the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying values of properties held
for sale of approximately HK$674,403,000 (2018:
HK$848,993,000) and HK$11,714,000 (2018:
HK$11,714,000) are located in the PRC and Hong Kong,

respectively.

Effective from 1 January 2019, the carrying amount of leasehold
lands is measured under HKFRS 16 at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual values are
determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold land
component. No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold
lands taking info account the estimated residual values as at 31
December 2019.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an expense
during the year amounted to approximately HK$191,859,000
(2018: HK$678,575,000).

REMB®RRMEE

16. EREEE(H)

MEHE  FAEBLAEEXBHEESE
MAZ -EENEIBES HESREAW
EEFHRS-—FI+HF  HEKKRE
REENBRHEEEN  HPEESE
B R BVRR AR - AREEREM
G HAPR A FF 4 T AT s A BARR B - BT
BRENERILTEE S E 786 81T 8 H
PR ©

17. FHEERDYE HHEME

RZE-NFE+ZA=+—H8 BFHE
BERAVEEREREDEN AR BE
895,424,000 TFEHAEHRE KR+ — 1@
B&®RH -

RZB-HAE+ZA=+—8 FHE
Y BREE X 5B 674,403,000 7T (=
T — )\ : j8%848,993,000T) KA
BEE11,714,000 T (ZF— \F : B
11,714,000 t) B B RHBEI R EE ©

BZZE-hEF-A—-HE REFTEH
BREZENF 16FHE T N REEE
LA AR 5 AR /] R 5 B METRE R
RitB - RpEEBEEAEEL RS
MEFTHEBE - ZRIA-F -1 F
T-RA=1T—BWHRERREERE BT
HPE T METRITESA -

FA CEIADFAIZFHEMEAR
NHBE191,859,000 T (=ZF—NF:
B 678,575,000 7T) °



18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. 88 EER
2019 2018
= A L
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT
Cost of investments in joint ventures — unlisted RENGECEZRA - %L - -
Deemed contribution fo joint venfures (noe c) BRAHSECENER (T 212,273 229,596

Share of post-acquisition results and other Frif s R B R H A 2 E N -

comprehensive income, net of dividends received NREKERE 95,570 63,391
307,843 292,987

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

THRAEER=-Z-NAF+=A
=+-BR=ZFE-N\F+ZA=+—H
BETEREEDLRE

Place of
incorporation/  Class of Proportion of Proportion of
Name of company Notes  operations shares held ownership interest voting power held Principal activities
AL/
RELRER W Exi B Rt HRRERLE HEREEZ LG FHHE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“F-0F ZE-N\F ZT-hf -0\
Valug Investing Group Company Limited (@) HongKong/Japan  Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
(“Volue Invesfing”) BB/BK  LBR NERE
EEREEBERAT
(lear Miles Hong Kong Limited (b)  Hong Kong/Australia ~ Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
(“Clar Mies") BR/BN  LBR NERE
Nofes: Wizt

(@ InNovember 2017, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value Partners Group Limited
(“Value Partners”) to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Value Investing which in tur through a wholly-
owned subsidiary holds 100% of the trust beneficial interests in the properties located in Japan, held under
operating leases to ear rentals.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement which Value Partners agreed to sell and the Group agreed to
purchase 1 share in the issued share capital of Value Investing, representing 50% of the entire issued share
capital of Value Investing at the consideration of HKS1. Upon complefion, the Group has provided an inferest-
free shareholder’s loan in the amount of JPY2,749,848,740 (approximately HKS191 million) to Value
Investing to repay the corresponding amount of shareholder’s loan owing by Value Investing to Value Partners,
the effect of which is fo ensure that the shareholders” loans of the Group and Value Partners will be pro rata to
their shareholding.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Value Investing and the financial results and financial
positions of Value Investing is incorporated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting.

O RZB-tF+-B AEAEZBEEERAR(EE))
AUBEDR  BABBRESEARMDIMNERITRE -
YBEHRENEAR  HENLNERNEANE RELE
BANRIES o

REZEERS SERASEHEEEAR -TORELE
RBERD RERBERESEARAFZHCRIRAN
Wee RETHRE  AEBAEERESERRAARMET
2,749,848,740 B B (438191000000 70) WEERRER - RfE
EEEEREEEARANAREENRRERNEESE
RERARRASEREEFAENRREFSREREHER
BHHIEE -

RETRE AEEHEEREEHARL ARRAREHY
Bh MEEREEEARAANNBREANABRR - B
BEZHASEENGAHRRET -

N
N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In September 2018, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value Partners to acquire
50% of the issued share capifal in Clear Miles which in furn through a wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of
the beneficial interests in the properties located in Australia, held under operating leases to eam rentals.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement which Value Partners agreed to sell and the Group agreed to
purchase 1 share in the issued share capital of Clear Miles, representing 50% of the entire issued share capital of
Clear Miles at the consideration of HKS1. Upon completion, the Group has provided an interest-free shareholder’s
loan in the amount of AUD3,600,000 (approximately HKS21 million) to Clear Miles, the effect of which is to
ensure that the shareholders” loans of the Group and Value Partners will be pro rata to their shareholding.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Clear Miles and the financial results and financial
positions of Clear Miles is incorporated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting.

Deemed confribution to joint ventures represents loans advanced to joint ventures which are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the loans are in
substance formed part of investments in joint ventures.

The consolidated financial information of Value Investing, which

is prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards, is set out below:

REMB®RRMEE
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—H5 -

THREEREEEARQAREEHE
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2019 2018

Ly R:2 “E-N\F

HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETT

Current assefs RBEE 1,120 462
Non-current assefs FRBEE 598,892 565,045
Current liabilities RBAE 402,808 427,433
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHALZEER 1,120 147
Current financial liabilities RBnKas 402,808 427 433
2019 2018

z2-1% -3\

HKS'000 HKS'000

BRI BETT

Profit for the year REERF 59,132 124,636
Other comprehensive expense for the year REEHMREL (4) (12)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEZHARGAH 59,128 124,624




18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial
information of Value Investing to the carrying amount of the

interest in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial

18. SELEHEE (R)
MU LEERESERR AR 2 HLLE
ERBRERBHEGS W BMRR R P HE

R aEhEER

statements:

2019 2018
3N “E-0\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BRI
Net assefs BEFE 197,204 138,074

Proportion of the Group’s ownership inferest in Value Investing  AEBFEEEREEEERARZ
FrefRE 2 Hn 50% 50%
98,602 69,037
Deemed investments BRBRERA 194,956 208,816
Pre-acquisition profifs YN r vl N (5,080) (5,080)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Value Invesfing AEBNBERESEERARZEREEE 288,478 272,773

The summarised financial information below represents the

information of the Group's joint venture that is not individually

LA #E 3L 2 Bf 75 1 48 2 5 B 1A Bl 9F
BRZEERE I ERAE

material:
2019 2018
“E-hE “E-)\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
ARt BRI
The Group’s share of profit (loss) for the year KEEASBLET (B8) 2,625 (566)
The Group’s share of other comprehensive expense for the year AEEREBFTEEMREXH (10) -
The Group’s share of total comprehensive income (expense) ~ AEEAEBATE2ERA (K H)
for the year 2,615 (566)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests REBERNZRECEv R REAELE
in these joint ventures 19,365 20,214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

REMB®RRMEE

19.BH5H/E

Financial assefs

Equity instruments

notes at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
BATEEFA
BATEEA Eh2EHEZ
Pt BEzemMEE ERZIA b
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT BRI
2019 5%
Listed equity securifies EaRAES (a) 18,097 228,229 246,326
Unlisted equity securifies FEmBRAES (b) - 291,681 291,681
Perpetual capital securities BRAEAES ) - 24,042 24,042
18,097 543,952 562,049
Analysed as: 2EA
Listed in Hong Kong REBLH 18,097 252,271 270,368
Unlisted ELm - 291,681 291,681
18,097 543,952 562,049
Analysed for reporfing purpose as: IMEREZ AL ES
Non-current assets FREEE 543,952
Current assefs nBEE 18,097
562,049
Financial assets Equity instruments
notes at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
BRATEETA
BRATEETA Hit2EKEZ
Yt B ERER BRIA ax
HKS"000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT
2018 B\
Listed equity securities LHRAES () 14,814 227,198 242,012
Unlisted equity securities FEARAES () - 306,289 306,289
Perpetual capital securities BRBERES (0 - 51,120 51,120
Structured products HEEMETE (d) 7,749 - 7,749
22,563 584,607 607,170
Analysed as: SEA .
Listed in Hong Kong REBLH 14,814 278,318 293,132
Unlisted FLm 7,749 306,289 314,038
22,563 584,607 607,170
Analysed for reporting purpose os: IMEREZ AL ES
Non-current assefs FREEE 584,607
Current assets RBEE 22,563

607,170




19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

nofes:

(@ Asat 31 December 2019, listed equity securities classified as financial instruments ot FVTOCI held by the Group
amounting fo approximately HK$228,229,000 (2018: HK$227,198,000) are carried at fair value at the end
of the reporting period.

(b)  Asat 31 December 2019, unlisted equity securities dlassified as financial instruments at FVTOCI held by the
Group amounting to approximately HKS291,681,000 (2018: HKS306,289,000) are carried at fair value af
the end of the reporting period.

(© As af 31 December 2019, the Group held perpetual capital securities amounting fo approximately
HKS24,042,000 (2018: HKS51,120,000) which are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Such investments are issued in July 2019 (2018: September 2014) with a fixed distribution rate of 5.7%
(2018: 6.5%) per annum payable semi-annually for the first five years and reset fo the prevailing 5-year U.S.
Treasury plus the initial margin every five years thereafter.

19. FHHX & (])
GER

0 RZB-AFTZR=+-B REEFFEUREHAND
TEETE 2BARATEEFAAGEZARE 2 EETA
WETRAZSHRABBMINT(ZF-NF: EH
207,198,000 ) ©

0 RZB-AETZA=T-B AREMSEUREHRNA
TEETE PRARATEEFARMEANE ZERIA
WELTRAZZHRBE QB0 (ZB-NF: B
306,269,000 ) ©

0 REB-AETZA=T-R AREREANREHROL
FEETE 2 RREERAEAESHRBEU M0 (=
B-N\EERSIN00T)  ZESR-B-NELA(ZE
—NEZ2-REAR) B REREEASEIM(ZE
—N\E 05 EREBYERE-R AANSERENE

BEESRMBNEREREE
(d)  Asat 31 December 2018, structured deposits of approximately HKS7,749,000 held by the Group had maturity — (d) RZE-NE+ZA=1-0 KREELSENLRMERAS
date in 2019 and carried interest rates linked to London Inferbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). Such structured BI9000 - HEXBERMBARTRAERE2FEGHE
deposits were classified as financial assets af FVTPL. ERZE-NEHH ZEERUEETARATERAAE
BZEREE -
20. INVENTORIES 20. 58
2019 2018
it 2R3 “E-)\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
The Group’s inventories comprise: FREGFEESE !
Raw materials B 1,897 3,487
Work in progress HE G 5,608 5,449
Finished goods R 14,908 16,017
Other inventories HitRE 2,982 4947
25,455 29,900

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year
amounted to approximately HK$52,672,000 (2018:
HK$58,205,000).

RAFEBIAB/ZHZFERRNRE
#52,672,000t (= - N\NF: B
58,205,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

REMB®RRMEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B R HBEUARRR
2019 2018
3N “E-0\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BRI
Trade receivables 2 EWE 23,102 23,535
Deposits paid EffRES 8,406 10,015
Loan receivables ElES — 5,228
Other receivables and prepayments Hft R R AR 52,666 49,889
84,174 88,667
nofes: Bzt
(@ Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers pursuant to the terms of the saleand () BRREEANENEEEENE RE - HESERAEE
purchase agreements. Monthly rent in respect of leased properties are payable monthly in advance by the YANEvERRS HNBEEFARTEYN-NAZEE
tenants. Other frade customers settle their accounts with an average credit period of 30 fo 90 days. The aged HEE  RAREHA  RREABHAE S ERERL B
analysis of frade receivables of approximately HK$23,102,000 (2018: HKS23,535,000) presented based on 23,102,007 (ZB—N\E 1 BE3 535000 7T) 2 REBADMUT
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-N\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
AT BT
Within 30 days NAR 8,147 7,307
Between 31 days fo 90 days bl E]=! 11,104 12,660
Over 90 days BBI0A 3,851 3,568
23,102 23,535
(b)  Asat 31 December 2019, debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HKS776,000 (2018: () RIE-RE+ZA=1t-RB T AREEEREH 2 EEA
HKS2,279,000) were past due and aged over 90 days af the end of reporting period but the Group has not BALEEI0T(ZS—\E  BE19007)  HEE
provided for impairment loss. Debtors that were past due but not impaired related o a number of customers that RELBACASRBNE  AERYERIZLR I RES
had a good track record of credit with the Group. Based on past credit history, the management believes that no B ERE FRACEBIAZERFvEAEEEZY X
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in Bl o REFYERGZLREEEMERY -
credit quality and the balances are sfill considered to be fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
(0 Al'of the Group’s frade receivables are denominated in the functional currency of the individual entifies within () REBFEL R EUER I AEEN AR SE 2 S MTIE o
the Group.
(d)  Defails of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in note 37b. ) BEE SR EMENRRE AT EEHRNET



22. CONTRACT COSTS 22. BHIRE
2019 2018
Z$-1% “E-NE
HKS'000 HKS"000
AR BRI
Costs to fulfil contracts GRS
Interior decoration contracts (note) EREBEN (i) 3815 20,305
note:  Contract costs capitalised relate to the costs incurred that will be used in safisfying the performance obligafion of &% : ER(MANRARERBAREETINERNELLSANE

interior decoration contracts entered with the customers. Contract costs are recognised as part of direct costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which revenue from the relafed inferior decoration
confracts s recognised.

23. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 0.35% (2018: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. The fixed
deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.35% to 3.9%

(2018: 0.50% to 4.20%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, restricted bank deposits of nil (2018:
HK$91,306,000) in relation to the pre-sale proceeds from the
Group's property development in PRC were included in bank
balances and cash. In accordance with relevant government
requirements of property development in PRC, the deposits can
only be used for payments for construction costs of the relevant
properties when approval from related government authority is

obtained.

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$33,723,000 represented deposits pledged

to banks to secure shortterm borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances and fixed bank deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of

the relevant group entity are set out below:

HERFEENRAGE - SURAREBABRE SN RE
ERHERGRERREDRERRAN 32 -

23. ZEA=ZER BBz ERRT
RBTERRER

RITFEARMBEURTSENRAENNE
NFB/BEF001%ZE0.35%(=F—NF:
0.01%%Z0.35%) - EMEFHM B EEF
B N FBF035%E3.90% (=F—N
F 10.50% % 4.20%) °

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H R1I7%F
MERBEERZ2EBE(ZE-—NF: B
91,306,000t ) ZBRHIRITER » ZIF
NEAEERPBENERRZEEY
XMBREER REEBABUTKEY
MEBRRNER  ZERIRAUUTES
BRERZERAEXTIERMERE
B o
R-ZE-—NE+=-A=+—H 2R
SRITERL B 33,723,000 t A ERE
IR FIRITUIR P EHERK ©

AEBEUFEBEEEERN LN
ERRTERRERRTER - BIW
T

Denominated Denominated

in RMB in USS

MARESIE DESRLE

HKS'000 HKS'000

BT BETT

As at 31 December 2019 RIE-NE+ZB=1-H 330,108 175,364
As ot 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZB=+-H 273,224 219,757

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set out in
note 37b.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& & Bt # 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. B 5 R H fib & 4 BR =X

2019 2018
—F-1f —E-N\E
HKS'000 HKS"000
BETT BETT
Trade payables B 5 EMIRR 10,560 7,985
Construction costs and retention payables ERESRAREERES 208,080 129,195
Deposits received and receipt in advance in RENE DAL RAKRAS
respect of renfal of investment properties 148,006 137,848
Deposifs received (nofe) B E (f53) 143,127 -
Advance lease payments Lk 5716 -
Other payables H AR 26,142 25,876
541,631 300,904
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months shown B AT CEARIBNREEE
under current liabilities (448,258) (244,799)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown RT-ERAEBZERBEAR
under non-current liabilities 93,373 56,105
nofe:  The amounts represent refundable deposits received from subcontractors for the purpose of securing their 485 : S$BARUIEEERBNTEERS  UERERBEIR
performance in respect of construction contracts in favour of the Group. AEENBREARNET -

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

the invoice date.

B 5 e BR TN A0 AR B LABX R A R 0 47 40
T

2019 2018

0% “B-N\E

HKS'000 HKS'000

BT BRI

Within 30 days NER 10,560 7,985

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to

ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

BEEMZFIFEEMARI0H - A5H
CHIEHBEREZERR  UBERHAE
BNRANEEHAZM -



25. LEASE LIABILITIES

25. HEE®

31.12.2019
“3-0E
+ZR=+-8
HKS'000
BETT
Lease liabilities payable: EAHERE:
Within one year —FR 4,837
Within a period of more than one year but not more than two years —FEBTERAME 2875
Within a period of more than two years but not more than five years MERBTEALE 3,276
10,988
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months shown B RTZEARESENABEE
under current liabilities (4,837)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown Ar-EREIS ERBEE
under non-current liabilities 6,151
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. E¥IERE
2019 2018
—2-1% —2- %
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000
sk BETT BETT
Construction confracts BEEH (a) — 205,932
Sales of properties NEHE (b) 46,965 333,19
46,965 539,128

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRERAFEBRIANKZHEZLHE

in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

RESHNEERRA-

Construction confracts Sales of properties
BEAH MEHE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“F-AF  ZE-\F ZB-h& ZEN\F
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AETT BETT BETR BETT
Revenue recognised that was included RENEIBEHAREE
in the contract liabilities balance BRI Rl
at the beginning of the year 205,932 - 333,196 475,327
nofes: B
(@ Construction confracts () BEAH

When the Group receives a deposit before the construction activity commences, this will give rise fo contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, unfil the revenue recognised on the relevant confract exceeds the amount of
the deposit received.

(b) Sales of properties

The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreement. The
deposits result in contract liabilities being recognised until the customer obtains control of the completed
property.

(© Contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period are expected to be recognised as revenue in subsequent
year.

EASEERIEDRRANINS  EREREANRRR
ELRNER BEABRORANUGBACHNRSEH -

NEHE
FEEREEERENRIUDEFHNES - BEHRANE
EHRR  ERRFRSE T TNXNEME -

BEKENRNE DEREFRET - FRAANE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS # & B #& 3R & i 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE
27. BORROWINGS 27. &R
2019 2018
s Ly K2 —E-N\F
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000
Mzt BRI BETT
Secured bank borrowings BIEARTER 1,040,400 789,453
Unsecured bank borrowings ERRRTER 451,000 30,000
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders IR RRAIE (0) 18,334 48,365
1,509,734 867,818
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable: — FitEFABBRERE : (b)
Within one year —FR 40,350 867,818
Within a period of more than one year but not - ERETEBRE
exceeding two years 112,084 -
Within a period of more than two years but not MERETBRLE
exceeding five years 906,300 -
1,058,734 867,818
The carrying amounts of bank loans that ROERNEAEESREER
confain a repayable on demand clause BERR (BARERE
(shown under current liabilities) but repayable: BET) - BEEE:
Within one year —ER 451,000 -
1,509,734 867,818
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities J& : EREEET —&R
HEmeE (491,350) (867,818)
1,018,384 -
nofes: Mzt
(@ These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An amount of approximately HK$8,598,000 (2018: (o) FZERFAREARBREZRERH BB (ZS
HK$35,968,000) bears variable inferest at an effective interest rate of 5.03% (2018: 2.63%) per annum, —N\E BB 000T) ZRBERERFHARHE  BR
while the remaining amounfs are non-interest bearing. FIZREESNN(ZB-NE  263)  BRRAARRE
(b)  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. b BEXRERERGEAEETERAHIE-
(©  Asat 31 December 2019, HKS denominated bank loans of approximately HKS1,357,300,000 (2018: (0 RIE-NE+TZA=1-F UEMJEZBTERBY

HK$620,589,000) and Renminbi (“RMB”) denominated bank loans of approximately HKS134,100,000
(2018: HKS198,864,000) are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest af Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus a margin of 0.90% fo 1.25% (2018: 1.44% to 2.10%) per annum and 100% (2018:
100%) of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) prescribed interest rate per annum, respectively. The effective
inferest rates ranged from 3.33% to 4.75% (2018: 3.77% to 4.96%) per annum. Details of assets pledged are
set out in note 32.

1,357,300000 78 (= — /388 620,589,00070) R A RHE5)
B2 RATEFBH134,100,00078 (ZF— /U : B% 198,864,000
A HANERRTRFFEFEZMOMELLH(ZF-N
FOLMREDLN) AIZRHENTERR  RAG(ZE-A
00000 2FEARBARENENZEHE - BRAZEN
FEEIUZLIN(ZB-NF (3R 4900) - CHAEE
FEHRHEN



28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28. &MTTATIR

Assets Liabilities
B af&
2019 2018 2019 2018
-y §:2 —E-N\F —F-NE -0\
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BB BETT BETT
Derivatives not under hedge accounting: FEHEHZTETIR
Cross currency swap contract EMFIRZXNEHREN - - 7,480 6,645
Currency forward confracts BENESH - - 361 825
- - 7,841 7,470
Analysed for reporting purpose as: BREMPES
Current RE - - 7,065 218
Non-current FhE - - 776 7,252
- - 7841 7470

CROSS CURRENCY SWAP CONTRACT

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract to
manage its exposure to currency exchange fluctuation on its
operations in Japan with principal amount of JPY305,000,000
at fixed currency exchange rate of Japanese Yen (“JPY”) to HK$
at 0.07 and due in 2021. Under this swap, the Group would
receive interest monthly at a floating rate of HIBOR plus 1.44%
per annum based on the principal amount of approximately
HK$21,320,000 and pay interest monthly at fixed rate at

1.19% per annum based on the principal amount of

JPY305,000,000.

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract to
manage its exposure fo currency exchange fluctuation on its
operations in Japan with principal amount of JPY2,749,848,740
at fixed currency exchange rate of JPY to HK$ at 0.07 and due
in 2020. Under this swap, the Group would receive interest
monthly at a floating rate of HIBOR plus 1.44% per annum
based on the principal amount of approximately
HK$192,539,000 and pay interest monthly at fixed rate at
1.19% per annum based on the principal amount of
JPY2,749,848,740.

XXEBHNE=HEHEH
FEEXEXXREBANREHEY - X
EEEAERAEBNIIELR BEAR £
%1% 305,000,000 H A @ %8 TEE
EZ£%0.07 » XM 2021 FHH - RIBE
BiEHEYH  NEEKEZEB RHREAR
T4BH 21,320,000 TAE B RITREZ
FEM.44% FRRFENRE - RE
F XS RIEA £ 305,000,000 B B LA E
EMR119%FRRAENRE o

AEBHEBTETRREBANRISHE
B REBHEAAEBWIIELBER
b2 £%%52,749,848,740B B » H i
B T E EE 2 %0.07 0 72020 F 3
e RESEEHEN  *EEKRA
WEAR B AR & 498 5 192,539,000 7T KA
EBRITREFREM 44% FRRFE
MANE REFXITRELXS
2,749,848, 740 B B LAE EF £ 1.19%
FRRFEHFES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& & Bt # 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 28. &RIETET R (&)
CURRENCY FORWARD CONTRACTS EHINESH
The Group entered into several currency forward contracts to  RNEBEF Y B ERPIMESHNREEH

manage its exposure to currency exchange fluctuation on its £ B AN MR SNE H IR @M o
operations in Japan.

Buy Sell Maturity Contract rate
| [ L] AHEE
HKS31,704,000 JPY450,335,000 March 2019 to March 2020 0.0704
7B#31,704,000 A 7450,335,000 “E-NFZRE-F-%=R

Details of the fair value measurements of cross currency swap FHIEEBERXXEEAEZERESHEET
contract and currency forward contracts are set out in note 37c.  IIESHNZ DX FEEFTEFHRK T
37ce

29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29, REHIE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of FLZ2FIAREHMBFMRRERMS @ & FIEL
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have FBEERSECIEKE - U T H I
been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax F¥RE W ZIELERIBLEERD AT

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2019 2018
“F-NF -0\
HKS'000 HKS'000
ARt BRI
Deferred tax assets BEHESE 27,472 31,469
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEEE (256,875) (263,420
(229,403) (231,951)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) HUTAXREBRAFEFERUTEECDRE
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the RZFERELEMEEGE(EE)URHES
current and prior years. g o
Difference Revaluation
of accounting  of investment Dividend
and tax properties withholding
depreciation in the PRC tax Tax losses Total
BHERE EfiETE
HEZER ZHREME RSB REBR st

HKS'000 HKS"000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS"000
BT BRI BRI ik i

At T January 2018 RZE-N\E-A—H 33,896 220,110 - (10,754) 243,252
Charge (credif) fo profitorloss  FABZREREHMBR (GEA) 1,348 6,732 16,124 (26,493) (2,289)
Currency realignment ExHR - (9,012) - - (9,012)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+=RA=1+-H 35,244 217,830 16,124 (37,247) 231,951

Charge (credif) to profitorloss ~ FABEERA B (GHA) 3,273 - (5,603) 4,319 1,989
Currency realignment ERFE - (4,221) (316) - (4,537)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-h&

+ZB=t-H 38,517 213,609 10,205 (32,928) 229,403




29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$739 million (2018: HK$698
million) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$183
million (2018: HK$226 million) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax loss of
approximately HK$556 million (2018: HK$472 million) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2019 are tax losses of
approximately HK$6 million (2018: HK$33 million) that will
expire within 5 years from the year of originating. Other tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$8,165,000 (2018: HK$5,340,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of these
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

29. BEHRIE (&)

RESHR AEEHBENEBER
739,000,000t(=F - NF: BE
698,000,000 7t) 2 R Ey AT IEE B A A
EEEBERREZAN ERHEBE
183,000,000t(=F - NF: B ¥
226,000,0007T) ERABELHIEE
E - ARERRBARFERN IR - Hex
KB 556,000,000 T (ZF—N\F : B
¥ 472,000,000 7T ) 2 BiTE B R I RHERR
REEHRBEE - R-ZF-—NF+=A
=+—-B AEIRBEETEEEE
FERIFRNIHNBEBENBE
6,000,000t( = & — N\ &F: B ¥
33,000,000 7t ) » H 1t 1 18 &5 18 19 6E &
REPEEET —FE
REHBREERERE BZZEZENEF
—A—HE  hEMEQERBUEF M
EikzREAHMRELNH - ARAKE
REAEHROERER CEE - MAR
EREETETENT RSREE - &
HARRGEHBHRRAPEMBELARTR
Maf 2 EFE=RB%8,1650007T (=
ZT—\F 1 BH 5,340,000 7T) #F HIEL
BIARE o

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g
Number of
shares HKS'000
Rih&R BETT
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAERE
At 1 Jonuary 2018, 31 December 2018 R=B-NE-F-H ZB-N\%
and 31 December 2019 TZR=t-BR=E-1fF
t=A=+-A
Ordinary shares of no par BEEZEER 378,583,440 381,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2002, for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees, and expired on 24 April 2012. Under the
2002 Scheme, the Company could grant options to eligible
employees, including executive directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company at HK$10
per option. Additionally, the Company could, from time to time,
grant share options to outside eligible third parties at the

discretion of the Board of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted under the 2002 Scheme was not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.
The number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted to any individual was not permitted to exceed 1% of the

shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price was to be determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the higher of the nominal
value of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, or the closing price of the shares on

the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since it was
adopted. The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 2012.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 9 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”). The terms of the 2012 Scheme and
the 2002 Scheme are broadly similar. The 2012 Scheme is

effective for a period of 10 years.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme

since its adoption.
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32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as below

were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities made

available to the Group.

32. EEHT

RBEMR THEESERTRT

DEAEEER T —RIBITRE -

2019 2018
Ly R:2 -0\
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
CARRYING VALUE FREE
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRET 58,842 60,185
Investment properties RENE 4,844,001 4,880,461
Bank deposits BIEH = 33,723
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EX &R
2019 2018
ZE-0% “B-N\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BRI
Capifal expenditure contracted for but not provided BRENBRAGE BBHRE LEE
in the consolidated financial stafements in respect of: ZEREY
— Property, plant and equipment/properties under - W% BERRE/BEDNE/RENE
development,/investment properties 147,673 28,006
— Others — Hfth 19,023 19,609
34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, EREHRIE

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments

under these non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

KEEREEAN

REETAHEEEEIMAERT S
FHIPZNZRRREEEHWT
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follows:
2018
“E-)\fF
HKS'000
BETT
Within one year —FR 7,561
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE-ZRER (BEERWE) 21,907
Over five years hF% 212
29,680

N
w
o

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain KA YK IBIEAREBE FEFIE B
EMERETIEE2RNESE - Hh&EHE
HRE-—ZE+AFEFE BEREAYPAAE

TEEHBRENRRE °

of the Group's offices, hotel premises and staff quarters. Leases
are negotiated for a range of one to sixteen years and rentals

are fixed throughout the lease period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
THE GROUP AS LESSOR
All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next

one fo eight years.

The Group as lessor had contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease payments:

REMB®RRMEE

34. EEMHKE(K)
KEEBLEEAN
FENFREREFHEREAH—ZENEHN
HE o

REBELSHBAACEUT RREEE
X HERAFTA

2019 2018

—F-1% ZE-N\F

HKS'000 HKS"000

BRI BETT

Within one year —-ER 304,153 256,797
In the second to fifth year inclusive REZZRER (BREEEME) 515,865 264,725
Over five years TE% 22,027 28,440
842,045 549,962

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a

defined contribution schemes registered under the MPF Scheme.

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective schemes
and are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees contribute 5% of the relevant payroll to
the MPF Scheme while the Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll to the MPF Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group's subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these retirement benefits schemes is to make the

specified contributions.

35. BHKEAGTE
AEERBBZAEREEET —EHRA
EHRAEE > WHEREEET S T M -

AEERBEBESTEZHEBERRRE
BEERM MR BEFSEERE -
BEESHEHEEHZTANESEAEZ
# EAKEEESRERE - RIEW
BEsE ETAREABEARHARS%
REBEEER > MAKETFRIEEE
BT AEMN5%EBEEFT SN

o AEBERPEKL ZHBLEZ
ETEEAEREEERKBAEIZK
B -ZENBLARAZEMEETED
EeE s RRBAIGT SIE R BN E
BEAN  AEEHZSRAENTE 2
E—BEDFHEEHRR



36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 27, net of bank
deposits and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or

the redemption of existing debt.

36. EXERER
AEBHAEERETER  URERAE
EETEERIHBERSECEEER
2 ERFNEEBERET 2BHERT
7 BBRRFRHEALR -

AEBCRBERMERFLEZ/L K
SEzERGERBER(BEWE27R
BREEF  HRROTERAREE) KB
TEERERADARRELERS (B
CSEITHRARZEGHRE) AX

ARAESERMAELER - FHR
ANz—#Mo EBEEEARAKAL
EEZHBRER REEE2EE -
EEBEBXRNRE - BITHBRURE
THERIEOREERSE S A FHH
EREAERE -

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. 27T H
37A.CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS J7A. &R T E 54
2019 2018
—F-0E “E-N\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Financial assefs SREE
FVTPL BAVEESAER
Held for frading BIEEERE 18,097 14,814
Others Hitr - 7,749
Equity instruments at FYTOCI BRATEETARMEANR 2 ERTIA 343,952 584,607
Financial assefs at amortised cost NBERANENSRERE 2,133,479 2,564,805
Financial liabilities LREE
Amortised cost BERK 2,045,649 1,168,722
Derivative financial instruments SRfTETR 7,841 7470
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments in

securities, frade and other receivables, fixed bank deposits with

more than three months to maturity when raised, bank balances

and cash, trade and other payables, bank and other

borrowings, and derivative financial instruments.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), liquidity risk, and credit risk and impairment assessment.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate

fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities, including intra-group balances at the end of
the reporting period that are denominated in currencies other

than the functional currency of the relevant entities are as

REMB®RRMEE

37. €M T A (%)
378. B ¥ b E 3 B AR R BUSR

AEENTESRTIABRESRE
BEZREMEBEWERERR  FA=ZEAEE
MzERRITER ROFARRE
BZRHEMEBEMERR  |RITREMER
REBMITETH -

ZESRMIACHBREEBHTAE
HZEeRT ARAECRABREES
SRR (EEER  FXRBREER
) - RBELRAK EERRRBET
& o BRANMBREKZERR 2 BERH T
T - EEEHZERARETEERE
2 LRREARBERERSENE
jj"o

Hi5 B %

(i) E#%EpE
AEBEHENR S R UINEET T
UESEREEHTE -

Zo

RBERR - AEEUEBERDEES
WLNIE2EREEREREE &
EEB R AERERREENT

follows:
Assets Liabilities
gE &
2019 2018 2019 2018
sy K2 “E-N\F it §:2 “E-N\E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS"000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Group -]
HKS against RMB B ARK 186 298 - -
United States dollars EnRBY
(“USS") against HKS 231,697 315,526 - -
RMB against HKS ARK B 330,108 273,224 - -
Intra-group balances SENAERER
HKS against RMB B AR 103,494 105,809 1,174,258 1,200,880

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

exchange exposure should the need arises.

ZNEE B B Al MNE H P BUR o AT
EEESEEMZNIERR  TEHE
BEERZEEHPEEINERMAIR



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% (2018:
1%) increase and decrease in HK$ against US$ and 10%
(2018: 10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. The
respective percentages are the sensitivity rates used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and also intra-group balances
denominated in foreign currencies and adjusts their translation
at the year end for the respective percentages change in the

exchange rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in posttax profit
or equity where HK$ weaken 1% (2018: 1%) against US$ and
HK$ weaken 10% (2018: 10%) against RMB. For a 1% (2018:
1%) strengthening of the HK$ against US$ and HK$
strengthening 10% (2018: 10%) against RMB, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit or equity, and the

balances below would be negative.

37. &M I A (%)
37B. B EIGSEEBERBIE (&)

HiGEE (48)
(| E#mEE(E)
HREDN

TREMAEEHBEE R TER LT
RTE1%(ZZE-N\F 1 1%) UK BE
RARBEREARTEI0%(ZF-N
F:10%) WHRBE BEBOLLERRE
MA@ E EEE A & E RIS AT AR
EbR KRTEEEHERERET
REMEE N E B - IBREDTE
FBUNESHER R BHME R IRE RS
WIENEBDQREREE  IHER
EENA DB EFARBE -

TRPEBRRIBELEZTRE1%(Z
E-NF 1% RAARBREEI0% (=
Z—)\F 1 10%) FaR s EmIEMm - &
BERETHBEIBR(ZZ—-NF 1 1%)
RAARBAHEION(ZZ - N\F:
10%) B - RS ERSERFEEEKR
FANEE MTIGEHE28% -

2019 2018
“F-hE “B-N\F
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETR BETT
Profit or loss B

HKS against RMB BEEARK 89,393 91,414
USS against HKS EyN 1,464 1,900
RMB against HKS AREHBE 27,565 22,814

Other comprehensive income Ei 2wz
USS against HKS EnHBE 563 880

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the

year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of

Interest rate risk

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group currently does not have an inferest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
lease liabilities (see note 25 for details). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-
rate structured deposits, bank balances and borrowings (see
notes 19, 23 and 27 for details). The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly attributable to fluctuation of HIBOR, LIBOR
and prevailing interest rates offered by the PBOC. It is the
Group's policy to keep its borrowings at floating rates of interest
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s
exposures to inferest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in

the liquidity risk management section of this note.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s derivative and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis points)
fluctuation is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

37. &M I A (%)
37B. B EIGSEEBERBIE (&)

TG R (48)
(i)  FIZEEE (&)
BREDW

TXHNBRBREIMIIREBEAEERITE
RIEMETEERSPREZNFRE
BREE - FRIONMERRNBEHRK
PN EMTAERFADMRIB - &
BUTEEBASERMNRARER L
SOMTFEMNEB(ZZT—N\F :50%
F) RREEBHANRESIE WA E
BN B RYRT S

2019 2018
—F-n% ZE-N\E
Change in basis points Change in basis points
EEEE Y1)
+50 =50 +50 =50
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BRI BETT BETT
Profit or loss (et of tax) BNSER (BREiR) 2,254 (2,254) 6,732 (6,732)

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end

exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments

in listed equity securities measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI, and

perpetual capital securities measured at FVTOCI. For equity

securities measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock Exchange, the

management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio

of investments with different risks. In addition, the Group also

invested in certain listed equity securities and unquoted equity

securities for long term strategic purposes which had been

designated as FVTOCI. The management will closely monitor the

price movement of the securities and regularly review the

performance and asset allocation of the portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity instruments and
perpetual capital securities had been 10% (2018: 10%) higher/

lower:

e the Group's posttax profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 would increase by approximately HK$1,511,000
(2018: HK$1,237,000) or decrease by approximately
HK$1,511,000 (2018: HK$1,237,000), respectively, as a
result of the changes in fair value of listed equity securities

classified as financial assets at FVTPL; and

e the Group's investment revaluation reserve would increase
by approximately HK$25,227,000 (2018:
HK$27,832,000) or decrease by approximately
HK$25,227,000 (2018: HK$27,832,000), respectively,
as a result of changes in fair value of listed equity securities

and perpetual capital securities measured at FVTOCI.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance its operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately HK$510 million
(2018: HK$1,647 million). Details of the amounts utilised at the

end of the reporting period are set out in note 27.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on the
contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial liabilities and
lease liabilities including interest that will accrue, with reference
to their respective contractual interest rate, and for those
variable-rate instruments, by using the appropriate prevailing
market rates at the end of the reporting period as stated in their

contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

REMB®RRMEE

37. €M T A (%)
37B. A b B B E RBUK (48)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REIELEE ()
Within More than Total
Weighted 1 year or 1yearbut  undiscounted
average repayable less than financial Carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years liabilities amounts
EEX —E#E FEEHH
TiEFHFE -EREE LENEE EREREE RaE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BRI BRI BETT
2019 —E-NE
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 £F1& &
and lease liabilities EHEaE
Trade and other payables ESREMENEE - 446,872 89,043 535,915 535,915
Lease liabilities HEBE 3.33 5121 6,415 11,536 10,988
Bank borrowings (note) RTES (M) 3.46 508,570 1,135,100 1,643,670 1,491,400
Amounts due to non-controlling  FESFEEERRARER
shareholders
— Interest bearing —iE 5.03 8,598 - 8,598 8,598
— Non-interest bearing %8 - 9,736 - 9,736 9,736
Total g 978,897 1,230,558 2,209,455 2,056,637
2018 “F-\f
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3474 &R & &
and lease liabilities RAEER
Trade and other payables ESRHMERRE - 244,799 56,105 300,904 300,904
Bank borrowings (note) RITER (W) 3.99 840,136 - 840,136 819,453
Amounts due fo non-confrolling  FEfSFEIERIRE
shareholders
— Interest bearing =55l 2.63 35,968 - 35,968 35,968
— Non-interest bearing -%8 - 12,397 - 12,397 12,397
Total g 1,133,300 56,105 1,189,405 1,168,722

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “within 1 year or repayable” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$451,000,000 (2018: nil). Taking info account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe that
such bank loans will be repaid within one year after the end of
the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

nofe:  The amounts included above for variable inerest rate instruments are subject fo change if changes in variable

interest rates differ from those estimates of inferest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

LHE B P  FEREFERIERD
RITERBSERERI-—FAEE]
KR -R-ZFB-AF+=ZA=+—-8"
ZERTEFNRERABERRE
451,000,000 T (=T —NF: &) - &
BESEENMBMRR  EFMRAR/RT
TARARTEENEREERINEE -
ARBESHEE  ZERITERERE
SRR -—FRRBEERBEFRH 2T

oo smm

EERBHEE -

Wi LEHAKTELRABTIRIAZEE BRSBRE2E
BENG SRR AR R DA BRI -



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and bank
deposits. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial

assets.

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 30% (2018: 29%)
and 73% (2018: 79%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the trading and manufacturing business

segment.

Other receivables

The management of the Group regularly review and assess the
credit quality of the counterparties. The Group uses 12m ECL to
assess the loss allowance of other receivables since these
receivables are neither past due nor with fixed repayment terms,
and there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group's credit risk is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& & Bt # 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits/bank balances is limited

37. €M T A (%)
37B. A b B B E RBUK (48)

fSE G R BB (4F)
EEFRITIEHIRITAER
HREFHHEEREEFREBER
SEEFRWRT MHEEE CER
RITER RIOTEHNEERBRER -
REBEZSZRIEREHFREBEME
HEERFRERNENRRNIB RS
EWNBABENGEE  £RI12EAHEH
FEEBRHCERRITER RITER
YE TS -

RERAREFREABREETRNE
FROTHRBE S+ AEELHED

because the counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for pledged bank deposits/bank balances by
reference to information relating to probability of default and
loss given default of the respective credit rating grades published

by external credit rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are

deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group

N
(%4
o

6107 IO IVANNY | QILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NIt

does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

FMEMEREERR -

AEENABEERRFIREEUAT S

the following categories: ¥
Other financial
Internal credit rating ~ Description Trade receivables assets/other items
REEEF4 i B 5 W Rt EREE/ LitIEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any Lifefime ECL — 12-month ECL
past-due amounts not creditimpaired
il HFANENRRE  BEYRETRHTE EHREGEEHE - NEREHEEES
YEEERE
Watch list Debtor usually settle after due date Lifefime ECL — 12-month ECL
not creditimpaired
ERLE ERARERARELE EHREGEEHE - NEREHEEES
YEEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifefime ECL — Lifefime ECL—
recognifion through information developed internally or external not creditimpaired not creditimpaired
18sources
2 FERREEBANINTERRYNERIERIEAREN 2HRDEEHE - EHESEEEE -
YEEERE YEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is creditimpaired Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
creditimpaired creditimpaired
B BrEREREERENEE 2HREGEEHE - EHESEEHE -
EEHE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off Amount is written off

difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
fitl 55 BETERARRBEGBRENEE BASEYRERYKE
B

SHHME



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

37. 2T R (E)
37B. i EGEEBERBE (8)

SE G R B BT (4])
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The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s

financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

% o AS S EEEBOTE

2019 2018
k-2 —E-N\%
External
Notes ~credit rafing Internal rating ~ 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
W BEETSR AR EEEEI R AR 5 BERE(E AREE
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BHTT  EETn  B¥Tn BT
Financial assets at amortised cost
LSS AN RREI SRISE
Trade receivables 21 N/A (note 2) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 6,185 4926
B SRR TER (D) 2HRREERE (BEEE)
N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL 16,917 23,102 18,609 23,535
TER &Rk 2HEHEERR
Other receivables 21 N/A (note 1) 12-month ECL 57,232 57,232 62,813 62,813
Hib R TER (WizED) MR R EERR
Bank balances 23 Aal o A3 N/A 12-month ECL 38,209 119,169
RITER lo1 23 TER NERESEERE
Al 1o A3 N/A 12-month ECL 774,346 1,053,494
NZER TER IMERBHEERE
Baal to Baa3 N/A 12-month ECL 1,240,142 2,052,697 1,270,396 2,443,059
Boal ZBuc3 TEf 1EARSEERE
Pledged bank deposits 23 Baa2 N/A 12-month ECL - - 33,723 33,723
BRBIEH Bua? TER MR BHEERR
nofes: Kzt
1. For the purposes of interal credit risk management, the Group uses past due information fo assess whether 1. RANCERREENS  AEEFARBERTEEERR
credit risk has increased significantly since inifial recognifion. REBNRERL-BEARELH -
Not past due/No fixed repayment terms
BAH/ BETEIREN
2019 2018
“-hf “E-N\F
HKS'000. K500
AT BT
Other receivables Hft RS 57,232 62813 25
2. fFortrade receivables, the Group has applied the simpliied approach in accordance with HKFRS 9 fomeaswre the 2. HESERERTE  REEEURBELAEIR  ££E =
loss allowance af lifefime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or creditimpaired, the BRI DRBEEFENEERE - REARE 3
Group determines the expected credit losses on those balances by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal RERAEERENEEAN AEEERBECREEUR  »
credit raing. BEEIRIBNASEHNRDEESE - 5
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies intemal credit rating for its customers. The FARSENEERRERE 237 AEERHEFERRA -

following fable provides information about the exposure fo credit risk for frade receivables which are assessed DEETE - TRREHEHEZRURSEERRNER &
based on provision matrix within lifefime ECL (not creditimpaired). Debtors with significant outstanding balances ZESENRIIREZBRNEEFR(YREERNE)R
with gross carrying amount of HKS16,917,000 as af 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$18,609,000) was NREEREHTE - RZE-NE+-A=1t-HEREX
assessed individually. REBEBRARAEABE 00T (ZE-N\F B4

18,609,000 70) B9 A EBTAE o

HHEHEFTY - |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& & Bt # 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

37. €M T A (%)
37B. U EIGEEBERBIE (&)

{SE AR B {ERE (4)

notes: (Continued) W& ()
2. (Continued) 1 (&)
Gross carrying amount BRE(E
Trade receivables
B 5 RRER
2019 2018
—F-NF —E-N\§
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BT
Internal credit rafing REBEEFR
Low risk Rk 3723 3,086
Doubtful 175 2,462 1,840
6,185 4,926
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the BHAEERNERNERARNEREANEABRAENENR

debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are

measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The

following table gives information about how the fair values of

these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation

technique(s) and inputs used).

fhit YRBRLEBSRARB N TREHNAEILERH
BonRNHEREENEY  NERABEEEBANEAR
EREIEN

J7C. ERM TR AFEEE

AEEBIEHEERSMEBUZR

EHRRNAFEEFE TRIEHEE

ERMEEZATVEHEESANER (AR
= EMEEDEREANBAZR)

2019
—F-n%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—45 BRI ] ek

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AT AT EBTr BB

Financial assets at FVTPL BATEBFMNBGZZEHMEE

Listed equity securifies FhRAES 18,097 - - 18,097
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEEAANEMEERE

ZEHRIR

Listed equity securifies FhRAES 228,229 - - 228,229
Unlisted equity securities ELHRAES - - 291,681 291,681
Perpetual capital securities BRAERES — 24,042 — 24,042
Total b 246,326 24,042 291,681 562,049
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEREGAEGZEMER

Derivative financial instruments fiESMIA - 7,841 - 7841




37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. &M I A (%)
37C. &M T AAFEEE (&)

2018
“E-0\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1R5 EZRA E=A %

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
BRI BRI BT BRI

Financial assefs at FVTPL BATEEF\BRZEMEE

Listed equity securifies FhRAES 14,814 - - 14,814
Structured products HEEETE - 7,749 - 7,749
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFEEMAE 2 ERE

ZEHIR

Listed equity securifies FhRAES 227,198 - - 227,198
Unlisted equity securifies ELEHRAES - - 306,289 306,289
Perpetual capifal securities ERIMERES - 51,120 - 51,120
Total k] 242,012 58,869 306,289 607,170
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRATEEGAEGZEMER

Derivative financial instruments TESRIA - 7,470 - 7,470

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the

year.

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock

exchanges.

The fair values of perpetual capital securities are determined
based on indicative prices provided by the dealers and brokers.
In addition, the Group makes comparison of the indicative prices
with the prices obtained from pricing services providers to
substantiate the indicative prices of these securities. The key
inputs used in the valuation models are the interest rate data,
which are observable at the end of the reporting period. The
objective of valuation models is to arrive at a fair value
estimation that reflects the price of the financial instrument at the
reporting date, which would have been determined by market

participants acting at arm’s length.

FRF—  FIRE=HRA2EHE
REEMER -

ETRAREHSEEMEBERS 5|
SN ARTEEABEE A FEE -

BEATHHERENKAERESFN
NP EERBEHEBRELCAMREHEN
ETRMEREE - I AEEKET
MEREEEERBHERTF LESHW
BRMULE  AS KA EREHZNIE
TEEREMHIRE - AERANEER
WAZEBNRYE  ZHBEEREH
KREFALUBAGH - AEEANEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of structured products are calculated using

discounted cash flows analysis derived from quoted interest

rates, which are observable at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined with
reference to market values of underlying assets, which mainly
comprise investment properties located in Hong Kong held by
the investees and take into account the discount for lack of
marketability. The valuation of the properties was principally
arrived at using the comparison method, in which property is
valued on the assumption that the property can be sold with the
benefit of vacant possession. Comparison based on prices
realised on actual sales of comparable properties is made for

similar properties in the similar location.

The fair values of cross currency swap contract and currency
forward contracts are measured by the present value of future
cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable
yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and foreign
exchange rates between JPY and HK$, which were observable

at the end of the reporting period.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of the Group's other financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

REMB®RRMEE

37. €M T A (%)
J7C. &M T AAFEESE (&)

EERRATEEFABENEBNE
M AFEE RERABBERESRDN
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

37. &M I A (%)
37C. &M T AAFEEE (&)

EMEEFR=RH A FET BT

assefs

Equity

instruments

at FVT0CI

BATEBA

Hth2EkE

JERTA

HKS'000

BETT

Balance af 1 January 2018 R=E-N§-B-RiH 342,230
Total net gains recognised in other comprehensive income REt2AREARER 2 FRE 2,889
Purchases BE 3,461
Disposals HE (42,291)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-HE&R 306,289
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income REM2ERERER 2 FEE (14,608)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RoE-NE+-A=+-A4&8 291,681

Included in other comprehensive income is a loss of
approximately HK$ 14,608,000 (2018: a gain of approximately
HK$2,889,000) related to unlisted equity instruments at FVTOCI
held at the end of the reporting period.

A small percentage, 2.0% (2018: 2.1%), of total assets of the
Group, is based on estimates and recorded as financial assets
with Level 3 fair value measurements. Whilst such valuations are
sensitive to estimates, it is believed that changing one or more of
the assumptions to reasonably possible alternative assumptions

would not have a big impact on the Group's financial positions.

Htt 2 H KSR BIEAEE 14,608,000
THER(ZZE-NF: RBEYEBE
2,889,000t) - ERREHMBEE R
BENBRAFEEFAEMEE KRGS ZF
tHERTEBR-

EAEEREENRDEA - 2.0%(=
B-N\F 121%)  IREAEEE=F
BREMER AR LEEHMETHRR
HEHRZ HE-—EAIZERREEE
FERAENRERSERK  HETSYH
REBMNPBRRELERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The management performs regular reviews to determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
qualified professional valuers or other service providers to
perform the valuations. The management works closely with the
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The respective management team reports the
findings to the Board of Directors of the Company regularly to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets

and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various financial assets and

liabilities is disclosed above.

REMB®RRMEE

37. €M T A (%)
J7C. &M T AAFEESE (&)
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38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising

8. MMEEHEAMBRAS

TRALTAEEREETHELENEE
2 BEBASNIREE( - RETE
BELENEBERMERENRE - KRR
MRETRE BRI BALREENGES
ReEnBRNBEETHRSRE

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
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changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in

the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

Lease Dividend Inferest
Borrowings liabilities payable payable Total
a3k HEak RS EftFE Lt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F-HA-H 1,248,000 = = 12,134 1,260,134
Financing cash flows REBRLTR (361,496) - (242,908) (46,259)  (650,663)
Finance costs B - - - 34,646 34,646
Dividends recognised as disfribution ERERADRKZKRE - - 242,908 - 242,908
Currency realignment == (18,686) - - (25) (18,711)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+-A=1+-H 867,818 = - 496 868,314
Adjustment on HKFRS 16 BRI RS EAE hARE - 10,937 = = 10,937
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R=E-nE-F-H (E3) 867,818 10,937 - 496 879,251
Financing cash flows REBRER 651,074 (5,018) (265,008) (44,855) 336,193
Finance costs R - 410 - 44,693 45,103
New leases entered /terminated HRESRT /RIE - 4,665 - - 4,665
Dividends recognised as disfribufion EERADRKZKE - - 265,008 - 265,008
Currency realignment ExHZ (9,158) (6) - (4) (9,168)
At 31 December 2019 R=B-NE+=-A=1-H 1,509,734 10,988 > 330 1,521,052
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

REMB®RRMEE

39. X ABMBURRRR B

2019 2018
“E-nE AL
HKS'000 HKS000
BETT BETT
Non-current assets EREHEE
Investment properties REME 2,320,000 2,300,000
Property, plant and equipment NE  BERRE 545,120 556,597
Right-of-use assefs (notel) fEREERE (Hat1) 417 -
Investments in subsidiaries WEARZRE 527,942 470,272
Investments in securities EFRE 58,800 90,487
Amounts due from subsidiaries EWHBATER 5,208,259 4,642,712
Deferred tax assets EEHIESRE 21,472 31,469
8,692,310 8,091,537
Current assets nBgE
Properties held for sale FHENE 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B S RAMRKER 4,375 7,065
Investments in securities EHERE 18,097 22,563
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months BAZHRE2E
fo maturity when raised ERRITEH - 8,190
Bank balances and cash ROEIRES 667,961 707,189
693,241 747 815
Current liabilities ik =4
Trade and other payables Z o REENED 12,070 48,861
Lease liabilities (note1) REaE (K 3,439 -
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIE 7,065 218
Borrowings — due within one year B8 — R—FR2H 451,000 620,589
473,574 669,668
Net current assefs RBEEFE 219,667 18,147
Total assets less current liabilities BEERNRDEE 8,911,977 8,169,684
Non-current liabilifies ¥REHEE
Other payables HAh MRS 52,132 -
Lease liabilities (note1) AEEE (M) 1,353 -
Borrowings — due after one year fEm — R—FHREE 906,300 -
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIE 776 7,252
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries WEBARZEERR 107,323 156,184
1,068,484 163,436
7,843,493 8,006,248
Capital and reserves EARGE
Share capital R 381,535 381,535
Reserves (note2) i (a2 7,461,958 7,624.713
7,843,493 8,006,248

6102 L4OdFY IVANNY | QILIWIT INFWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2020 and are signed on
its behalf by:

MBEBRENR=-"Z_FF=F+ A%
EESMERRERT  AATIAL
REREE

MR. LIU LIT CHI MR. CHENG YUK WO

ENELLE B0 AE
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EREEETfE

T EFREERTRAH
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 9. X AFIUMBIRARRGEHE(H) §
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) E
notes: Wizt 2
1. The Company has applied HKFRS 16 since 1 January 2019 in accordance with transitional provision stated in 1. AAREZE-hE-A—-BEREHE D AENBELE =5
note 2. Lease liabilities amounted to HKS3,586,000 were recognised on initial application of HKFRS 16, of HEREBHBREERE 65 - HESEABMEI 56,0005 - 8
which HKS3,586,000 recognised os right-of-use assefs for own use. BEEREREAMEREEAZREER EhAl ?&
38600 THBRBBAEAREE o
2. The movements in reserves are presented below: . REZ2BNT
Property Investment
revaluation revaluation Accumulated
reserve reserve profits Total
MEERRE REEMRREE 2R @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BRI BETR BETT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-F-H 448 (15,670) 7,206,108 7,190,886
Profit for the year REERA - - 671,351 671,351
Fair value gains on investments in equity BATEES AR MZARGE 2 ERTA
insfruments af FVTOCI AT EENS - 4,769 - 4769
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERENRER - 4,769 671,351 676,120
Investment revaluation reserve redlassified HERATEEFARMRANGZ
to accumlated profits upon disposal BRI REYRRERENHED
of equity instruments af FVTOCI REE(RE - (20,667) 20,667 -
Dividends recognised as distribufion ERZADRZRE = = (242,293) (242,293)
At 31 December 2018 W=E-NE+=A=1-H 448 (31,568) 7,655,833 7,624,713
Profit for the year KEERR - - 106,280 106,280
Fair value losses on investments in equity BRAVEBEARMRANG < BRIA
instruments at FVTOCI AV EERE - (4,027) - (4,027)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year REEZE (RH) hiasn - (4,027) 106,280 102,253
Dividends recognised as distribution ERZADRZRE - - (265,008) (265,008)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A=t-H 448 (35,595) 7,497,105 7,461,958
40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 40. FABt N LT HEEIE
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) FABEALRS
2019 2018
—F-1% ZE2-N\E
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETR
Leases,/expenses paid and payable to directors of EXAREMFAAAIENBAT
the Company or ifs affiliates ESNER/He
Repayment of lease liabilities /rental expenses BERESE /Aol 525 900
Architecture and other consultancy service fee BEMEMZHREE 672 -
The Group had no other material significant transactions with  ANEBIWBMEFEEA LT LEARS ©
related parties. 2:9
%
»
*
at
o
>
al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group

during the year were as follows:

REMB®RRMEE

40. FABEANTHREBSEIH(F)
(B) XEEBAEMNS

FR - AEEFTEEEASZHMNOT

2019 2018

“F-nE “2-N\E

HKS'000 HKS'000

BT BETT

Short-term henefits EHEA 46,340 44 514
Post-employment benefits EERMNER 3,488 3,001
49,828 47,515

The emoluments of directors and key executives are determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

EERFETBRABZHFMIIBEFNE
EEREARBEHSBEEE -

41. T EMBATE
R=ZZF-AF+Z-ZA=+t—HBHR=
—N\NF+ZRA=+t—-H XRFZE

=

=

==}

=
HEA T AR :
Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL AR AL BRITLERE ANRBECRITRAEE/
i) YNGR Mist  AiaLHh & AMEE AMERZ LG TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B B
2019 2018 2019 2018
Z5-0&E ZE-0\E ZF5-hfF ZF-)\%
% % % %
Abalgen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HKS100,000 100 100 - — Propery investment
EB 7 HE100,0007 MERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HKS9,500 100 100 - — Investment holding
KERRAR B8 B9 5007 REZR
Bonsun Enferpries Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 100 100 - ~ Properfy investment
BREEERAT BE FEH2,000,0007 MERE
Bright Ocean Limited Hong Kong HKS10,000 - - 100 100 Food and beverage
EB 100007 2
(hong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS1,000,000 100 100 - — Money lending
BIEBBERAE BE FEE1,000,0007 EREH
Chong Yip (Nominges) Limited Hong Kong HKST 100 100 - — Provision of nominegs services
f% (RE) BRAR BE BT RIRIE AR
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 - — Property investment
EEREERAR & B0 MERE
Doningfon Company Limited Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 - — Properfy investment
BB BE0T MERE



41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. T EMBAE (&K)

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Nome of subsidiary notes  operations registered copital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
LA LB BRTLEERA/ FARBECRATRAEE
) NSRS W&t Mtk & AMEX AMERZ LG TEEH
Direcfly Indirectly
=L EE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-0E ZE-0\E ZF5-nfF ZF-)\%
% % % %
Fancy Wealth Limited Hong Kong HKS10,000 - - 100 100 Refai Soles
BB 100007 TEHE
Golden Horbour Intemational Limited Hong Kong HKST - - 100 100 Property investment
BRERERAR s B8 MERE
Harvest Gate Investments Limited Hong Kong HKST 100 100 - ~ Property investment
LEREERAR BB AT MERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 = — Property investment
ERREBRAH s BT MERE
Honour Speed Development Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 = = Investment holding
BERERERAF BB AT REER
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HKS100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
BRARAR EB B0 REER
Hugh Wealth Intermafional Liited Hong Kong HKS100 100 100 - — Investment holding
BRERERAR BE B0 REZR
Jocot Limited Hong Kong HKS? 100 100 - = Investment holding
EBIERAR BB AT REER
Joyce King Limited Hong Kong HES 100 100 - — Investment holding
RHEARAR EB BRI REER
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 - ~ Property investment
BEERAH BE B0 MERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Limited Hong Kong HKS10,000,000 100 100 - = Investment holding
BAIREXERAT EE 7 #£10,000,0007 REZR
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Limited Hong Kong HKS72,000,000 100 100 - — Property investment
BAIRAERBRAR EB 7 H72,000,0007T MERE
Liu Chong Hing Property Management Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - ~ Property management
and Agency Limited i FE1,000,0007% NEER
BRIENEEERREERAR
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - - 100 100 Property investment
B BT MERE
OnecEghtOne Hospitlty Management Limited Hong Kong HEST - - 100 100 Hotel operation and
& BEIT management
BEEERER

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. T EMBAE (8)

REMB®RRMEE

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
REMALLE BRITLERE FARBECRATRAEE
i) YNGR 1 BTy AMEX AMEERZ LG TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B EfE
2019 2018 2019 2018
1% ZF-0\E ZB-AE ZF-)\f
% % % %
OnecEight One Lobby Cae Limited Hong Kong HKS10,000 100 100 - ~ Food and beverage
BB BE100007T B8
(Queen Profit Infemational Investment Liited Hong Kong HKS61,540 83.75 83.75 - — Investment holding
HAERREBRAR & B0 50T REEK
Richview Property Management Company Limted Hong Kong HKS10,000 - - 100 100 Property management
ESMEERERAT BE 100007 MEEE
Royal Best Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - = Investment holding
EEREERAR BB BT REER
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - — Property investment
ERRRERAR & BT MERE
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS100 - - 60 80 Investment holding
EEREBRAT B8 B0 REZR
Strong Zone Internafional Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - = Investment holding
SHERERAR B8 BT REER
Supreme Stong Investments Limited Hong Kong HES - - 100 100 Investment holding
HERERRAR EB BEIT REER
Top New Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS100 - - 90 100 Investment holding
HHREBRAH BE B0 REZR
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 - = Investment holding
B8 BE0T REER
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HEST - - 100 100 Investment holding
ERERAR & BEIT REER
Trend Able Investments Limited Hong Kong HES - - 100 100 Investment holding
EBREBRAH B8 BEIT REZR
Troegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BERREERAR B8 BT REER
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - — Investment holding
HHREERAR & BT REER
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 100 100 - — Property investment
RREZARAF BE 7B #£2,000,0007 MERE



41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. T EMBAE (&K)

Z
>
4
(o)
=
~
B
o
=
=
%
&
-

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Nome of subsidiary notes  operations registered copital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AERALLE BRITLERE FARBECRATRAEE
WEAR A Mist  AaLH EEi AMEX AMERZ LG TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B EE
019 2018 019 018
—5-nfE Z5-\f ZE-nE ZE5-/\f
% % % %
Foshan Nanhoi Hugh Glory Property () PRC HKS500,000,000 - - 9% 90 Property development
Development Compony Limited H F#£500,000,0007 MERR
HLEEEREHERREER
AT
Foshan Top New Property ) PRC HKS612,500,000 - N/A 90 N/A Property development
Development Company Limited H 7B 612,500,007 MEER
HUmHEEERRERAR
Guangzhou Trade Casfle Property () PRC HKS8,500,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Consultoncy Liited H 788,500,007 MERE
ENTEREHEZABRAR
Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property ) PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Property management
Management Company Limited # 781,000,007 MEERE
ENHERNEERERAR
Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic Matercl i) PRC RIB65,370,000 - - 51.54 5154 Manofacturing of
Company Limited 3 AER#E65,370,0007 magnefic materals
BRILSNEMMRERAR SUERMERR
Shanghai Huang Pu Liv Chong Hing ) PRC 115534,600,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Property Development H 34,600,000 7 MERE
Company Limited
LEERBAIEENERE
ARATE
Blossom Success Investments Limited Briish Virgin slonds / USS1 100 100 - = Investment holding
SEREBRAF Hong Kong [ES REZR
KBRLHE/BE
(hina Link Technologies Limited Briih Virgin Islonds / 55100 100 100 - = Investment holding
Hong Kong 1007 REER
KBRLHE/BE
Defermined Resources Limited Briih Virgin Islonds / 551,000 100 100 - — Shore investment 263
Hong Kong 10007 RiRE
KBRLHE/BE

EEAR BAREXEIEERERXR
FEZAEENBARBRECHINL
R EBERR BRHUHEGKHBLAE
# AREBRITE

BEMNBARNBEAFEBRTENES

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

HHEFTY-—&F=- | BEvHEXIEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=Z-h&E+-A=t-HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other

REMB®RRMEE

41. TEMBAE (])
RABEHR  NAFEHBHEMEARE

subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The majority of Iﬁ‘ﬁ?T\EEj{E’JBﬁE"\_ o ZEM B
these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities A & & X2 ERE o W EHE
of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: N EE’JEE%%L@#@&EMDT :

Number of subsidiaries

WEBARHAE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2019 2018
IEXH ITEERME s Ly K2 “E-0\E
Hotel operation and management PRC ] 1
BELERER e
Investment holding Hong Kong 14 17
REER £
Property investment Hong Kong 2 2
NERE B
Inactive Hong Kong/PRC 18 20
TRER E&/HE

notes:
(i) The companies are sole foreign equity ventures established in the PRC.
(ii) The company is sinoforeign equity joint venture established in the PRC.

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-confrolling inferests.

42, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) has led to substantial
travel bans and lockdowns across China and overseas.
Increased global travel restrictions amid virus infections locally
and overseas, and posing a significant threat to the global
economy. Therefore, the Group expects weak performance from
the properties and hotel portfolio in Hong Kong and PRC. Given
the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the related impact on
our Group's consolidated results of operations, cash flows and
financial condition could not be reasonably estimated at this
stage and will be reflected in the Group’s 2020 interim and

annual financial statements.

GES

0 EELARRPEAIZNEEELE

) EEOARMPEAIZNSEEELT

) RERESF AEMYEFASAEBRBREMENELE
G DER

42. BEHREEIR

A EAM B E (COVID-19) IR E B

THEFEREINNABIRITRES MEH

EAMAZHIERHEESNERT - 2K

HRAT PR IR SR MBS - B BB B

TEXRE - At AEBEEFEER

FEIYRREEEESRERES  ER

ELFERTEHESCHLEE  BAIEES

BT HARENGREEERE B

o|

EREMPBERARNEELE  AH
RREAEEN -Z_SFPHPNFE

PR
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Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

23/F Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7777

Fax: (852) 2983 7725

E-mail: Info@Ichi.com.hk

Website: www.Ichi.com.hk

Stock Code: 00194

ERERED 1
RIFERTHRO=T=42
5% : (852) 2983 7777
{HH : (852) 2983 7725
EH . Info@Ichi.com.hk
#8131t : www.Ichi.com.hk
BB - 00194
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